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REHEREESER
Highlights of the Reporting Period

FEMBER Key Financial Highlights

REk®

Revenue Cash Ratio

HK$1 68.5mi|lion§§5§7_l: 592%

RITERHEYEREELR YIREE
Bank Loan to Property Value Ratio Property Value

1 37% HK$7,453.8miIIion§§5§7_l:

BRFEEE FEREELR
Net Asset Value Per Share Net Gearing

Hks8. 92 = 11.8
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Portfolio at a Glance

E2 A B:0kY/E S Our Properties

& B Y% Hong Kong Properties
o WM (FEREN)

Villa Cecil Phase 2 (residential and car parks) REI#¥ % China Properties
o HIE=H (FEREAL) o RYIEgEHED
Villa Cecil Phase 3 (residential and car parks) Cheuk Nang Garden, Shenzhen
o Hgell (FEREM) o TN EBE o JATIEE
Cheuk Nang Lookout (residential and car parks) Cheuk Nang Riverside, Hangzhou

o THRNEEWIE (FEREA)

One Kowloon Peak (residential and car parks)
o FmdEE (E=%)

New Villa Cecil (residential)
o MRIEE (RAHBA)

South View Garden (car parks only)

. SEH (REHS) i
Scenic Crest (1 shop only)

o
B RFGEE M) Z Malaysia Properties BPI¥) % Macau Properties
o Parkview RI&=VEE EXRE—% (F=E)
Parkview Serviced Apartment Golden Cotai No. 1 (residential)
e Cecil Central Residence, 25— &% 25 U &
Cecil Central Residence, Tower 1 to 4
1% ith 15 (& (B Valuation by Geography
ﬁf Kon 5 R A5
g g Malaysia
43 % 59,

B
Macau

14%

el

Shenzhen Hom
25% Hangzhou
13%
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TEMBHHE

Five Years’ Financial Summary

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

YA

ARAFHE ARG
(B8]) /&H

BENAE

Bl BE (Hit(a)
HFRBEE
mEYBEFE
FRBAE

BEFE

BREEFE(BT)

Wiz -

(a)

Revenue

(Loss)/Profit attributable
to the owners of the
Company

Dividends

(Loss)/Earnings per share
(HK$)

Dividends per share (HK$)

Dividend cover (time)

Assets and liabilities
Fixed assets (Note (a))
Other non-current assets
Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Net assets per share (HK$)

TEEBRREEME YWE - HERR

and equipment.
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—E-RE —E-NF = —ZE-Z —E-—
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
TR TET TET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
168,516 188,042 45,156 56,738 994,589
(989,199) 171,678 21,202 (149,187) 148,700
40,792 34,265 24,475 29,370 45,035
(1.52) 0.26 0.03 (0.23) 0.23
0.06 0.05 0.04 0.04 0.07
N/A 5.01 0.9 N/A 3.29
3,869,985 5,555,636 6,914,246 6,784,458 6,701,336
39,189 65,199 84,235 167,310 176,292
3,036,420 1,977,431 1,340,859 827,341 1,232,161
(1,120,829) (705,670) (1,556,880) (910,566) (1,059,050)
5,824,765 6,892,596 6,782,460 6,868,543 7,050,739
8.92 10.56 10.39 10.52 10.80

Note:

(a) Fixed assets include investment properties and property, plant
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BREBFXEESE
Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General
Meeting will be held at One Kowloon Peak Clubhouse, 8 Po
Fung Terrace, Tsuen Wan, New Territories on Thursday, the
20th day of November 2025 at 3:00 p.m. for the following
purposes:

1  To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 30 June 2025;

2 To declare final dividend;

3 (a) To re-elect Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil as an

executive Director;

(b) To re-elect Mr. Sun Dai Hoe Harold as an

independent non-executive Director;

(c) To re-elect Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie as an executive
Director; and

(d) To authorise the Board of Directors to fix the

Directors’ remunerations.

4 To appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as the
Auditor and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix its

remuneration; and

5 As special business to consider and if thought fit, pass

the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:
(A) That:

(i) subject to paragraph (iii) below, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period of
all the powers of the Company to repurchase
shares in the capital of the Company be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

Annual Report 2025 4:# ¢ CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (%£8) H5RAH
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the Company to
repurchase its own shares at a price per share

determined by the Directors at their discretion;

the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company which the Company
is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (i) above shall not
exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue;

for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(@) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

(c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.

B  CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ (#) &R/ * Annual Report 2025 4



(2) 83 -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BRI EX(F) BEBRERR
BEZ=EBLARREND 2
EREGEREESENEH
HIRA R ITEARR R — YIS
[ ZNYNCTEC e S AT K
HEITELSFEN Z2Z -
AN I MR ERMEA &
Bokm BB RER

ECEGE 2 B - ATHE pI A
RAREEGMESZEMAE
IR - WERERATES
SEFBEREELRSIR THEA
NE BRI AT ik
ZEMEZ - R HE

MARZEME

(BRI | A RE R AR
ZHETY=ZF22RFHH I
Z BAR -

[

(a) BBARFRZIEPTELT
F-RBRRAFAGHE
5o IR R
BRIFFER RS @A T @R
BEBARBRZRER
Hi (T am B M A (k)

AN E

=}

b=l

BREBFXEESE
Notice of Annual General Meeting

(B) That:

(i)

(ii)

following any repurchase of shares in the
capital of the Company pursuant to the
authorisation conferred on the Directors under
Ordinary Resolution (A) above, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period
of all the powers of the Company to allot
additional shares in the Company, and to make
offers, agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such power, equivalent
to the number of shares so repurchased be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the company to
allot or make offers, agreements and options
to allot additional shares which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period;

(iii) for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(@) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

Annual Report 2025 4:# ¢ CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (%£8) H5RAH
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(iii)

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.

(C) That:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

subject to paragraph (iii) below, pursuant to
section 141 of the Companies Ordinance,
the exercise by the Directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period of all the powers of
the Company to allot additional shares and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such power
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be
in addition to any other authorisation given
to the Directors of the Company and shall
authorise the Directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (i) above, otherwise than pursuant
to a rights issue or on the exercise of the
subscription rights under any warrants, shall
not exceed the aggregate of 20 per cent of the
aggregate amount of the issued share capital of

the Company; and
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) BEARBERME - (iv) for the purpose of this Resolution:
[BRAHME | fERAAZE R AR “Relevant Period” means the period from the
ZBETIN=F28F HHIE passing of this Resolution until whichever is
Z B the earliest of:

(@) BBIORFBR ZBPTEIT (a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
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Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.
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“Rights issue” means an offer of shares open for a

period fixed by the Directors to holders of shares

on the register on a fixed record date in proportion

to their then holdings of such shares (subject to

such exclusions or other arrangements as the

Directors of the Company may deem necessary

or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements

or having regard to any restrictions or obligations

under the laws of, or the requirements of any

recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange

in any territory outside Hong Kong).

Hong Kong, 17 October 2025

Registered Office:
Suite 4901, 49/F
Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 (([) HR/45  Annual Report 2025 41t

By Order of the Board
Ho Sau Fun Connie

Company Secretary



(D AEREERGENE LRFEZBR 1895

BEZE—UIXBZMRRREDFERAE RN
HERRERERRE ZARKKBARAE
REZRER - BARABFEARKRZBR

(D) BBt R FEA - AER— I B2REE

ARG R RARAZERDEFERE
FRELERE  HONRBZERND 2 M —

ERRRE HEREBEUBERFEA
HEEEARE  AIRERMEREM 2B

EREANTHBREIBRRREF) 2%
R E - FRERBARRRRE
P BB RTAEAZRRFMIE °

(DIRRZERBRERZZFAZEESHEAM

FEREXH (B REHABFAZSERZ
KEEIHEHMBEXHR A BEARKE
S E A4 & s E 217 R PO 4 /N RE AT
KRXARBZRMDBEELER SR RE
EEEARAT (AT B BT EFENE
H18358 A F AR L 7881712-17165% 6) -
FRAEY - BEZRRXEIRKETEREER K
RINAKBEREE R ARG A EMES W

nEegERRE-

(MBE—ZE-—AF+—A+UWBAEHRE_-Z

ZHE+—AZTHEHN(BEEMABRE
TERN) - £ BRI &R R0 2 EE
MREE S AFRERAFAERIEE
FrERNDBPFXHERBEZKRE  ARZ
T_HFt+—A+=ZBEHNTFUEF
BIEARRRAIZRDBPERLRE R RE S
ERRBRAR U ABEBEEFRNER183
AR L7E1712-1716FE ©

BREBFXEESE
Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notes:

3.

Every member entitled to attend and vote at the above
meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company but must be present in person to represent the

member.

Where there are joint registered holders of any shares, any
one of such persons may attend and vote at the Meeting,
either personally or by proxy, in respect of such shares as if
he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the Meeting personally or by proxy,
that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first
on the register of members of the Company in respect of such

shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy duly completed and
signed in accordance with the instructions printed on it
together with the power of attorney or other authority, if
any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy
of it must be deposited at the office of the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd., at
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding of the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof. The completion and delivery of the form of proxy will
not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the

Meeting or any adjournment thereof if you so wish.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 14 November 2025 to Thursday, 20 November
2025, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending
and voting at the 2025 Annual General Meeting, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Room 1712-1716, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 13 November 2025.

Annual Report 2025 4:# ¢ CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (%£8) H5RAH
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

(A FEABER (F)REBRRZER EFT
ZXRAABR R AN ET BB A ARG
REFR—REE-

O EBER(Z) KA (R)BEBERERT
- EEERRPABEIL MR 81T
RAREAHA - RERETRA - BER
PRR L/ — AR IR AE -

(DA ERENBBERBRESNBRRBFRE
EARBIRZETAEITROR  RIREBERBK
N RS S N S /N G

JORPRBERBFRGE R EFARIE - AR
FUALRRAGEHRNBEEIRNESERE
BEER  ARFBAFREHRERQA
HBEEMUNBSEH - ARAHRAR
A48 %k (www.cheuknang.com.hk) & B 22 AT
#3305 (www.hkexnews.hk) T2 A% - BARIAR
REFTARGHRITEE  SEKME -

With regard to Ordinary Resolution 5(A) of this Notice, the
Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plan to
repurchase any existing shares of the Company; approval is

being sought from members as a general mandate.

Concerning Ordinary Resolutions 5(B) and 5(C) of this Notice,
the Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans
to issue any new shares of the Company; approval is being
sought from members as a general mandate in compliance

with the Listing Rules.

Each of the above resolutions will be put to vote by way of a
poll at the AGM, and the results of the poll will be published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

If Typhoon Signal No. 8 or above, or a “black” rainstorm
warning is in force in Hong Kong at 9:00 a.m. on the date
of the AGM, the AGM will be automatically adjourned in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.
The Company will post an announcement on the websites
of the Company (www.cheuknang.com.hk) and of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) to notify members of the date,

time and place of the rescheduled meeting.
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FREHES
Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the financial
results of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year
ended 30 June 2025 (the “Year”).

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated loss after income tax of our Group for the
year ended 30 June 2025 is HK$1,144,071,000 comparing
to profit after income tax of 2024: HK$171,004,000 Details

are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK2.00 cents (2024: HK4.00 cents) per share
payable to those shareholders whose names appeared in
the register of members as at the close of business on 28
November 2025, which together with the interim dividend
of HK2.25 cents (2024: HK2.25 cents) per share, makes a
total distribution of HK4.25 cents (2024: HK6.25 cents) per
share this year, which is 32% decrease when compare to

last year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 15 December
2025.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS

The year under review has witnessed encouraging signs of
recovery in Hong Kong’s property market, particularly in
the residential sector. Home sales in the city are reaching
a four-year high, with residential transactions forecast to
increase by 13% to 64,000 units within 2025, while the
total transaction value also shows steady strength. This
positive momentum has been supported by various factors,
including policy initiatives such as the reduction in stamp
duty for homes, and an improving market sentiment as

property prices showed signs of growth.

Annual Report 2025 4:# ¢ CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (%£8) H5RAH
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The residential rental market has also demonstrated
resilience, recording seven consecutive months of growth,
with the official index reaching 195.6, approaching levels
last seen in September 2019. This recovery trend, coupled
with expectations of potential interest rate cuts by the
US Federal Reserve, has contributed to a more optimistic

market outlook.

Hong Kong Properties

The progress of our projects in Hong Kong are as follows:

1. One Kowloon Peak at No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,
Tsuen Wan

Residential project developed in two phases.

Phase 1 comprised of a block of 21-storey building
with 49 residential units (including 6 duplex units) and
39 car parking spaces. The net floor area of the units
ranged from 1,075 square feet to 2,095 square feet.
Phase 2 comprised of clubhouse, 29 car parking spaces
and five 3-storey garden villas. The net floor area of the
villas ranged from approximately 1,497 square feet to
2,329 square feet. The clubhouse provides recreational

facilities and swimming pool.

The development is currently used as temporary rental
purpose. The occupancy rate is 50%. We intend to put
the properties to market for sale in early 2026 focused

on the featured units with brand new renovation.

2. Villa Cecil Phase Il, 192 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

Residential development comprised of three blocks of
4-storey low density residential building provides 29
residential units. The net floor area of the apartments
ranged from approximately 876 square feet to 3,099

square feet.

The occupancy rate of Phase 2 maintained at 60%.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 (([) HR/45  Annual Report 2025 41t
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Chairman’s Statement

Villa Cecil Phase I, 216 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

Residential development comprised of two blocks
of 4-storey building for rental purpose. The total
marketable gross floor area is about 97,000 square feet
(net floor area is about 68,973 square feet). Block 1
provides 9 residential units and Block 2 provides 32
units. The gross floor area of the apartments ranged
from 760 square feet to 3,800 square feet (net floor area
ranged from 586 square feet to 2,555 square feet).

The occupancy rate of the two blocks has reached 90%.

Cheuk Nang Lookout, 30 Severn Road, The Peak

The development comprises of two luxury residential
villas. During the year under review, a public sale by
invitation to tender was launched for Villa Crocus.
While we had received a few serious offers, the
prices received did not match our expectations for
the property, therefore over the future months we will
continue to carry out asset enhancement strategies on

the two villas in a concerted manner.

New Villa Cecil, No. 33 Cheung Chau Sai Tai Road,
Cheung Chau

A residential project developed into 2 phases with
total marketable gross floor area approximately 58,000
square feet, the net sales area is approximately 41,088

square feet.

Phase | comprises of 19 2-storey of residential villas
which has already been granted an Occupation Permit.
The gross floor area of the villas ranged from 1,450
square feet to 2,700 square feet (net floor area ranged
from 1,106 square feet to 2,070 square feet). Phase Il
comprises of four 2-storey residential villas. The gross
floor area of the villas ranged from approximately 2,000
square feet to 12,000 square feet (net floor area from
1,564 square feet to 9,260 square feet). Recreational
facilities including swimming pool and landscape
garden are provided.

Over 20% of the villas in Phase 1 are leased out.
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China Properties

During the second half of 2024, the Central Government has
implemented a series of supportive measures to stabilise the
property market. Key initiatives included the relaxation of
home purchase restrictions in several tier-one and tier-two
cities, reduction of down payment requirements for first
or second time homebuyers, and the lowering of mortgage
rates and encouraging banks to provide financing support
for property developers. Local governments were also
granted more flexibility to adjust policies according to their
specific market conditions, leading to city-specific measures

to stimulate demand.

Looking ahead, while the broader property market faces
ongoing challenges, we believe both Shenzhen and
Hangzhou are relatively well-positioned due to their
enduring economic fundamentals and strategic importance.
Having said that, market recovery will likely be gradual and
policy-dependent. The Group maintains a prudent approach
while remaining ready to capture opportunities in these
key markets as they arise all the while we remain mindful
of potential challenges, including ongoing economic
uncertainties and the need for further market stabilisation
measures. The Group will continue to monitor market
developments closely and adjust our strategies accordingly

to capture opportunities in these key markets.
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Shenzhen

In Shenzhen, as one of China’s core tier-one cities, the
property market has shown notable resilience, supported
by the city’s strong economic fundamentals and its
strategic position within the Greater Bay Area. The average
residential property prices have stabilised following the
implementation of local support measures, including the
optimisation of the housing provident fund policy and
the introduction of talent-attraction housing schemes.
Transaction volumes have shown modest improvement,

particularly in the mid to high-end segment.

Cheuk Nang Garden
Longhwa, Shenzhen

The sale campaign continued throughout the Year. Up till
now, a total of 835 units were sold and the aggregate sales
amounts to RMB4,092 million.

Hangzhou

Hangzhou’s residential market has demonstrated even
more robust sentiments, benefiting from its growing
digital economy attracting young talent from all over the
country and the spillover effects of the Yangtze River Delta
integration. The city’s property market has been particularly
responsive to the recent policy adjustments, with improved
transaction volumes in both the primary and secondary
markets. The successful hosting of the Asian Games last
year has further enhanced the city’s infrastructure and
international profile, contributing to sustained housing

demand.
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EHE o SABYE Cheuk Nang e Riverside
I ER T 2 Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou

208 B L AU B2 5T 2 + Hh E S 438,983 The development comprises a land area of 38,983 square
K (#9419,613F A IR) - B HLAEEE metres (approximately 419,613 square feet). The total
& 5122,483F 75 K (#91,318,407F 75 net floor area is 122,483 square metres (approximately
R) - BEEZEZEKNEIRES49EETE 1,318,407 square feet) with multi-storey buildings providing
FEAIM22F 25 G EE B2 - 780f@{E 849 residential units, 22 deluxe villas by the riverside, 780
B ST RN EE o (£ 8 car parking spaces, clubhouse, recreational facilities and
FEFEM65F 7K (700 FF 5 IR) 2270F 5K shopping promenade. The size of the residential units and
(2,906F T R) villas ranged from 65 square metres (700 square feet) to 270

square metres (2,906 square feet).

EEBUWNEEZE D BEMEZIIARTHK © The building acceptance and the property certificate
B EHER —_ZEZRNFRNTK ° for strata ownership have not yet been completed but is

expected sometime in 2026.

P Macau Properties

F'ﬁ HRETHEEBEZ2 L EEE The Macau government’'s overall objective is focused on
TLERCNERE CIRAAIEKF - I increasing economic diversification, improving people’s
ﬂ)\l%?ﬂ:j{% e BRFEEEEM livelihoods, enhancing governance, and integrating
[M+4 JEEZ U EEES - IR » JiER  into the overall development of the country. The
BEBRBRRELSIERERE - government will continue to adopt the 1+4 appropriate
diversification strategy and will step up efforts to accelerate

the construction of the Guangdong-Macao Intensive

Cooperation Zone in Hengqin.

ER KB Golden Cotai No. 1
SR P& Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane

FTHHABREIGTEERIERN - -_FAF New development plans “ante-projecto” were submitted
NARBETHITHEBRIRER  BMEMWAIIE to The Direccao dos Servicos de Solos e Construcao
RIEEMB R EE R EIE I BEIEREE o Urbana (“DSSCU”) in the middle of August 2025. Our local

submission architect will closely monitor the progress of the

plan approval process.
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Chairman’s Statement

Malaysia Properties

The Malaysian economy has achieved a growth of 4.4%
in the second quarter of 2025, driven by robust domestic
demand. Household spending was higher amid positive
labour market conditions and income-related policy
measures, including the upward revision of minimum wage
and civil servant salaries. Of significance, both private and
public investments recorded stronger expansion, supported

by the realisation of new and existing projects.

Phase | “Parkview”
Lot 1359, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala Lumpur

The development is a ready built 41-storey residential
building providing 417 residential units and 163 car parking
spaces. Most units have been sold by our Parkview joint
venture partner. The remaining 27 unsold units are operated

as serviced apartments.

The occupancy of our serviced apartments currently is 95%
and upgrading of the property to improve occupancy is still

in progress.

Phase Il “Cecil Central Residence”

Lot 11385 and 11386, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala
Lumpur

The development currently comprises of 4 blocks of
residential condominium with total approved gross floor
area is 1,708,648 square feet. We have received several
serious offers from a few Malaysian developers desiring
to buy or collaborate on the project. As the price is not
yet satisfactory, we will continue discussions with other
developers for the possibility of either sale or joint venture

to develop the project.
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INVESTMENT IN BONDS AND STOCK

The investment in Bond market as at 30 June 2025 was
HK$23,238,000. During the year, no bonds was redeemed
and HK$57,969,000 was sold.

During the year, all investment in Hong Kong stock in the
amount of HK$12,836,000 were sold.

OUTLOOK

Despite the challenging global economic environment
characterised by monetary tightening and inflationary
pressures, Hong Kong’s property market has demonstrated
remarkable resilience. The first-hand market has shown
particular strength. While we maintain a cautiously
optimistic outlook given the anticipated 3-5% rise in
home prices, we remain mindful of the broader economic
landscape. The potential shifts in US fiscal policies and their
implications for trade relations and inflation could present

both challenges and opportunities for our market.

In response to these market conditions, we will continue to
adopt a prudent approach to our development strategy while
remaining alert to opportunities that may arise from the
market’s recovery phase. Our focus remains on delivering
quality properties that meet market demands while

maintaining operational efficiency and financial stability.
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DIRECTORS AND STAFF

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to my fellow
Board members, our dedicated management team, and
all staff members for their unwavering commitment and
contributions during the Year. Their collective efforts
continue to be instrumental in strengthening our position
in the market and creating sustainable value for our

shareholders.
By order of the Board
CECIL CHAO

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2025
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Board of Directors and Senior Management
DIRECTORS
CHAO Sze-Tsung Cecil — Executive Chairman

Dr. Chao, aged 89, is the founder and Executive Chairman
of the Group since 1988. Dr. Chao obtained a Bachelor
of architecture degree, with honours, from The University
of Durham, England and subsequently worked in the field
of property, construction, investment, shipping, industrial
and architect for over fifty years. He has also worked
for Hong Kong Government Building Department and
Architectural Office. He is a Hong Kong registered architect
and a member of the Royal Institute of British Architect
and has obtained Honorary Doctor Degree (Ph. D.) from
U.S. Morrison University. Dr. Chao is also awarded
World Outstanding Chinese. He has obtained Lifetime
Achievement Award given by the ASEAN Outstanding
Business Award 2016. He is the Chairman and beneficial
owner of Yan Yin Company Limited, Cecil Chao &
Associates Limited and Szehope Securities Company Limited

which are the controlling shareholders of the Group.

LAM Ka Wai, Graham

Mr. Lam, aged 57, is the independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from the
University of Southampton, England with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Accounting and Statistics. He is a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lam is currently the Managing Director
of an investment bank and has over 30 years’ experience in
investment banking as well as over 3 years’ experience in
accounting and auditing. He is also the independent non-
executive director of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8080), a company listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Mr.
Chee Yen Investment Company (PTC) Limited and holds

Lee, aged 62, is currently the Managing Director of
many directorships with companies in Hong Kong and
overseas. He earned his Bachelor degree in Business
Management & Economics from Sophia University Tokyo
in 1984. Mr. Lee started his career working for Kyocera
Corporation in Japan specialising in manufacturing
semiconductor packages. In 1987 he returned to Hong
Kong to establish a photographic and digital imaging
lighting manufacturing business distributing his products
internationally. A manufacturing, property development,
and property investment veteran with more than 40 years
of experience, Mr. Lee possesses a sound knowledge
in manufacturing, a sound knowledge in developing
distribution network internationally, and a sound knowledge

in real estate businesses in Hong Kong and Japan.

HO Sau-Fun Connie

Ms. Ho, aged 58, was appointed as a Director of the
Company since 1996. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and of The
Chartered Governance Institute UK (formerly known as The
Institute of Secretaries and Administrators of U.K. & Ireland).
She has been working in the company secretarial field for
over 35 years. Ms. Ho is also a director of the subsidiaries of

the Company.
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CHAO, Howard

Mr. Chao, aged 42, holds a Master of Science Degree in
Real Estate Studies from the University of Greenwich, UK
and a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Administration
from California State University, Fullerton, California and
was awarded a Certified of Completion for the Leadership
Programme on Real Estate Sustainability by the University of

Cambridge Institute for Sustainability Leadership.

Mr. Chao has over 19 years of experience in real estate
development, construction, corporate finance and asset
management, his experience covers the region of Hong

Kong, Mainland China, Malaysia and Macau.

Mr.

Maximus Capital Management Limited, Maximus Surveyors

Chao is currently the Chief Executive Officer of

Limited, Maximus Property Management Limited; and an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Mexan Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 0022).

Mr. Chao is also a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Chongqging, Hong Kong
Southern District Council Member, Committee Member
and the Vice-Chairman of Young Executives’ Committee of
the Hong Kong Chinese General Chamber of Commerce,
Advisor of the Our Hong Kong Foundation, Director of the
Hong Kong Securities Association, Vice-President of the
Hong Kong Chongging Friendship Federation, the Convenor
of the Hong Kong Real Estate and Construction Concerned
Group, the Advisor of the Business and Professionals
Alliance for Hong Kong (“BPA”) Youth Affairs Committee
and Vice Chairman of the BPA District Affairs Committee,
and a Member of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation.
Mr. Chao was a running candidate for office of the Hong
Kong Legislative Council Election 2021 under the functional

constituency of Real Estate and Construction.
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CHAO, Gigi
Dr. Chao, aged 46,

Chao, the Group Executive Chairman and the controlling

is the eldest daughter of Dr. Cecil
shareholder of the company and sister of Mr. Howard
Chao, Executive Director of the company. While her first
degree was in Architecture and her second degree in Law,
investment, asset management, coding and digital assets has
been a key areas of focus and research for Vice Chairman.
Dr. Chao first graduated from the University of Manchester,
Manchester School of Architecture, England with a Bachelor
of Arts in Architecture with Honours. Subsequently,
she worked with prominent British Architect and Urban
Designer Sir Terry Farrell in London and Hong Kong where
she participated in projects such as The Peak, Kowloon
Station, Tsuen Wan West Station, and design competitions
for prominent iconic buildings in mainland China.
Besides a background in architecture and construction,
her multifaceted experience in management and service
was acquired from an early career in marketing and retail
services in Hong Kong and China, during which she handled
key accounts such as Rolex, Audemars Piquet, Hong Kong
Jockey Club, Mont Blang, inter alia. In 2017, she completed
her LLB with Honours at the University of London
International Programmes and in 2021 she commenced
the journey of digital transformation and later obtained
her Professional Certificate in Coding from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (MITxPro). Dr Chao continues to
appreciate smart cities and the many technologies under
the hood as climate change and the risks connected to the
interaction between nature and our built environment has
taken centre stage in recent years. She has explored the
challenge of achieving Net-Zero through studies with the
University of Cambridge Business and Climate Change,
In 2025,

Chao was awarded an honorary doctoral degree in

Institute for Sustainability Leadership in 2023.
Dr.
business from her alma mater, the Manchester Metropolitan

University.
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Dr. Chao has always been an out and passionate member of
the global community and a prominent advocate for various
charitable endeavours. She is the China Representative and
board member of OutRight Action International (formerly
the International Gay & Lesbian Human Rights Commission
IGLHRC) a global organisation that has EcoSoc consultative
status at the United Nations and reports to the UN General
Assembly annually. Dr. Chao is also the founder of Hong
Kong registered charity Faith in Love Foundation, which
encourages volunteerism and alleviation of poverty through
scholarships, resource distribution, and emotional support
for marginalised youth. She is the specialist private sector
adviser for the United Nations Development Programme
Being LGBTI in Asia. An enthusiastic aviator, Dr. Chao was
the first female President of the Hong Kong Aviation Club
and an Honorary Specialist Flight Lieutenant of the Hong
Kong Air Cadets Corp.

SUN Dai Hoe Harold
Mr.

the Sun International Group of Companies and has been

Sun, aged 62, is currently an executive director of

appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (HKSE 0398), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), since 23 March 2022.
He was previously an independent non-executive director
of Saizen REIT, a real estate investment trust listed on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, from

January 2008 until its voluntary delisting in October 2017.
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Mr.

Administration from University of British Columbia, Canada

Sun was awarded an Master degree in Business

in 1987. Mr. Sun possesses over 30 years of experience
in marketing and distribution of consumer products in
Hong Kong and Southeast Asia. He was the Chairman of
the Federation of Hong Kong Watch Trades and Industries
Limited from 2017 to 2019 and has been its advisor
since 2020. In addition,
Qualifications Framework, Watch and Clock Industry

he has been the Chairman of

Training Advisory Committee since January 2022, a member
of Hong Kong Productivity Council’s Watch and Clock
Technology Centre Management Committee since 2016, and
was a member of Hong Kong Trade Development Council’s
Watches and Clocks Advisory Committee from 2016 to
2020. Mr. Sun was the Vice-President of Singapore Clock
and Watch Trade Association from 2010 to 2017. Mr. Sun’s
experience also includes real estate investment in Hong
Kong, Singapore, Malaysia and North America through his
family holdings.

LEE Tsung Hei David Chris

Mr. Lee, aged 74, is currently the Chairman and CEO of
DH International Group Holdings Ltd, DH Capital (HK) Ltd
and Guangzhou DHC Investment Advisory Ltd. He is also a
Director of Lufei Aviation Holdings Limited. He qualified as
a Chartered Valuation Surveyor in 1973 and was registered
as an Authorized Person in 1977. He is a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional
Surveyor, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
an associate of the Incorporated Society of Valuers and
Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators. Mr.
Policy Unit, which is known as the Government “Think

Lee is a former member of the Central

Tank”, a past Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing Society,
a former member of the Supervisory Board of the Hong
Kong Housing Society, a former director of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited, a former Council
member of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a former
member of the Land and Building Advisory Committee, and
the Steering Committee on review of the Urban Renewal
Strategy, a Visiting Professor of the Guangzhou Urban
Mass Transit Training Institute. He is currently a member
of the Salvation Army Advisory Board and Chairman of the
Property Advisory Committee of the Salvation Army.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EEEEAE SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ERX TAM Sui Man

B A IRESSET  AAEEBFE4E - Mr. Tam, aged 55, is the financial Controller of the Group.
RZEBE-_=ZF+=—HMAKREEF ' B Prior to joining the Group in December 2023, Mr. Tam
EEREH =M AT Z XA worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and several Hong
BETRAARBERE - BN ESBNFE Kong listed/private companies. He has more than 30
MBI - 2FF - Bt MBS A # = +F years of experience in financing, accounting, auditing and
K WEENEFBHM T AE  ENS&:t taxation in Hong Kong and the PRC. He graduated from
B (QE) B4 B - BAE ABFEBE:T the City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree
ee 8 HEBEITAREHEIAEE of Arts (Honors) in Accountancy. Mr. Tam is a member of
AEENEAERACSHHTEE - the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants of the United Kingdom and a member of Hong

Kong Business Accountants Association.
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Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
CHAO Gigi (Vice Chairman)
CHAO Howard

HO Sau Fun Connie

Non-Executive Directors

LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors
LAM Ka Wai Graham

SUN Dai Hoe Harold

LEE Tsung Hei David Chris

AUDIT COMMITTEE

LAM Ka Wai Graham (Chairman)
LEE Ding Yue Joseph

SUN Dai Hoe Harold

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
SUN Dai Hoe Harold (Chairman)
CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil

LAM Ka Wai Graham

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CHAO Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
SUN Dai Hoe Harold

LEE Tsung Hei David Chris

COMPANY SECRETARY
HO Sau Fun Connie
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Suite 4901, 49th Floor
Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public
Interest Entity Auditor

BANKERS

Hong Kong

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

The Bank of Communications, Limited Hong Kong Branch
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Overseas

Hong Leong Bank Berhad

SOLICITORS

Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.
Ho & Ip Solicitors

Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

SHARE REGISTRARS & TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

LISTING EXCHANGE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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BB RRE DT
Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Highlights

Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2025 (the “Year”)
amounted to HK$168,516,000 (2024: HK$188,042,000), a
10.4% decrease as compared with last year. It was mainly

due to no properties sold in Hong Kong during the Year.

For property leasing, the Year recorded an increase of
3.8% in rental income as compared with the corresponding
year in 2024, amounting HK$32,992,000 (2024:
HK$31,794,000). Gross profit for the Year amounted
to HK$42,646,000, as compare to a gross profit of
HK$106,796,000 with the corresponding year. Other
income recorded a decrease of 2.0% to HK$21,697,000

when compared with last year.

The other income for the Year were mainly attributed to
dividend income and interest income. Positive change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss amounted to HK$12,838,000 (2024: HK$6,000,000).
Negative change in fair value of investment properties
amounted to HK$914,881,000 (2024: Negative change in
fair value of HK$154,070,000). No expected credit loss of
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income was recognised during the Year (2024: expected
credit loss of HK$4,975,000) which related to debentures
default in interest payment and downgrading on credit
rating. Administrative expenses increased by 412.0% to
HK$289,646,000 as compared with last year and the
increase in administration expenses was mainly due to
the provision for properties under development for sale of
HK$166,068,000 and loss on disposal of perpetual note and
debenture of HK$39,627,000 during this Year. Finance costs
increased by 0.1% to HK$53,855,000 as compared with last

year.
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Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
was HK$989,199,000 (2024: Profit HK$171,678,000). Basic
loss per share was HK$1.52 (2024: Basic earnings per share
HK$0.26) and fully diluted loss per share was HK$1.52
(2024: fully diluted earning per share HK$0.26).

A final dividend of HK2.00 cents (2024: HK4.00 cents) was
proposed together with the interim dividend of HK2.25
cents (2024: HK2.25 cents) a total of HK4.25 cents (2024:
HK6.25 cents) for the year ended 30 June 2025.

Total Equity Attributable To The Owners Of The Company

As at 30 June 2025, the Group’s total equity attributable
to the owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$5,771,409,000 (2024: HK$6,684,368,000),
of HK$912,959,000 or 13.7% when compared with 30 June
2024. With the total number of ordinary shares in issue
of 652,676,781 as at 30 June 2025 (2024: 652,676,781

shares), the total equity attributable to the owners of the

a decrease

Company per share was HK$8.84, representing a decrease
of 13.7% compared to HK$10.24 as at 30 June 2024.

Other than the existing projects and those disclosed in the
annual report, the Group did not have any confirmed future

plans for material investment or acquiring capital assets.
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BB RRE DT
Management Discussion and Analysis

Investment In Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit

Or Loss And Other Comprehensive Income

As at 30 June 2025, the fair value of investment in fund and
perpetual note and debentures amounted to HK$2,955,000
and HK$23,238,000 respectively were classified as the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income. During the Year, the portfolio on listed securities
was increased by gain on fair value of HK$12,836,000
(2024: HK$5,953,000) and all the listed securities were
sold during the year at market value. During the year, the
investment in fund was increased by gain on fair value of
HK$2,000 (2024: loss on fair value was HK$47,000). During
the year, no perpetual note and debenture was redeemed
(2024: HK$2,291,000 was redeemed) and no expected
credit loss (2024: expected credit loss of HK$4,975,000)
was provided. During the year,
debenture of HK$57,969,000 was sold. The investment in
financial assets as at 30 June 2025 represented 0.3% (2024:

perpetual note and

1.1%) of the total assets, which formed part of the Group’s

cash management activities.

Equity
The number of issued ordinary shares as at 30 June 2025
and 30 June 2024 were 652,676,781 and 652,676,781

respectively.

Debts And Gearing

As at 30 June 2025,
borrowings amounted to HK$1,273,654,000 (2024:
HK$1,343,125,000).
to HK$838,542,000 (2024: HK$881,792,000) and net
borrowing of HK$435,112,000 (2024: HK$461,333,000).

the Group’s bank and other

Cash and bank balances amounted
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MEETE R AR R R22.1%(=Z —P0 Total debts to equity ratio was 22.1% (2024: 20.1%) and
F:20.1%) MERK FEER AEZR LR net debts to equity ratio was 7.5% (2024: 6.9%). The
B7.5% (ZF T :6.9%) o BEKE increase in the total debt to equity ratio was mainly due to
e RE L R INEZERHRAFEEEF decrease in net assets value during the Year and increase
BRD  ERFEBEKRANELLZ FFE  in net debts to equity was mainly due to decrease in net
BHMARNEEEEFMERLY - R -Z - F assets value during the Year. As at 30 June 2025, the
FRNAZTH  AEBMRTREEMEE Group’s bank and other borrowings were denominated in
BHLAETTEIE R AEEARITEEME Hong Kong dollars. Of the Group’s total bank and other
B 42%81,273,654,0008 70 (ZZE P4 :  borrowings HK$1,273,654,000 (2024: HK$1,343,125,000),
1,343,125,0008 7T) F - IRIBEERERHA  62.3% (2024: 100%) and 37.7% (2024: NIL) were repayable
TETEERFRRA ERKBIEEEFIEFK ©  within 1 year and 1 to 2 years respectively reference to
62.3% (ZZF VU : 100%) }37.7% (== the repayment on demand clause based on scheduled
ZFE - EDRIAR—FAR—Z=_F A repayments of the loan agreement. The Group’s bank and
BE ANEENETREMEERREZE other borrowings carried interest rates by reference to Hong
SBEABRITRAERE - Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”).

EEERW Pledge Of Assets

“TE-RAFNRNAZTH AEBEIREYZE  As at 30 June 2025, the Group’s investment properties and
&iﬁﬂ&@%ﬁﬁﬁ@ 5 Bl A2,368,955,000 land and building with carrying values of approximately
BIL (ZFE WS :2,546,738,000/% HK$2,368,955,000 (2024: HK$2,546,738,000) and
7T) ~ }180,660,000 7¢ (—F — P04 : HK$180,660,000 (2024: HK$180,254,000) respectively
180,254,000 7L) B EIR IS NEBES were pledged to secure general banking facilities of the

—MRIRTTE K o Group.
B 3§ B A Finance Costs

SR ABRIERIT R EMER - 28 - 28 Financial costs included interest expenses on bank and
FAEBRYH -AFELRLBEANE2F other loans, arrangement, facility and commitment fee
B(ZE-WNF &\ KFEEZHAELZHE A expenses. No interest was capitalized for the Year (2024:
53,855,000/ T - f%iﬂﬁﬂﬁ B R B HKS$Nil). Interest expenses for the Year amounted to
7 153,831,000/ JT A8 49 © @EE&J*W HK$53,855,000 (2024: 53,831,000) at similar level as
ZFEHFEEB41%(ZF U4 : 4.5%)  last year. The average interest rate over the year under
THAERE ST EBR A FEHEEEESE - review was 4.1% (2024: 4.5%) which was expressed as a

percentage of total interest expenses over the average total

borrowing.
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BB RRE DT
Management Discussion and Analysis

Property Valuation

A property valuation has been carried out by Messrs. Roma
Appraisals Limited and K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited in respect
of the Group’s investment properties and certain property,
plant and equipment as at 30 June 2025 and that valuation
The
Group’s investment properties and investment properties
under development were valued at HK$3,265,107,000
and HK$417,413,000 respectively making the total
HK$3,682,520,000 (2024:
investment properties under development were valued at
HK$3,512,769,000 and HK$1,852,298,000 respectively
making the total HK$5,365,067,000).
fair value of approximately HK$914,881,000 (2024: The

was used in preparing 2025 financial statements.

investment properties and

The decrease in

decrease in fair value of approximately HK$154,070,000
was charged to the income statement) was debited to the
income statement for the Year. The Group land and building
held for the directors’ quarter carried at fair value were
valued at HK$180,660,000 (2024: HK$186,254,000). The
decrease in fair value of HK$1,869,000 (2024:
fair value of HK$593,000) for the Year were recorded in

increase in

property revaluation reserves. Properties under development
for sale of the Group were stated at lower of cost or net

realizable value in the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management
procedures that enable it to identify, measure, monitor
This is

supplemented by active management involvement and

and control the various types of risk it faces.

effective internal controls in the best interests of the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

As at 30 June 2025, the Group employed a total of 49 staff
(as at 30 June 2024: 47 staff).

Annual Report 2025 4:# ¢ CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (%£8) H5RAH



BB AR
Management Discussion and Analysis

BEH S NIRBEERIE LB LBAAEN Employees were remunerated on the basis of their
EfET MeelEEe  €RUAKIEM performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
MEAEANRIRETE 2 FHRIEL - $11TE S  Remuneration packages comprised salary, year end double
HEERTEE IERIE  UHRFERL T pay and year end discretionary bonus based on market
BELERRE  BEEBITAEIT(ELEE M conditions and individual performance. The Executive
WAMEBEFRIE - RFEEIWT|MELMEE  Directors continued to review employees’ contributions and
A - to provide them with necessary incentives and flexibility for

their better commitment and performance. No share option

scheme was adopted for the Year.

B IR ENIEE FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR
ERAAEFEEABEENRERAR Profit Attributable To Owners Of The Company and

Earnings Per Share

ANATAKRRDAFFAB ARG N MBS E The Company uses the profit attributable to owners of
NAEREBIEBHESUEIZ - A FH the company and earnings per share of the Group’s as
BiZeENAEEFEE ARG AN FMER the financial key performance indicator. The Company’s
B - A% R AL S A& 23X aim to increase the Group’s profit attributable to owners
BB EIZYE - FMEBBLHEPBTWE - of the company and earnings per share. We compare the

profit against the previous period as a measure of the

performance. Detail refer to Financial Highlight section.

W BR ES 1% INTERNAL CONTROL

AEBBFIINTEENRHAREBANILE The Group has appointed external professional firm to
PRI EREE c RFEEBED&LTER ©  perform periodic review on the internal control of the
WERTE T —E&MA52 - KEEKERE Group. Current year review has completed and some minor
FMEMNIER  USkHiE L Eiirsse - weakness have been identified. The Group will carry out

necessary procedures to improve these control weaknesses.

REBRNEST ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
COMPLIANCE
BRPIREBRRESFTAMAE LR MEEM Our environmental policy is to meet all the environmental
BERIRIE AN - HIRIBHBR M KRIBE # 1T legislations which relate to our operation. A review on the
TER - performance on our environmental policy has been carried

out.
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BB RRE DT
Management Discussion and Analysis

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

Relationships with vendors

We have established relationships with numbers of suppliers
for the construction and renovation work in Hong Kong,
PRC and Malaysia. Other than one supplier relating to our
construction work which recently has financial problem,
the work originally carried by the contractor has been
reassigned to other contractor. Other than this, there is no

major events affecting our relationships with our suppliers.

Relationships with customers

Our sale and leasing team maintain good relationship with

our customers especially our tenants.

Relationships with employees

During the Year, we are not aware of any major event

affecting our relationships with our employees.

REVIEW OF OPERATION AND OUTLOOK
Hong Kong Properties

The progress of our projects in Hong Kong are as follows:

1. One Kowloon Peak at No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,

Tsuen Wan

The development is currently used as temporary rental
purpose. The occupancy rate is 50%. We intend to put
the properties to market for sale in early 2026 focused

on the featured units with brand new renovation.

2. Villa Cecil Phase 11, 192 Victoria Road, Pokfulam
The occupancy rate of Phase 2 maintained at 60%.
3. Villa Cecil Phase Ill, 216 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

The occupancy rate of the two blocks has reached 90%.
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4. Cheuk Nang Lookout, 30 Severn Road, The Peak

During the year under review, a public sale by
invitation to tender was launched for Villa Crocus.
While we had received a few serious offers, the
prices received did not match our expectations for
the property, therefore over the future months we will
continue to carry out asset enhancement strategies on

the two villas in a concerted manner.

5. New Villa Cecil, No. 33 Cheung Chau Sai Tai Road,
Cheung Chau

Over 20% of the villas in Phase 1 are leased out.

China Properties

Shenzhen

Cheuk Nang Garden

Longhwa, Shenzhen

The sale campaign continued throughout the Year. Up till
now, a total of 835 units were sold and the aggregate sales

amounts to RMB4,092 million.

Hangzhou

Cheuk NangeRiverside

Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou

The building acceptance and the property certificate
for strata ownership have not yet been completed but is

expected sometime in 2026.

Macau Properties

Golden Cotai No. 1

Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane

New development plans “ante-projecto” were submitted
to The Direccao dos Servicos de Solos e Construcao
Urbana (“DSSCU”) in the middle of August 2025. Our local
submission architect will closely monitor the progress of the

plan approval process.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Malaysia Properties

Phase | “Parkview”

Lot 1359, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala Lumpur

The occupancy of our serviced apartments currently is 95%
and upgrading of the property to improve occupancy is still

in progress.

Phase Il “Cecil Central Residence”

Lot 11385 and 11386, Section 57, Lorong Perak, Kuala
Lumpur

We have received several serious offers from a few
Malaysian developers desiring to buy or collaborate on the
project. As the price is not yet satisfactory, we will continue
discussions with other developers for the possibility of either

sale or joint venture to develop the project.

OUTLOOK

Despite the challenging global economic environment
characterised by monetary tightening and inflationary
pressures, Hong Kong’s property market has demonstrated
remarkable resilience. The first-hand market has shown
particular strength. While we maintain a cautiously
optimistic outlook given the anticipated 3-5% rise in
home prices, we remain mindful of the broader economic
landscape. The potential shifts in US fiscal policies and their
implications for trade relations and inflation could present

both challenges and opportunities for our market.

In response to these market conditions, we will continue to
adopt a prudent approach to our development strategy while
remaining alert to opportunities that may arise from the
market’s recovery phase. Our focus remains on delivering
quality properties that meet market demands while

maintaining operational efficiency and financial stability.

Annual Report 2025 4:# ¢ CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (%£8) H5RAH



CEERBE
Corporate Governance Report

RAFBOBRFRERKRKFEXRER EFF
MERFNEEEAERERDFTAEAN
Mz M EAREBE KRS -

HE_FT_AFANA=1THLEFE X2
Al-EEZHEST EHRAMECI I Z B
EERTATEEERTAD NAA T
i3 AN R BEFEHER D -

1. <FRIMEXC.2.1
RIFSFRIC.2.1EX - £ F RITEAER
WAGEERY - WA EH— ARRR
T FERTRERK ZHBEN D TR
BERRATEIWIAEMESH -

ARARRERENTE LHRANEGEEE
MITBABEBE D BEZHE » HIBERIE
BB TRRERSEA NERTITHAE
O FENT-HRFEAFAENL -

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance at all times. The Board believes
that good corporate governance helps the Company
safeguard the interests of its equity holders and improve the

performance of the Group.

During the year ended 30 June 2025, the Company
complied with all Code Provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“the Code”) set out in Appendix C1 of

the Listing Rules, except the following deviations:

1. Code Provision C.2.1

Under the code provision C.2.1, the role of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer should be clearly

established and set out in writing.

The Company currently cannot comply with the
requirement of the Listing Rules to separate the role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We are, through
different channels, still looking for a suitable person
to act as Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to

comply with the requirement in the next financial year.
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DIRECTORS
A.1 THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to lead and control the
business operations of the Group. It formulates
strategic directions, oversees the operations and
monitors the financial performance of the Group.
The management manages the business of the
Group within the delegated power and authority by
the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either
directly or through Board Committees and some
of which have been delegated to the management
of the Company. The types of decisions which are

reserved to be taken by the Board include:

1. matters relating to conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a director of the

Company;

2. formulation of the Company’s policies relating
to the overall strategic direction and strategic
plans, key business and financial objectives,
dividend policy or entering into contract
involving significant capital acquisition or

expenditure;

3. financial controls, compliance and risk
management for the approval of annual
operating and capital expenditure budgets,
the Company’s financial statements, published
reports, price-sensitive announcements and
other disclosure required under the Listing

Rules or other statutory requirements;

4. changes to the Company’s capital structure,
including reductions of share capital, share

buy-backs or issue of new securities;
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major appointments or removal to the Board,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Company’s
chief financial officer, company secretary and

external auditors;

changes to the terms of reference or
membership of any committee of the Board and
the authority delegated to the Chief Executive

Officer and the senior management;

matters exceed the authorities of the senior

management; and

the adoption, review and approval of changes
of the Corporate Governance Practical
Manual of the Company, the Code of Ethics
and Securities Transactions entered into
by the directors and other specified senior
management of the Group, group legal policy
(if any) and group system control and risk

management policy.

The terms of reference of the Board includes the

following:

(@)

(c)

to develop and review an issuer’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the board;

to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of

directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the issuer’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and

regulatory requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)

applicable to employees and directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

The Board should be responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties set out above or it
may delegate the responsibility to a committee or

committees.

The Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships
with each other save that Ms. Gigi Chao and
Mr. Howard Chao are the children of the Chairman.
When the Board considers any proposal or
transaction in which a Director has a conflict of
interest, he declares his interest and is required to

abstain from voting.
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FR G BEFSHRMAIEEESEH ° SF During the year, two full board meetings were held and the

ENHEFEBOT individual attendance of each director is set out below:
HEEESERXNE
Number of Board HE=R
BEEnE Name of Director Meetings attended Attendance rate
i Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 1/2 50%
I Chao Gigi 2/2 100%
iz FaWics Chao Howard 2/2 100%
AF5 Ho Sau Fun Connie 2/2 100%
FRE Lee Ding Yue Joseph 2/2 100%
M B Lam Ka Wai Graham 2/2 100%
BRA=x Sun Dai Hoe Harold 2/2 100%
FEE Lee Tsung Hei David Chris 2/2 100%
A2 EERITHEAR A.2 CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ARRRIEAERE EHRAERE K&
TTHRABEHNTE RAB TERF
—ARFRE - AFEREFSHH
LD  EBUEN NMERNF

g o

The Company has identified the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer under the Listing Rules
and understood that the two positions cannot
be performed by the same individual to ensure
that there is a clear division of responsibilities at
the board level to entail a balance of power and

authority.
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The Chairman is responsible for leadership of
the Board, for ensuring that the Board functions
effectively, and for ensuring communication of the
views of the Board to the public. In performing
this role, the Chairman’s responsibilities include
chairing meetings of the Board; ensuring the
board meetings receive accurate, complete,
timely and clear information concerning affairs
of the Company; ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive directors;
formulating for discussion and decision, questions
which have been moved for the consideration of
the Board; ensuring that all directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at board meetings; acting
as liaison between the Board and management;
in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer
and the company secretary or his/her designated
delegates, drawing up and approving the agenda
for each board meeting taking into account,
where appropriate, any matters proposed by the
other directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at
least annually hold meetings with non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the presence of the executive

directors.

The Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible
for recommending policy and strategic directions
for Board approval, implementing the strategies and
policies adopted by the Board and conducting the
day-to-day operation of the Company.

The Company currently cannot comply with the
requirement to separate the role of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. We are, through different
channels, still looking for a suitable person to act as
Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to comply

with the requirement in the next financial year.
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The Board is chaired by Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
(the “Chairman”). The Board comprises three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director and four Executive Directors.
The names, biographical details of the directors
are set out in the “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 22 and 28 to the annual
report. All Independent Non-Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors bring a variety
of experience and expertise to the Company.
The Board includes a balanced composition of
executive and non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) so that there
is an independent element on the Board which can
effectively exercise independent judgment, and
that non-executive directors should be of sufficient

caliber and number for their views to carry weight.

The independent non-executive directors are
identified in all corporate communications that

disclose the names of the directors.

An updated list of directors of the Company
and their role and function is maintained on the
websites of the Company and the Hong Kong

Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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A.4 APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

OF DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into appointment letters
with all the directors of the Company. Pursuant to
such appointment letters, each of the directors of
the Company is not appointed on fixed term but
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, all newly appointed Directors (either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board) shall hold office only until the next annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into
account determining the Directors who are to retire

by rotation at such meeting.

The Board at all times met the requirements of
Rules 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at
least one Independent Non-Executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management

expertise.

The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-Executive directors an annual
written confirmation of his independence. The
Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent within the
definition of the Listing Rules. The Independent
Non-Executive Directors are explicitly identified in

all corporate communications.
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Independent non-executive director serving
more than 9 years could be relevant to the
determination of his independence. According to
Code Provision B.2.3 of Part 2 of Appendix C1, if
an independent non-executive director serviced
more than 9 years, his further appointment should
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by the shareholders. The papers to shareholders
accompanying that resolution should state why the
Board believes that the director is still independent
and should be re-elected, including the factors
considered.

At the annual general meeting held on 20
November 2024, two independent non-executive
directors were subject to retirement. One of the
independent non-executive directors have serviced
for over 9 years and the resolutions for re-elections
of their appointment were passed under separate
resolutions and the papers sent to shareholders
accompanying those resolutions prior to the annual
general meeting already included the reasons why
the board believes he is still independent and
should be re-elected.

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, a shareholder can propose a person
for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting by giving the Company notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person
of his willingness to be elected shall have been
given to the Company at least seven days before
the date of the general meeting. The procedures
for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director are available and
accessible on the Company’s website.

In addition, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest one-third, shall retire from
office. The Directors to retire on every year shall be
those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became
Directors on the same day those to retire shall be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election.
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A.5 NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination
Committee with specific terms of reference which
deals clearly with its authorities and duties. The
Nomination Committee currently consists of two
Independent Non-Executive Directors namely
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe Harold and Mr. Lee Tsung Hei
David Chris and one Executive Director namely
Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil. Dr. Chao Sze Tsung

Cecil is the Chairman of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are posted on the websites of the
Company (www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock

Exchange.

The Nomination Committee will review the
structure, size and composition of the Board,
identify suitable candidates to the Board, and to
make recommendations on any matters in relation
to the appointment or re-appointment of members
of the Board and succession planning for director,
in particular, the chairman and the chief executive.
The Nomination Committee will also assess the
independence of independent non-executive
directors. Appointment of new Directors is reserved

for the Board’s approval.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee ensures that the Board comprises
members with mixed skills and experience with
appropriate knowledge necessary to accomplish the
Group’s business development, strategies, operation,
challenges and opportunities. The Nomination
Committee take into account of that person’s skill,
qualifications and expected contributions to the
Company before making any recommendations
to the Board in relation to the appointment or

re-appointment of members of the Board.
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Where the board proposes a resolution to elect
an individual as an independent non-executive
director at the general meeting, the papers sent to
shareholders accompanying that resolution prior
to the general meeting already included the reason
why the board believes he is independent and

should be re-elected.

The Company recognizes and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. In designing the
Board’s composition, the Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience,

skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the

Board.

The individual attendance of each member is set

out below:
HEESEFHRRE
Number of HE=R
BEEns Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
i Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 1/1 100%
BAR Sun Dai Hoe Harold 11 100%
FE= Lee Tsung Hei David Chris 1/1 100%
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A.6 RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director will be received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that
he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of
his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing

Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

According to Appendix D2 of the Listing Rules, legal
advice has to be provided before his appointment
becomes effective, and must disclose in the next
published annual report following the directors’
appointment (i) the date on which each of its
proposed directors obtained the legal advice referred
to in this rule and; (ii) that each proposed director
has confirmed he understood his obligations as a
director of a listed issuer. Mr. Lee Tsung Hei David
Chris was appointed as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 17 June 2024. Legal
advice has been given to him on 17 June 2024
prior to the Board Meeting held for approving his
appointment and he has confirmed he understood his

obligation as a director of a listed issuer.

The Company provides regular updates relating
to the Group’s business and the legislative and
regulatory environments in which the Group

conducts its business to the Directors.

The functions of non-executive directors include
participating in board meetings to bring an
independent judgement to bear on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of
conduct; taking the lead where potential conflicts
of interests arise; serving on audit, remuneration,
nomination and other governance committee, if
invited and scrutinizing the issuer’s performance in
achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives,

and monitoring performance reporting.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
C1 of the Listing Rules for securities transactions
by directors of the Company. A copy of the
Model Code has been sent to each Director of the
Company. Also, formal written notices are sent
to the Directors one month before the date of the
Board meeting to approve the Company’s half-
year result and two months before the approval
of annual result, as a reminder that the Directors
cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of

the Company until after such results have been
published.

Under the Model Code, Directors of the Company
are required to notify the Chairman and receive
a dated written acknowledgement before dealing
in the securities and derivatives of the Company
and, in the case of the Chairman himself, he
must notify the Board and receive a dated written

acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code

throughout the accounting year under review.

Directors’ interests as at 30 June 2025 in the shares
of the Company and its subsidiaries (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance) are set out on page 133 to 134.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing briefing and professional development
to Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever

necessary.

The Company circulates details of training courses
which may be of interest to directors. All directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses

at the Company’s expense.

The Directors are committed to comply with
the Code Provision C.1.4 on Directors’ training.
All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provide a record
of training they received for the year ended 30
June 2025 and up to the date of publication of this

annual report.

The individual training record of each Director
received for the year ended 30 June 2025 and up
to the date of publication of this annual report is

summarized below:

REEIIE SRR Z KR
Training provider or source of

Fi R 1 (MBS )

training materials Time spent (hour)

FE20255%%  HERABRE @R 3
Review of 2025 Environment, Social and N/A

Governance Report

Chairman of the Board and

Executive Director
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ESHEREE P28

Name and Title of Directors  Training received

icE =2 RAEFMABL  AREZEEREL
HITES Role of Company Director: Overview of

Chao Gigi, Executive Director  Legal & Regulatory Framework

EEW

Finance for Directors

i bW (EREEZEHAE)

HITESF Virtual Assets Seminar

Chao Howard, (BEEERERES BERNAEREA

Non-Executive Director ANHEARBEAGNE2EREE £
ERRBE)

Comprehensive Interpretation, Usage and
Trends of Hong Kong Limited Partnership
Funds, Hong Kong Open-ended Fund
Companies and New Capital Investor

Entrance Schemes
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RASEIE SRR 2 KR
Training provider or source of
training materials

EREFEE
The Hong Kong Institute of Board

of Directors

EEEZRE
The Hong Kong Institute of Board

of Directors

BEELZZEWE
Hong Kong Securities Association
BREEREWME

Hong Kong Securities Association

Fr R (0 B)

Time spent (hour)

2.5
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RASEIE SRR 2 KR

ESHENEH s 529 Training provider or source of Fr AR (MBF)
Name and Title of Directors  Training received training materials Time spent (hour)
(BLZREABREFINLE) (B BAEHZXWHE 2.5

FRms MEENRIES) (BEXSM  Hong Kong Securities Association
RASRRT-HEERNEERME) (B
BREMAUNERET-ERTHERBRE
REBEPRBHERBENER -
BHAREELRERRERS) -
(BAERAREATRANOBMERPERN
) (BRUERNERIN R(EFE
TRARKHER)

“Optimizing the Settlement Arrangements
for Eligible Securities in Multiple Counters,”
“Technical Changes Related to the
Uncertificated Securities Market,” “HKEX
Compliance Notice - Clearing Obligations
of Clearing Houses,” “HKEX Compliance
Notice - Reporting of Incorrect Transaction
Information and Broker Client Code

Errors” Restrictions on Mainland Investors'
Participation in Shanghai-Shenzhen

Stock Connect Trading,” “Introduction to
Submitting Large Open Interest Account
Information via e-Communication,” “Recent
Developments in Structured Products,” and
“Latest Developments in Professional Ethics

and Compliance”

EERBETEQISCER - SRUNKE FREZXNE 25
Integrating ESG practices in financial Hong Kong Securities Association

institutions: Strategies for each role

BERENZHO TESEERARFERE BRE2AABERARAF 2
Hong Kong's Money Laundering and Alles Compliance Consulting

Terrorist Financing Risk Assessment Report Limited
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ESHEREE

Name and Title of Directors

8%
EHTES
Lee Ding Yue Joseph

Non-Executive Director

HRB

BUFHTES

Lam Ka Wai Graham,
Independent Non-Executive

Director
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P28

Training received

HERIMNESS  BHERENAE
Board of Directors in Turbulent Times:

Maintaining Robust Governances

(LHRADBTEZNBE -OBERZNE
E
Directors’ Duties under the Listing Rules -

Refresher and Recent Development

ITEATARBERK
EER

Governance and Best Practices for Listed

BEZHENELRR

o

Issuers in Handling Loans and Lending

Arrangement

EEAR G EMMENRERF
Listing Biotech companies on HKEX

RAERRZ
a1F

Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-

HEIERENERBEEEN

Financing of Terrorism & Cooperation with
SFC

BEMUE

Takeovers in Hong Kong

(AmﬂX#i@kéﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
ARMHERNRE  UREHERLFEA

RETERBE

(A) Consultation Paper: Proposals to

optimize IPO price discovery and open

market requirements, and (B) Conducing

due diligence for IPO

RASEIE SRR 2 KR

Training provider or source of

training materials

BADAGELRE
HKCGI

BARANGEDRE
HKCGl

BELFDRERE
HKCGl

% BT

Charltons Law

EEeHMEBMERAR
Vision & Co. CPA Limited

A SCREE SRR
Angela Ho & Associates

A SCREEE M
Angela Ho & Associates

Fr R (0 B)

Time spent (hour)

1.5

2.5

2.5
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Name and Title of Directors

YN

BUFHTES

Sun Dai Hoe, Harold
Independent Non-Executive

Director

%%
BIEERARANE
Ho Sau Fun Connie, Executive

Director and

Company Secretary

P28l

Training received

20255 FR MRt R EMEH
Annual Market Statistics and Listing
Updates 2025

PRBERZFI-BNTHEAREE
Global Expansion Series — Australia Market

Entry and Operations

FIB2025835% @ R #E
Review of 2025 Environment, Social and

Governance Report

ITRMERRERS (FTHE-ATA
GEEE )
Listing Rules Foundation Course Series

(Chapter 14 - Notifiable Transaction)

RBERHBRELRAEREN
Key Updates to the BVI Business Companies
Act

RREERAS  BRLRRYER ZERD

Strategic Due Diligence: Empowerment to

Navigate Risks and Capitalise on Business

Opportunity
RREEEANEE-EHAERR

General Meetings and Change in Auditors -

Practice and Application
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RASEIE SRR 2 KR
Training provider or source of
training materials

YR (BE) st EBAERAR
Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited

FERBKER QA
Vistra
T

N/A

BEDARERE

HKCGI
BEQAGELE
HKCGI

BARANGEDRE
HKCGI

BADANGERE
HKCGI

Fr RS (0 B5)

Time spent (hour)

2.5
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RASEIE SRR 2 KR

ESHENEH R s2dl Training provider or source of Fr AR (MBF)
Name and Title of Directors  Training received training materials Time spent (hour)
205FCRREEEHN BRERALGELE 6
Annual Corporate and Regulatory Update HKCGI
2025
ERUEFERA  BREARHNRALER BERARELE 1.5
Alternative Dispute Resolution: In-depth HKCGI
Comparison Between Mediation and
Arbitration
(FRATHBZRER) BEEF XD 2.5
Professional Ethics for Licensed Persons Hong Kong Securities Association
ZEE RI%20255% i 8 AR RE TER 3
BUFHITES Review of 2025 Environment, Social and N/A
Lee Tsung Hei David Chris, Governance Report
Independent Non-Executive
Director
REBZE-_ZFT_AFA=1THILHF During the year ended 30 June 2025, Ms. Ho
g - $ﬂﬂ§$%L\ﬁjW%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ Sau Fun Connie, an Executive Director and the
TEER EHRAIE329EETH Company Secretary, has undertaken no less than
D5/ 2 IR EEIET - 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
A7 BERRHERER A.7 SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION
RBEARARBIEBERME) > EFA The Directors may attend meetings in person,
T - BRERIEMEFB by phone or through other means of electronic
FREEEE- communication in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.
REXAME@EMEDTOREL At least 14 days formal notice would be given
E=EA - RIBEARREBEIZA before each regular meeting. According to the
a - é%T%%EHQ%Zﬁ%ﬂ ’ Company’s Articles of Association, a Director may
ZHRANEHZRINEREEDL - waive notice of any meeting and any such waiver

may be prospective or retrospective.
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An agenda and accompanying board papers
were sent to all directors at least 3 days before
the intended date of board or board committee

meeting.

The directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
Board procedures, and all applicable rules and

regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretary prepares written
resolutions or minutes and keeps records of matters
discussed and decisions resolved at all Board and

Board Committee meetings.

The Board and Board Committee minutes/
resolutions are sent to all Directors/Board
Committee members within a reasonable time after
each Board and Board Committee meeting and
are available for inspection by Directors/Board

Committee members.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board/Board Committees and

decisions reached.

The Directors are given an opportunity to comment
on draft Board minutes. Final version of Board
minutes is placed on record within a reasonable

time after the Board meeting.

Directors have been advised that the Company
Secretary can arrange independent professional
advice at the expense of the Company should such

advice be considered necessary by any Director.
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2.

A.8

Important matters are usually dealt with by way of
written resolutions so that all Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) can note
and comment, as appropriate, the matters before

approval is granted.

The Board having considered the attendance
records of the Directors is satisfied that each
Director spends sufficient time performing his

responsibilities.

TERMS OF DIRECTORS

Code provision B.2.2 of the Code requires every
director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years, which is in line
with the provision of the Company’s Articles of
Association. Three out of the four non-executive
directors have remunerated at HK$73,000 per year
and the remaining has remunerated at HK$175,500

per year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD
EVALUATION

B.1

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee to advise the Company on the directors’
remuneration policy and other remuneration related

matters.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprised
of three members includes two Independent
Non-Executive Directors namely Mr. Lam Ka
Wai Graham, Mr. Sun Dai Hoe Harold and one
Executive Director namely Dr. Chao Sze Tsung
Cecil. Mr. Sun Dai Hoe Harold is the Chairman of

the Committee.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of the
Company (www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock

Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is primary
responsible for formulating and making
recommendation to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structuring the remuneration of
the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group. No Directors or any
of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The remuneration package of the
Directors includes salary, bonus and pension. The
remuneration level is determined by reference
to the expertise, performance and experience

possessed by each Director.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at
least once a year or as requested by the director

responsible for resources function.
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FTMEEGTEH REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETING
FWEEERERARLE (£
) Mt BE LI MMRE LS Mr. Sun Dai Hoe Harold as Chairman and
28 - KN FHELEESSEESE Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil and Mr. Lam Ka

FHERERSRITHRAE ZHM - Wai Graham as members. During the year,

The Remuneration Committee comprised

Remuneration Committee meetings were held
which reviewed the salary package of the Directors

and Senior Management.

EKREMNLEFEFBNOT - The individual attendance of each member is set
out below:
HESB R
Number of HE=R
RE R Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
MK B, Lam Ka Wai Graham 1/1 100%
=R Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 1/1 100%
VN Sun Dai Hoe Harold 1/1 100%

3. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
C.1 FINANCIAL REPORTING

3. BEREHE
C.1 M ER

EEERAESSRHIAY ORE

The Management provide sufficient explanation

NER  EEEGUUBRERGAM
PHOENT B R EMER - (FLE
RENZE: EEERBARNES
SRERHEMRER  HIBEAX
RAMKRR - WHERARARHRQ
IE R Z R R R O RF A -

and information to the board to enable it to
make an informed assessment of financial and
other information put before it for approval. All
members of the board are provided with monthly
updates giving and balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient details to enable the

board and each director to discharge their duties.
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DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities
for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Company and ensure that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of such financial
statements.

The statement of the external auditors of
the Company with regard to their reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements is set out in the Report of the Auditors

on pages 139 to 149.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
specific enquiries of all directors, they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has the responsibility to review annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. In 2025, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and

financial reporting functions.
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Risk management is defined as the continuing
process to identify, analyse, evaluate, and treat loss
exposures and monitor risk control and financial
resources to mitigate the adverse effects of loss.
Risk Appetite is the amount of risk that the Board
and the management are willing to accept in the

pursuit of the Group’s value.

Risk Management Approach
The Group adopts a “Top-Down” approach in

the Group’s risk management framework which
the Board, the Audit Committee, the senior
management and the department heads exercise
strong oversight on the establishment and

maintenance of the risk management policy.

Risk Governance Structure

The Group’s risk governance structure consists of

the following parties:

i. The Board of Directors
— evaluate and determine the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in

achieving the Group’s strategic objectives;

— oversee management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk

management systems on an ongoing basis;

— ensure that a review of effectiveness of
the Group’s and its subsidiaries’” risk
management system has been conducted
at least annually and report to shareholder
that it has done so in Corporate

Governance Report.
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ii. The Audit Committee

review the Group’s risk management

systems;

discuss the risk management systems with
management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective

systems;

consider major investigation findings on
risk management matters as delegated
by the board or on its own initiative and

management’s response to these findings.

iii. Senior Management

identify corporate risks;

review of corporate risks and mitigating

actions;

consider risks when making decisions;

articulate risk appetite when making

decisions.

iv. Department Head
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identify risks to the achievement of their
unit’s business plan which might also
be corporate risks, and to advise senior
management and Board of Directors of

such risks;

identify any relevant mitigating actions, to
include these within their unit’s business
plan, and to ensure the objective of

business plan is achieved;

be alert to other risks that might develop.
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V.

All Staffs
— be alert to possible corporate risks and
report the risks that they have identified to

their managers.

The Group’s risk management process comprises 4

core stages:

(1)

(2)

Risk identification

Each of the head of department is responsible
to identify potential risks that affect the Group
through assessing the market, competition
environment and the daily operations by
considering the risks relating to their processes.
The risks are then recorded into the risk
register, which serves to summarize the risks of
the Group as a whole by four risk categories,
namely reporting, operational, strategic and

compliance risk.

The risk register is submitted to the internal
audit function and the Audit Committee for

review upon completion.

The identification process is performed
annually to respond to the changing business
environment and to determine whether
adjustment is required for the risk identification

result.

Risk Assessment and Prioritization

(2.1) Risk Assessment
A common set of assessment criteria is
deployed across departments to assess
the risks in terms of likelihood and
consequences. The head of departments
are required to assign the ratings on the
likelihood and the consequences of the
risks in accordance with the assessment
criteria. The rating applied ranges from 1
to 5.
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(2.2) BB 18 R HEFr (2.2) Risk Prioritization
T8 ?Eﬁi‘f AP IE - R IREE Fr Risks are prioritized in descending order
eI o [ B 4R B A BBV RR T = after the overall ratings are calculated. The
ﬁﬁ/\ﬂ REER TG RARE design of risk mitigation plan is based on
FE BBy Ha s T 5SRO AR ED o the risk prioritization and the details of the
plan are described in “(3) Risk Response”
sections.
(2.3) FHEE%E (2.3) Assessment Criteria
AHEREREEERE KEF The assessment criteria is determined by
EgHE - the management and approved by the
Board.
(3) R EfE (3) Risk Response
(3.1) [ Ba Rk 4% &1 21 (3.1) Risk Mitigation Plan
HEHPIBE AR TRER ST Each department head is responsible to
Yerpig - B A ST R &R Et formulate the risk mitigation plan upon the
£ completion of risk prioritization.
R4 ARt B BE AT E S ¢ The risk mitigation plan includes the
following sections:
(i) Rl (i) Risk Identified
~ A AR 1R R B AT A The Group will list out the top 10 risks
R EEI/J\ REEFI+ KR in descending order by using result
Bex o L B &0 i 3aft AR =R Bz Y from the risk assessment. Description
E/§$E£WA$EH 2 of the risks and the impact of the risks

are required to be included under this

section.
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(i) [ B 4 A 1 & (i) Risk mitigation plan
T 2 B 4% #7717 B) B B’ T In the midst of the design of the
FoREEFEEERR risk mitigation action, management
M EMPEISMT - WiEE needs to consider the impact and the
B 2 H)FE e SR R H A vulnerability of the risks, and select
B e U TRERELE TR the most appropriate measure to
fRERERN A RERE respond to the risks. The following
[E. B 4% FR R RS IR A 1B reference table summarizes the
o types of the risk responses and the

circumstances to be adopted upon the

formulation of the risk mitigation:

[ B e PE R Y EERANER

Type of Risk Responses |Circumstances to be adopted

%5 R R R TERH - W EERRARKFEZA -

Acceptance Risks are considered as immaterial and it is within the risk

acceptance level.

Rk R R AEEZR - T HIFE 5 R LA R bR R B 6] 5 52 Hy K
Reduction o
Risks are considered as material, and controls are available

to reduce the risks to an acceptable level.

Hx= B AR S EARFIR - AR BEAAGE R E R E K o [/
Sharing [El D WA R E M AT K= -

Risks are considered as material, and the Group is not able to
reduce the risks to an acceptable level solely. The portion of

risks has to be transferred to or shared with other parties.

piiges) R RAEE - R EEA—T /M T R EED AT X AK
Avoidance FooE SRR EZAKEEETESEMNERA

Risks are considered as material, and the risks cannot be
reduced to an acceptable level by all means, or it requires
unreasonably high cost to reduce the risks to an acceptable

level.
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(3.2)Reporting to those charged with
Governance After department heads
submit the risk register and risk mitigation
plans to senior management for review,
the senior management will perform the
consolidation of the risk register and the
risk mitigation plans, thereafter report to

the Board and the Audit Committee.

(4) Risk Monitoring
(4.1) Daily Monitoring
The department heads are responsible to
implement and monitor the risk mitigation
plan, and review its effectiveness since

implementation.

(4.2) Annual Review Reporting
A report, which summarises the monitoring
activities during the year and the risk
mitigation results, is prepared by each
responsible department annually, and
submitted to senior management for

review.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

The Company has developed its disclosure policy
to provide the general guideline on handling
confidential information, monitoring of information
disclosure and response to queries to its directors,
officers, senior management and the relevant
employees. The Company has executed supervision
programs to confirm the strict prohibition
from unauthorized access to and use of inside

information.
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C.3

The Group does not have an internal audit function
as the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the Group’s business. The situation will be

reviewed from time to time.

The Board also contracted Grant Thornton
Advisory Services Limited to conduct the risk
management and internal control reviews of the
financial reporting & disclosure controls, revenue
management and inventory management for
the year ended 30 June 2025. The reports were
distributed to the Audit Committee and the Board

for their review.

the Board

considered the Group’s risk management and

For the year ended 30 June 2025,

internal control system as adequate and effective
and that the Company has complied with the code

provisions on internal control of the Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises of two
independent non-executive directors and one
non-executive director, Lam Ka Wai
Graham, Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph and Mr.
Dai Hoe Harold. Mr.

chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition

namely Mr.
Sun

Lam Ka Wai Graham is the

and members of the Audit Committee complied
with the requirements under Rule 3.21 to the

Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are posted on the websites of the Company

(www.cheuknang.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.
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The main function of the Audit Committee is to
assist the Board to oversee the financial report
system, risk management and internal control
procedures and the external audit functions. The
Audit Committee annually assesses the appointment
of the external auditor, taking into account the
quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the
auditor service provided, the audit firm’s quality
control procedures, relationships between the
external auditor and the Company and the

independence of the external auditor.

As required by Code Provision D.2.6, details of
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
and other matters have been included in the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee in February
2012.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during the one year after he/she ceases to be a

partner of the auditing firm.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
During the year, two Audit Committee meetings
were held in September 2024 and February 2025

with the presence of the external auditor. The

BT individual attendance of each member is set out
below:
HEEBRE

Number of HE=R
REAHE Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
MR Lam Ka Wai Graham 2/2 100%
TR Lee Ding Yue Joseph 2/2 100%
BRRE Sun Dai Hoe Harold 2/2 100%
%E‘I‘ééﬁ@ EIRN/NEIE S o The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting

I B E IR B 5T 5 A
ﬁ$# = FIE DA R AZ ERED
m@ BEBEARRRRBHRRE T
RiIZE  BifZE@C2HE T

procedure and policies adopted by the Company
and discussed with management and the external
auditor regarding the internal controls and financial

reporting matters. To monitor the integrity of the

F+—A=+—"BHFHEBRER
HE_T-_RAFA=ZTHZEH
R BHRERIRETESFSNENZS
BE e NEEFE  EFTCHEX
ZESUWEEERREEINEZE
M EERERDE -

financial statements of the Company, the Audit
Committee has reviewed the interim report for the
six months ended 31 December 2024, the audited
financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2024 before their submission to the Board. There
was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment
of the external auditor during the year under

review.
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4. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
D.1 INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance relationship
and communication with its investors. Detailed
information about the Company’s performance and
activities is provided in the annual report and the
interim report which are sent to shareholders. The
Company maintains close communications with
investors analysts, fund managers and the media by
individual interviews and meetings. The Group also
responds to requests for information and queries
from the investors in an informative and timely
manner. The Board also welcomes the views of
shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholders’” meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with

the Board or senior management directly.

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy which was posted in the
Company’s website and of the Stock Exchange.
The Company establishes different communication
channels with shareholders and investors,

including:

(i) printed copies of corporate communications
(including but not limited to annual reports,
interim reports, notices of meetings, circulars
and proxy forms) required under the Listing
Rules, and shareholders can choose (or are
deemed to have consented) to receive such
documents using electronic means through the

Company’s website;

(ii) the annual general meeting provides a forum
for shareholders to raise comments and

exchange views with the Board;
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(iii) updated and key information on the Group
is available on the website of the Company

(www.cheuknang.com.hk);

(iv) the Company’s website offers a communication
channel between the Company and its

shareholders;

(v) the Company’s Registrar deals with
shareholders for share registration and related

matters; and

(vi) the Company Secretary of the Company
handles enquiries from shareholders and

investors generally.

The annual general meeting is used as an
opportunity to communicate with all shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meetings for which a notice would be
served with at least 20 clear business days. For
all other general meetings, notice will be sent to
shareholders with at least 10 clear business days.
The Chairman and/or Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the
meetings. At general meetings, separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue
such as the election of individual directors and

re-appointment of auditors.
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Details of poll voting procedures and the rights
of shareholders to demand a poll is included in a
circular to shareholders accompanied the annual
report. The circular also includes relevant details
on proposed resolutions, and biographies of each

candidates standing for re-election.

The constitutional document of the Company
was posted in the Company’s website and of the
Stock Exchange. There has not been change in the

constitutional document during the year.

At the 2024 annual general meeting of the
Company, the external auditors and all directors
were attended to answer the questions from the
shareholders. The Chairman of the meeting has
explained the detailed procedures for conducting a

poll, and answered questions from shareholders.

The Chairman of the meeting exercised his power
under the Company’s Articles of Association to put
each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by
way of a poll. Representatives of the Share Registrar
of the Company were appointed as scrutineers to
monitor and count the poll votes cast at the 2024
annual general meeting. Since the Company’s 2009
annual general meeting, all the resolutions put to
vote at the Company’s general meetings were taken
by poll. Poll results were posted on the websites of

the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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5. COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms Ho Sau Fun Connie, is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and the Board activities
are efficiently and effectively conducted. These
objectives are achieved through adherence to proper
Board procedures and the timely preparation and
dissemination of meeting agendas and papers to the
Directors. Minutes of all meeting of the Board and the
Board committees are prepared and maintained by
the Company Secretary to record in sufficient details
the matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board or the Board Committee. All minutes are sent to
the Directors and are available for inspection by any

Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments relating to the
Group and that it takes these into consideration when

making decisions for the Group.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible
for seeking to ensure the Group’s compliance with
all obligations under the Listing Rules and The Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and dispatch of
annual reports and interim reports within the time limits
set out in the Listing Rules and the timely dissemination

of the same to the Shareholders.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the
Directors on their obligations for disclosures of interests
and dealings in the Group’s securities, connected
transactions and price-sensitive information and ensures
that the standard and disclosures required by the Listing
Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the

annual report of the Company.
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The appointment and removal of the Company is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. All members of
the Board have access to the advice and service of the

Company Secretary.

Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company in February 1996 and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. Ms. Ho
Sau Fun Connie has confirmed, following specific
enquiry made by the Company that she has complied
with all the qualifications, experience and training

requirements of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below are procedures by which Shareholders
may: (1) calling for extraordinary general meeting;
(2) putting forward enquiries to the Board and (3)
putting forward proposals at general meetings. These
procedures are generally governed by the provisions of
the Company’s Articles of Association and applicable
laws, rules and regulations, which prevail over what is

stated in this section in case of inconsistencies.
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Calling for Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Under the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “CQO”), registered
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least
5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having a right to vote at general meetings may
request to call an extraordinary general meeting
(“EGM”) of the Company. The request (a) must
state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the meeting, (b) must be signed by
the requisitionist(s), and (c) must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (the
“Registered Office”) at Suite 4901, 49/F., Central
Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for the attention of the Company Secretary. If the
resolution is to be proposed as a special resolution,
the request should include the text of the resolution
and specify the intention to propose the resolution
as a special resolution. The request may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one

or more requisitionist(s).

The Directors must call an EGM within 21 days
from the date of the deposit of the valid request.
Such meeting should be held on a date not more
than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting. If the Directors fail to call the EGM
as aforesaid, the requisitionist(s), or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves call the
EGM. The EGM must be called for a date not more
than 3 months after the date of the deposit of the
request. Any reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) by reason of the failure of the
Directors duly to call an EGM shall be reimbursed

to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the
Board through the Company Secretary who will
direct the enquiries to the Board for handling. The
contact details of the Company Secretary are as

follows:

The Company Secretary

Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
Suite 4901, 49/F., Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Email: info@cheuknang.com.hk or
connieho@cheuknang.com.hk

Tel No.: (852) 2526 7799

Fax No.: (852) 2521 7728

Shareholders can also contact Computershare Hong
Kong Investors Services Limited, the share registrar
of the Company, if they have any enquiries about

their shareholdings.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at

General Meetings by Shareholders

Circulation of shareholders’ statement

Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders who have a
relevant right to vote, or at least 50 shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote may request
the Company to circulate to shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of a general
meeting a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that

meeting.
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The request (a) must be signed by the
requisitionist(s), (b) must be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary, (c) must identify the statement to
be circulated, and (d) must be received by the
Company at least 7 days before the meeting to

which it relates.

The expenses of circulating shareholders’ statement
need not be paid by the requisitionist(s) if the
meeting to which the requests relate is an annual
general meeting of the Company; and requests
sufficient to require the Company to circulate
the statement are received in time to enable the
Company to send a copy of the statement at
the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.
Otherwise, such expenses must be paid by the
requisitionist(s); and there is deposited with or
tendered to the Company, not later than 7 days
before the meeting, a sum reasonable sufficient
to meet such expenses in doing do, unless the

Company resolves otherwise.

Circulation of resolution for annual general meeting
Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing at least 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all the members who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the annual general
meeting to which the requests relate, or at least
50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate, may request the Company
to give, to shareholders of the Company entitled
to receive notice of the annual general meeting,
notice of a resolution that is intended to be moved

at that meeting.
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The request (a) must be signed by the
requisitionist(s), (b) must be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary, (c) must identify the resolution of which
notice is to be given, and (d) must be received
by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before
the annual general meeting to which the requests
relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is

given of that meeting.

The Company must send a copy of the notice of a
resolution at the Company’s own expense to each
shareholder entitled to receive notice of the annual

general meeting.

Nomination of a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, a shareholder can propose a person
for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting by giving the Company notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person
of his willingness to be elected at least seven days
before the date of the general meeting. The period
for lodgment of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of

such general meeting.
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7.

Circulation of Written Resolution

Under the CO, registered shareholder(s) of the
Company representing not less than 5% of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders entitled to
vote on the resolution, may request the Company
to circulate a proposed written resolution to its
shareholders. The requisitionist(s) may also request
the Company to circulate with the proposed written
resolution a statement of not more than 1,000

words in respect of the resolution.

The request (a) must be signed by the
requisitionist(s), (b) must be deposited at the
Registered Office for the attention of the Company
Secretary, and (c) must identify the resolution and

any statement to be circulated.

The Company must send a copy of the proposed
written resolution and statement (if any) at the
Company’s own expense to every shareholder not
more than 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the valid request. The Company must ensure
that the copy of proposed written resolution is
accompanied by guidance as to how to signify
agreement to the resolution and the day by which

the resolution must be passed.

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS” AND
OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

During the year, the Company has arranged for the
renewal of an insurance policy on directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Company and its
subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the

Group.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid or payable to external
auditors of the Company, Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited, was approximately HK$850,000 for
statutory audit services rendered to the Group as well
as approximately HK$457,000 for non-audit services
covering agreed-upon procedures on interim result, tax
services and enterprise risk and internal control services

to the Group.

The Group also appointed other external auditors
for the statutory audit purposes of certain overseas
subsidiaries and their remuneration for audit services

rendered was approximately HK$86,000.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Environmental Policy

Our commitment to protect the environment is well
reflected by our continuous efforts in promoting green
measures and awareness in all business practices. The
Group has introduced a green policy to enhance the
awareness of environmental protection among staff with
the aims of saving energy, fully utilizing resources and

recycling wastes in daily office operation.
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10.

For the past years, the Group had undertaken initiatives
to reduce paper usage including usage of electronic
devices, and encouraging the use of websites and
online version of corporate communications. To reduce
the power consumption, lighting and equipment will be
turned off when not in use. Our Group is using office
equipment carries Energy Label issued by the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department which save the

energy in the offices.

Community Involvement

We encourage our employees to spend more time with
their families and engage in volunteer work in their free
time. The focus areas of contribution have been poverty
alleviation, education, environmental recycling, and the
arts. The senior management of the Group endeavours
to lead the way through example by regularly
contributing time, supplies, and financial resources to

charitable work.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognizes that our employees,
customers and business associates are keys to our
sustainability journey. We strive to achieve corporate
sustainability through engaging our employees,
providing quality services for our customers,
collaborating with business partners and supporting our
community. The Company provides a fair workplace,
promoting non-discrimination and diversity to our staff,
together with competitive remuneration and benefits, as
well as a range of opportunities for career advancement
based on employees’ merits and performance. The
Company provides subsidy to staff for trainings to keep
them abreast of the latest developments in the market

and industry.
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BOARD STATEMENT

On behalf of the Group, our Board of Directors (the
“Board”) is pleased to present the 2024/25 ESG Report
of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited, in reporting our
performance in the areas of sustainable, operational
responsibility, environmental protection, employee care and
community for the financial year from 1 July 2024 to 30
June 2025.

With the challenges of the current macroeconomic
situation, and the residential property market remaining
highly competitive and fragmented across different regions,
sustainability growth and performance have become more
important than ever. With our stakeholders being more
attentive than ever about our ESG performance and growth,
the Board endeavours to support the Group’s commitment
in incorporating sustainable development into our business,
and have overall responsibility for formulating strategies,
monitoring and managing ESG-related risks, as well as
ensuring the effectiveness of ESG risk management and
internal control systems. The management is responsible for
the implementation of ESG initiatives and the measurements
of the corresponding sustainability performance, while
the Board takes responsibility for reviewing, examining
and approving the Group’s ESG report to ensure its
compliance with relevant laws and regulations and alliance
with our vision. The Board will continuously review its
business strategy and its internal sustainability policy, and
communicate the Group’s annual sustainability performance
in a responsible manner to ensure that its environmental and

social impacts are reviewed and minimized.
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We hold value to all stakeholders’ interests, and formulate
relevant strategies and other plans for sustainable
development based on our stakeholders’ views and
expectations. We continue to identify key sustainability
topics to both the Group and its stakeholders based on the
ESG Reporting Guide and existing communication channels.
Subsequently, we assess the materiality matrix by ranking
the key topics according to its total scores through our
quantitative analysis and the results are reviewed by the

Board.

Based on the set goals and targets, the Group will continue
its effort in collecting opinions from all stakeholders, keep
improving its ESG reporting and promote ESG development,
and ultimately build a more sustainable business and create

long-term value for the Group and the community.

ABOUT THIS ESG REPORT
Objective

Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (“Cheuk

Nang”, “the Group”, “We") is pleased to present the ESG
report (the “Report”), which summarized the ESG initiatives
and accomplishments of the Group during the Reporting
Year, in order to allow our stakeholders to understand the
progress and direction of the sustainable development of the

Group.

Reporting Scope and Boundaries

This report covers the management approach, performance
and measures in respect of the Environmental, Social, and
Governance aspects of Cheuk Nang within the period
from 1 July 2024 to 30 June 2025 (the “Reporting Year”,
“FY2024/25"), consistent with the Group’s Financial Year.
The reporting scope covered our major business operations,
including the property development and investment, and
provision of property management and related services
located in the Hong Kong Head Office for the Reporting

Year.
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REIRE e RERRESATIRAZEIE The source of data in preparing the ESG report is primarily
FTEFXRBAANIBELM  LARHBTEE based on the internal policies and documents, as well as
BEMERMENER - SEKS#ETE information provided by various key stakeholders. Cheuk
HEEMREEE He2EaXMEARZ=MA Nang will continue to optimise its data collection and
w2 EEWRENMERSE  WELSEAHE reporting system over the three aspects: environmental
EHE RaAEHEsEE2M2MEME - management, social responsibility and governance, and

gradually expand the disclosure scope to improve the

quality and comprehensiveness of the report in the long

term.

BE ¥R = A Reporting Principles
KBETIIRIBEFEBSH A XS AR QA This Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
([BE2 A ]) % E MR B ERC2Fr#, 2 (38  Guide contained in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing
B e kEARAREESIDER - 5§45 the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
WHBEHEAEBRIRE @ KEAREHA 2 Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), for the purpose of
BEAREFIENBERENIEE  UKHEEHARE identifying and making disclosure of the material matters
BErEHEMmIFEXRRLBETHEET - and key performance indicators in relation to the Group's
ABEER _E-_RAFNLAZ-ZF+=ZHKE ESG and promoting the full implementation of sustainable
SEEHN  ERRIE - development and social responsibilities by the Group. The
report was reviewed, confirmed and approved by the Board
on 23 September 2025.

KBENNBPEEFTAITBETHEAEE | The disclosure in this report complies with the “comply
FoBBETIEEM] - [21] - [F#&I K or explain” requirements by following the reporting
[—H M WERRE - BERFILZEE principles of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance” and
RFRBAIERE L OJE - MBELRE X - “Consistency”. Please refer to the table below for our

understanding and response to such reporting principles.
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Bl AES EPHITE
Principle Context Our Action
2% BRERBCEFTECRHREF REMS RMEFOERE AT HBMEREA
MEELABETENRE HENERFH - |FHEERFENWEI  YEETE2NH
FFfh - ABBIEANERE e
Materiality The Report should contain the ESG We communicated with our
issues determined by the board that are stakeholders to understand their
sufficiently important to investors and other |concerns relating to sustainability
stakeholders. issues and conducted materiality
assessment to identify the material
topics.
1t BERAAETABREARERIESR & | RACEAKEOXH BEEGFAER
KRB HeREABRRMEERGOYE | TREMBEDIER  ELLERUET
AT R 5RE - ELERENEHA Bl DX - EFTSHAREATHEEN - £
HAMEFE YTHEEZENBERLTRALR BUELRZBUEAR -
Bz -

Quantitative

The Report should disclose key performance
indicators in ways that can be measured so
that the effectiveness of ESG policies and
management systems can be evaluated and
validated. Quantitative information should
be accompanied by a narrative, explaining

its purpose, impacts and giving comparative

We disclosed key performance
indicators, quantitative information
and the methodology from the
Group’s documents, data and
statistics. The Board is responsible
for the authenticity, accuracy and

completeness of the content of this

REBBIBEAKRAFEBEEMNLE -

data where appropriate. report.

i BREFRENR I EHE2RBMANKRRE - B2 RANERESEBELARENRELR
AREGTREMTERETEERRINHAGN | KRB RRFFERT B -
EE BRI EMBA o

Balance The Report should provide an unbiased We aimed to keep balanced and
picture of our performance. The Report unbiased manner by disclosing both
should avoid selections, omissions, achievements and challenges in this
or presentation formats that may report.
inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment by the Report reader.

— 2t *Eiﬁgﬁﬁ—@lmﬁﬁ Fatk  RE | RMAER BN ITE  BEREMMA L

P - I 3 P 1T B9 (X o] 2R B 4 LH AR R o

Consistency

The Report should use consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful
comparisons of ESG data over time.

We adopted consistent methodologies
to ensure the comparability of the
information and with explanations for

any changes made.
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Stakeholders

Communication Channels

Stakeholder Engagement

Cheuk Nang believes understanding and taking actions
to tackle key stakeholders’ concerns and expectations is
the goal to achieve sustainable development. The Group
actively communicates with key stakeholders through
different communication channels in order to ensure
comments and feedbacks from major stakeholders could be
effectively and timely addressed. The following table shows
the expectations and concerns of the major stakeholders
as identified by Cheuk Nang, and the corresponding
management responses.

SR BE EEERE

Expectations and

concerns

Management Feedback

ENS - BEPRIGER - #fE - HERETTA %’J?E\E PARIZ R P F
- Fu%&ﬁ&i“%f% - BERMMER m RAER]
- BAEHNEHEEHER - ﬁiﬁhﬁiﬁgﬂﬁ%&ﬁuu BER
BERPmEE
Customers — Customer service hotline |- Integrity — Ensuring contractual obligations
— Products and service — High quality are in place to protect customers’

quality

and telephone calls

Opinions through email

services and benefits and rights; and

products Maximizing customers’
satisfaction by providing high

quality services and products.
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K& BERE HEREE EEERE
Expectations and
Stakeholders Communication Channels  concerns Management Feedback
(= B AXBE TERREFRRELSE
Bl e REmED |- BERETE EIERTEE TIRRS
BEEFERELE EXRER %mﬁa/ﬂﬁ BEE R B EE
FEHE LN PAtR T 8E
ﬁﬁ%ﬂé%a&%ﬁﬁ 5 T HEas
Employees Conferences Humanity Paying attention to occupational
Training, seminars and Health and safety health and safety;
briefing sessions Career Creating a comfortable working
Occupational health and development environment;
safety Labor rights Encouraging employees to
Equal Opportunities participate in continuous
education and professional
training to enhance competency;
and
Ensuring contractual obligations to
protect labor rights.
R FRLPHERE KA DK BRBRFAFAERRAAEAE
BFRBAFKE MR RE REREHBBE
BFEERX SR BER TIEFREPRRE - &
RERRE R REBEBX BT E A o
Shareholders Annual and interim Return on Ensuring transparency and
reports investment efficient communications through
Annual general meetings Interest protection annual general meetings;
Announcements in HKEx Information Publishing annual and interim
transparency reports; and
Operating risks Publishing regular announcements
management in HKEX.
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Communication Channels
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Management Feedback

M MRBAR R RBIEE X
B R
BERXH - EMERLE -

The Government

— Official letters
— Public consultations
— Publicity and

Notifications

— Compliance with
applicable laws
and regulations

— Fulfill tax
obligation

— Cooperation for

mutual benefits

Upholding integrity and operating
business in compliance with laws
and regulations; and

Paying tax on time in return

contributing to the society.

HER, REE |- BXEa - WE - BRETAHRME
- KREFHE - BERANRBERE |- NEENEIERETT \EEPEE/EKEPE‘H
Suppliers/ — Business meetings — Integrity — Ensuring contractual obligations
Constructors |- Performance assessment |- Transparent are in place; and
procurement — Performing supplier/contractor
process selection with due care.
o) - HREERBE - HE2H - HEEIZEQDEY K
- ENHIREIR - BTERERERE O RIER @
- BR®RE REBAKRLOKWER - NEERD Y

RIBHTE -

The Community

— Community investment

and donation

— Involvement in
society

— Energy saving

— Resources

conversation

Encouraging staff to participate in
charitable events; and
Implementing eco-friendly
measures to reduce, reuse and

recycle resources to minimize

environmental impact.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Cheuk Nang values the opinion given by stakeholders.
Taking the stakeholders’ expectations into consideration,
we analysed the importance of various ESG issues.
Factors such as business strategy objectives and policies,
industry standards, legal and regulatory responsibilities,
environmental protection, use of resources, quality control
and employee protection, etc. were considered in order to

identify the impact of the business operations.

The procedures for the materiality assessment are as follow:

Step 1:
topics listed in the ESG Reporting Guide and the latest

Identification — With reference to the sustainability

sustainability trends in the industry, 16 ESG issues were
identified where they posed higher importance to both
stakeholders and our business operation:

Fih BRIE - HEREREE
ESG lIssues

ESG Aspects

A, RIE Al: PR 1 AR E RS PRI
Environmental Emissions Reduction in greenhouse gas emissions
A2: BEREM 2 fiE &R
Use of Resources Resources saving
A3: IRERARAEIR 3 BERIDAEENRERZE
The Environment and Natural Minimizing the Group’s environmental
Resources impact
A4: BIREAML 4 RIEAEEE
Climate Change Climate-related issues
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BRiE -dHEREREE Pt BRI HEREREER
ESG Aspects No. ESG Issues
B. & B1: Ef® 5 RERANMEE
Social Employment Employee’s hiring and retention
6 ’E®=F
Employee’s welfare
B2: fZFRMEZ S 7 BERREELE
Health and Safety Occupational health and safety
B3: R MIEHI 8 REER
Development and Training Employee’s development
B4: & TR 9 |BIIEEIREEIST
Labour Standards Prevention of forced and child labour
B5: fHfE i E 10 |FERFEHEERNRERF
Supply Chain Management Process of supplier selection and
assessment
B6: EmBfE 11 | REFEPLE
Product Responsibility Protection of customers privacy

12 | RREIER
Handling of complaints
13 | REMBERE

Protection of intellectual property

rights
14 |EmEERERE
Product quality and responsibility

B7: RES 15 |[REF/RRTERE
Anti-corruption Anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering
B8: @K E 16 |[HEKRE
Community Investment Community investment
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F2H BEARF-RETIRE & N&E Step 2: Prioritisation — To determine the materiality of the
REBCEEN  BRAEBESREIEEBHI ESG issues, we have assessed and scored the relevance/
FERNMEZER  ROE108ZH (05T importance of each of the ESG issues based on the views of
R 10AEMEE) B KERE - (&K our senior management and key stakeholders on a scale of
EREEMMAEBIEE EEMETIMKE 0to 10 (0 is irrelevant and 10 is crucial). The vertical axis
Ao ATEEMEE Mty RINIEEE  of the below materiality matrix shows the result of external
HER(EEMHEZTE)  EEBIFE/RA  assessment (impact on stakeholders) and the horizontal axis
M EER (HEBHB Z2FE) - i LA presents the internal assessment result (impact on business).
SRZIRE HEREAREEAEMEZ - The ESG issues that fall within top right-hand quadrant are

of greatest importance.

ERMER
Materiality Matrix
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g .
= L
j"S ® 15
= ®3 ®)
S
me W
N S ® 10
S 6 o1 e5
& &
gés @5 ® 12
Wz ° 13
w4 16 ©4
2%3 ®3
7;_.‘_’2 ®9
(%)
=1
0
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
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Internal assessment (Impact on business)
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Fr 5% BRIE HERELEHE No Topics of environmental, social and governance
1 AR = R HE K 1 Reduction in greenhouse gas emissions

2 £ & B R 2 Resources saving

3 BEROAEENRREZE 3 Minimizing the Group’s environmental impact
4 RIRABEERE 4 Climate-related issues

5 EERANREE 5 Employee’s hiring and retention

6 EE &7 6 Employee’s welfare

7 BEREFRZ S 7 Occupational health and safety

8 EE#ERE 8 Employee’s development

9 PrlEE T Rl T 9 Prevention of forced and child labour

10 R N h I EE R F 10 Process of supplier selection and assessment
11 REZ PR 11 Protection of customers privacy

12 B IR IR 12 Handling of complaints

13 RIS NG EE 13 Protection of intellectual property rights

14 EnEEREE 14 Product quality and responsibility

15 RESRREEE 15 Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering

16 HERRE 16 Community investment

3L  ERH-AREBEUERMATHERE
ENEE FRREZSEEZEEEFNLER
RBENTEGHEITEFME

. R

FREAH  EBENES
EMTE WAPRA  ARIERIE
Eﬁ;&&%ﬁé)ﬁﬁ@&lﬁ%%ﬂh%ﬁﬁiif%ﬁﬁz
E o BRERRBAOEHRBENTANFE  BK
REAIFEZRMNEE  AEBEBEGREA
HERRYPS UEBEMABBHRAEE
YEFR Bt — RIERRFEE ©

>

Y A EE A —
= -3

Step 3: Application — To address the most mattered issues to
us as well as our stakeholders, Cheuk Nang’s responses to
these important issues have been elaborated in more details

in the following sections of this report.

A. Environmental

Cheuk Nang understands that business operation will exert
certain impacts on the surrounding environment, and it is
our responsibility to adopt environment-friendly practices
across business development in order to minimize impacts
on the environment. In order to achieve the goal to alleviate
adverse impacts on the environment and pursuing long-term
sustainable developments, the Group actively integrates
green protection concepts and implemented a series of
environmental protection measures into our projects and

daily office operations.

Annual Report 2025 44 « CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED &t (%) 5RAH



RIE-HERERERE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

MAIREFE - FaeiFEEITHRESEIEE  During the Reporting Year, Cheuk Nang had limited number
B E(BKEEUNYERERREEYWESE  of ongoing construction projects, and the business operation
EREAE  MEFEEPATIRIEEE - were mainly focused on property leasing and provision of

property management services that mainly operated in an

office setting.

Al: HER A1: Emissions
BERBCEEREE) BN Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

BRi - AEBEBZ=RECEERE) BERA  Currently, the main sources of Greenhouse Gas (GHGQG)
FTERFREERB BB EFELL LR  Emissions of the Group consists of the fuel consumption by
TEHRITRT IS R « B TR A ZSHEM - motor vehicles, and flights taken for business trips. With the
WHSEMKSERAIERIFEHRER aim to reduce these emissions and introduce sustainable
o RIS ATHREARER - LR measures within Cheuk Nang’s operations, we have taken
Klass WEEEBFERKRELEFZE:E company vehicles to regular maintenance to ensure fuel
B U A EEEAE o B - TFIIRE  efficiency, and encourage employees to utilize video and
K ANBBEEMARSEHEG - WAET phone meeting equipment to reduce face-to-face meetings.
RHEETT A - IRAE RERM AT - Furthermore, we have also upgraded our company vehicles
NERBEMELEEFORARIFERRE - to electric models, and enhanced our facilities to more

energy efficient technologies to ensure the sustainability of

our operation in the long term.

BN LENS —EAEZBEERELEMHE Another main source of GHG emissions from our operation
RENRAENAE - AEBEBEBRMESFE comes from the electricity consumption in our office. The
BIEE S 2 R BE BT RESR /R - BB MEBE T Group have educated and encouraged our staff to commit
BAORBIFMEIREE IR - ELMETEA on good energy-saving practices by providing continuous
AEBERMEK AN &R - /A BB  training and affixing energy saving reminders. Not only do
AR E @tk 2 B MO A BERR © these practices bring cost-saving benefit to the Group, it also

contributes in lowering the carbon footprint and emission

reduction of the Group.

B DEBETEBCERSLEEHEH) © We commit to comply with the Air Pollution Control
N85 B H MIRFEIRIE - RAIREFE » Ordinance in Hong Kong to strengthen pollution control and
BREE 45430 —E LR EEHEN 0 E protect the environment. During the Reporting Year, Cheuk
4593 T mBmEY 027 TRIESE(YWE  Nang generated 54.30 tons of carbon dioxide equivalent
0.44T R FEHY) - NEEREREELEHNAE emissions, produced 5.93 kg of nitrogen oxides, 0.27 kg of
ERF—R/REFERD35% TEREA A sulphur oxides and 0.44 kg of particulate matter. This year,
HEFRARE A EEEROEEMZE our total greenhouse gas emission was reduced by 35%
ERARD EHEEREREEME comparing to the last Reporting Year, which was mainly
WR D due to the upgrading of vehicles, and the reduction of

business air travels within our daily operations that led to

the reduction of the overall greenhouse gas emitted.
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The Group have set the target in FY2021/22 to reduce GHG
Emissions by at least 5% by 2026. In order to achieve the
target, the Group has been actively choosing clean and
efficient energy and is committed to downsizing energy
consumption to reduce direct and indirect GHG emissions.
Our total GHG Emissions this year represents a reduction of
30% on the Intensity of greenhouse gas emission comparing
to FY2021/22. Looking ahead, we will continue to assess
our GHG emissions and influence on our stakeholders
and our business respectively, and adjust and update our

emission targets if applicable.

Wastes

During the Reporting Year, Cheuk Nang had limited
construction works in Hong Kong and they were mainly
outsourced to external contractors. Most of the hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes in construction sites have
been handled and disposed by third-party contractors in
accordance with the Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong
Kong, hence there is limited information available regarding
the construction waste. For the daily operation in office
setting, Cheuk Nang mainly generated recyclable wastes
— papers and domestic garbage, which are handled by the

property management service provider.

To minimize the waste of papers and domestic garbage,
the Group applies the concept of “4R” (i.e. Reduce, Reuse,
Replace and Recycle approach) by taking a step forward as

below:

° Adopt electronic means of communications (such as
email, mobile and website) and electronic filing of

documents as far as possible;

o Use duplex printing for documents and adjusting the

print area before printing;
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o EBEFEMEMA  BEBEIHXHNE
RN

Reuse waste paper for printing draft documents;

e WEEKREAMMRUHKBEREE

Collect used paper for recycling;

o FIAEMHMERBRL URFEBZ
I54

Evaluate the usage of material to avoid overstock; and

e HMEVMERESBEAEBERMEENIE - Provide guidance and instruction to employees on

R e source separation of waste.

MAMREEE - AEBSEFEO0.77MELLIR - & During the Reporting Year, the Group consumed 0.77 tons
EFEN11% ° BIREBRIEE - WHH1EE  of paper, which accounts for an increase of 11% when
FRE  AREBEMBZAZENR —ZZ =75 compared to the previous year. In order to protect the
FEHRRERLDZL5% - BEER PR natural environment and prevent waste of resources, the
EER RMCKEEERMEMEREEFSEKA Group aims to reduce waste of paper by at least 5% by
BERAER R EBRELEPESE 2026. To minimize the waste of resources, we have adopted
REEZEY)  MIMMINEEIE TFEHBEF3C green office management for our entire business operation
B mIEEA M REAEMmITEI )AL o to reduce waste generation in the daily operations, while
BINMERANZTEOEH T E B UFE - we also to encourage our staff to use electronic documents
UWETERAMAR (BIRFTEHl T —HEA4  rather than paper copies; and use double sided printing
iR) ° method. Recycling boxes near office photocopiers are also

placed to collect paper that can be reused (i.e. those printed

on only one side).
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A2: Use of Resources
Energy, water and other consumption

Electricity is the main resource used in our operation, which
is consumed by various office equipment, e.g. computers,
printers and light bulbs. We have proactively taken a
series of energy-saving measures to achieve efficient use
of resources, such as to keep the office temperature at 24
to 26 degrees Celsius, turning off unnecessary lighting,
and deploying energy-efficient devices which carry energy
efficiency label. Cheuk Nang understands that reducing
energy consumption not only cut greenhouse gas emissions
but also reduces unnecessary expense for the Group,
and therefore plan to replace lighting or equipment with
automatic low power mode or energy-saving mode with the
objective of minimizing energy consumption, and enhance
our facilities with more sustainable alternatives in the future.
During the Reporting Year, the Group consumed 16.99
MWh of electricity. Although there was an increase of 5%
in electricity consumption compared to the last Reporting
Year, total energy consumption is reduced by 25%
compared to the previous year due to the upgrades of the
company vehicles to the more sustainable electric models.
Furthermore, total energy consumption also decreased by
24% compared to 2021/22, which is on track on meeting
our target of reducing energy consumption by at least 5% by
2026.

As the water supply of our office premises are controlled
by our property management service provider, information
on the consumption of water incurred from our daily office
operation is currently unavailable. Nevertheless, Cheuk
Nang have encouraged employees to minimize their water
usage by displaying water-saving signs within the office
premises in order to promote and remind our employees
to reduce water wastage. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not encounter any issues in sourcing water.
On the other hand, since packaging is not involved in the
usual course of Cheuk Nang’'s business operations as a
property developer, the use of packaging material during the

Reporting Year is not applicable.
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A3: Environment and Nature Resources

As disclosed above, since the major environmental impact
of the Group are mainly contributed by the use of mobile
vehicles, usage of electricity and the consumption of
paper in our daily office operations, our impact on the
environment and nature resources from our business
operation in Hong Kong are limited. However, Cheuk Nang
is aware of the importance in protecting the environment for
the well-being of the society and the future generations, and
are committed to further alleviate the adverse impact on the
environment in the future by adopting more resource-saving
and environmentally-friendly measure whenever possible,
and enhance the environmental awareness of our staff and
business partners, and contribute to the collective goal of

sustainable development.

A4: Climate Change

Climate change and sustainability have gained significant
attention in recent years. With investors being more
attentive than ever to a company’s devotion towards
sustainability, regulators across different countries have
been implementing sustainable development in responding
to public demand. Meanwhile, there is also an increase
in effort from companies with its energy conservation and
emission reduction measures. Cheuk Nang understands
that various risks of climate change may potentially have
a financial impact on our business operations, hence
we took effort in identifying the environmental impacts
attributable to its business activities, and have carefully
managed our operation in order to minimize these impacts
where possible. Furthermore, we are hoping to incorporate
more sustainable development elements and actions to
our business operations to prepare us from issues that may
In FY2021/22, we established

our reduction target by reducing our GHG emissions, waste

arise from climate change.

and energy consumption by at least 5% in the next 5 years
based on FY2021/22 levels for GHG Emissions, waste and
energy consumption, and are currently on track to achieve
the targets. Looking forward, we will continue to disclose
our progress in achieving the targets annually, and will
continuously assess and update our sustainability targets if

necessary.
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Other than reducing the environmental impact caused
by the Group’s business operations, Cheuk Nang have
identified the physical and transition risks caused by climate
change that may have material impact on the Group’s

business.

Physical Risks

We believe that extreme weather changes brought about
by climate change will be one of the unavoidable climate
risks for business activities, and extreme weather events
such as large-scale wildfires, earthquakes and typhoons
will bring dangers to the living environment and affect our
properties and operations, which ultimately result in loss of
revenue. In response to these physical risks, the Group has
internal guidelines in place for employees and departments
to respond to major disasters and in cases of emergency,
which will be regularly reviewed and improved to reduce

the climate risk to the business operations.

Transition Risks

As the market is aiming towards a low-carbon and more
climate-friendly future, regulators are and will continue
to tighten environmental regulations and climate-related
legislations, where companies are required to follow
increasingly stringent disclosure for sustainability reporting,
and are required to assert more control to their emissions.
Moreover, investors, customers and other stakeholders are
becoming more aware of the sustainability performance
from corporations and their commitment to conduct green
businesses. The Group recognises the potential risks such
as losing market competitiveness and potential reputational
risks and legal risks when failing to respond to such

changes.
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In order to deal with these transition risks, the Group
closely monitors the changes in the business environment
and relevant laws and regulations, and have taken account
into the recommendations of Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) to enhance the
governance processes and integrate the consideration of the
environmental and climate-related risks and opportunities

into our future risk assessment.

B. Social

Acknowledging the significance of developing a mutually
beneficial community for sustainability and prosperity,
Cheuk Nang ingrains social responsibility into all aspects of
operations. The Group will continue to devote to the society

through improving our contribution and services.

B1: Employment

Employees are the foundation of our long-term business
success. Cheuk Nang is dedicated to build a respectful and
harmonious workplace in order to enhance the working

incentives and motivations of our staff.

The Group attracts and retains talents with competitive
remuneration packages, generous welfare and benefits. The
Group also understands and respects different cultures.
We adhere to the principle of equal employment so that
employees can enjoy fair and reasonable employment
and competitive opportunities. When arranging jobs and
repositioning, Cheuk Nang provides equal opportunity to all
employees regardless of gender, age, ethnicity, nationality,
native place, race, religion, political affiliation, sexual
orientation, marital status and other aspects of diversity and
treat different backgrounds or identities differently. We also
promote and make salary adjustment by a fair and non-

discriminatory evaluation procedure.
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The Group provides employees with competitive
compensation, holiday benefits and discretionary bonus.
All of our staff are entitled to the medical benefits and a
5.5 working days arrangement, MPF schemes, retirement
benefits, annual leaves, marriage leave, maternity leave
and other leaves in line with the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong, Minimum Wage Ordinance and Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong. To
understand our areas of improvement, we try to address
the concern or complaints from our staff. As stated
in the Group’s policy “Code of Conduct”, complaints
could be sent directly to the Executive Chairman, and
all the feedback and complaints will be handled with
confidentiality. For leaving staff, we organise an exit
interview with them in order to listen to their opinions and
feedbacks towards Cheuk Nang. Dismissal of employees is
executed in compliance with the Employment Ordinance of

Hong Kong and/or other relevant local laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Year, Cheuk Nang stringently complies
with the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong,

including but not limited to:

o Employment Ordinance;

o Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance of
Hong Kong;

o Minimum Wage Ordinance;

o Employee’s Compensation Ordinance;

° Sex Discrimination Ordinances;

o Disability Discrimination Ordinance;

o Family Status Discrimination Ordinance;

° Race Discrimination Ordinance;

o The Hong Kong Bill of Rights Ordinance;
o Inland Revenue Ordinance; and

° Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance.
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B2: Health and safety

Cheuk Nang cares about employees’ talent and places
their health and safety at the top position. We strictly
comply with the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance at all times and take necessary safety measures
in construction sites to prevent occupational hazards,
including precautionary tools against extreme summer heat
and winter coldness, noise cancelling earplugs, insulated
boots and gloves, and antistatic clothing. In addition,
Cheuk Nang periodically inspects the fire extinguishers
and other fire prevention equipment at sites to ensure their
effectiveness. Every case of injury or accident and potential
danger must be reported, and remediation action shall be
taken to improve the safety of workplaces. There was no
reported case for work-related fatalities and lost days due to
work injury in the financial year of 2022/23, 2023/24 and
2024/25.

To ensure a hygienic working environment, the Group
periodically engages professional service providers to carry
out air-conditioning system cleaning, pest control and
carpet disinfection treatment in the office for the killing of
viruses and bacteria. We also provide first-aid kits as well
as medical insurance to all staff as safety measures. Cheuk
Nang also encourages staff to join the fire drill organised
by the property management service provider to train their
readiness in responding to fire emergencies. The Group has
also set up guidance for work arrangements in emergencies,
such as typhoons, rainstorm warnings, strikes, protests and

other circumstances.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 (([) HR/45  Annual Report 2025 41t



RIE-HEREREE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B3: R RiZH
AREBHAAATEETIUSKERBITEBE
UNRBTHERG2EXER BERERRE
BIRHEI REXBETIERREFER
Fh BMAE TREEBEI - BAE
IPRETRRE  TEEEEBEBUS
BERE MOERERERTE2ARBRTE
Allo tboh  REE TS E) B T2 Wi BT
sk HERAR AT LR (B NBE IR B M B %
ZRERER) B HINBIFEIIETE - R H
TYEMHBARRE  RIFABERILHER D=
KB R Hqth B -

B4: % T XA
ANEEREEELRNEN  MEMEEZRE

BREIRBHSTERBESTIANZ
HEARANEW® - Ft - FREFFERAF
I B 18 38 <7 BB (R BB R ERDE R &
ER  ERFERAKNA - 2B HH
BRAXHLRYEEEELETERES  UH
IEEI55R A N AT EBIBEEE - bk -
AREBERETREGH B TERHET
Ei%%‘ﬁﬁﬁi%fﬂﬂ%?ﬁﬂ@’l‘%iﬁ?lf/ﬁ 2
HAIABER TE 8 TREMERR -

RERERASEE LB %Dféﬁs_ﬁﬂ%ﬁ*&

B3: Development and training

The Group understands the need for staff training to carry
out their duties at a high standard and for their own career
development. To support the development of employees
and maintain their competitiveness, we provide on-the-
job training to employees. The training covers a range of
topics that not only include technical skills relevant to
their positions, but also on health and safety and codes of
conduct. Besides, the Group also encourages employees to
attend external training programs held by the government
or relevant recognised institutes, such as Vocation Training
Council and Occupational Safety and Health Council,
to enhance their work-related skills, maintain up-to-date

knowledge, and share experiences among other expertise.

B4: Labour standards

Human rights are considered to be a fundamental right,
and we fully agree that hiring child labour and forced
labour violates the fundamental human rights protocol
Thus, Cheuk Nang

places great emphasis on fairness and strictly abide by the

of international labour conventions.

Employment Ordinance and relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong. Cheuk Nang reviews the identity documents
and conducts background checks relating to candidates
prior to signing an employment contract to prevent having
an employment relationship with a person under 15. Also,
the Group strictly follows our employment contracts and
will not force our staff to work against their will or under
any kind of threat. We offer compensation of leave to staff
who works overtime and they are free to resign upon notice

to the Group.
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B5: Supply chain management

As a property developer, Cheuk Nang engages contractors
to carry out the construction work and purchase some of
the materials and consumables ourselves. We promote fair
and open competition, and aims at developing long-term
relationship with suppliers and contractors based on mutual
trust as stated in the Group’s policy “Code of conduct”.
To ensure our contractors and suppliers share the same
business philosophy in running the business with a fair and
integrity manner, suppliers and contractors are required
to pass through strict assessment procedures or tendering
procedures before engaging in business activities with
Cheuk Nang.

In addition to the financial and quality aspects, suppliers’
and contractors’ attitudes toward the environment and the
society will also be a part of the assessment criteria. The
Group will not consider suppliers or contractors who have
been in bribery cases or have incurred incidents related
to material safety or environmental incidents. The Group
performs on-going and regular reviews on the contractors’
works to ensure the quality of the construction works are
within the Group’s standard to lower the environmental and
social risks. During the Reporting Year, the Group engaged
4 contractors and 10 suppliers in Hong Kong respectively.
In the future, the Group will consider giving priorities to
suppliers and contractors with Environmental Management

System Certificates when feasible.

Besides, the Group will adopt initiatives, to enhance the
development of “green supply chain”. Our suppliers are
also encouraged to adopt the best environmental and social
practices and to disseminate the pursuit of sustainability
into the core business, through develop energy-saving and

consumption-reducing policies.
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B6: Product responsibility

Assuring the quality and safety of our products are the
topmost important. Cheuk Nang cares about customers
and set high standards to ensure the architectural quality
and commercial values of the properties. Product quality
is controlled throughout the construction processes and
ongoing management and maintenance. We perform tight
selection procedures of materials, suppliers and contractors
at the beginning stages of the projects. We pay full attention
to monitoring the work performed by the contractors and
take detailed acceptance procedures upon completion of
the project to ensure all our requirements have been strictly
followed. After taking a series of quality audits to ensure our
products were safe and up to standard, we did not record
any product recall concerning the products safety during the

Reporting Year.

In view of the matters of public concern over data privacy,
all the personal information received from the Group
regarding our business operations has been handled with
due care and in accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and similar regulations to fulfil key stakeholders’
expectations on information security and confidentiality.
As emphasized in the policy “Code of Conduct”, it is the
responsibility of each director and employee to provide
adequate safeguards to prevent the personal data of
customers, business partners, shareholders and customers to
be abused or misused. To preserve the confidentiality of the
data, only authorised persons have access to such personal

data.

The Group respects all intellectual property rights. To
avoid infringing intellectual property rights and to comply
with relevant licensing terms, the Group has prohibited
employees from using a pirate version of software as well as
duplicating, installing or using the software in violation of

its copyright or license terms.
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In case of any complaints related to product quality, data
Cheuk Nang will

strictly follow the complaints handling procedures as stated

privacy or intellectual property rights,

in the policy “Code of Conduct” to ensure the complaints

will be investigated and handled with due care.

B7: Anti-Corruption

All employees, including directors, shall uphold the code
of ethics, advocate fair competition and act against bribery
according to the Group’s policy “Code of Conduct” and
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap.21) of Hong Kong.
The Group takes zero-tolerance towards all kinds of illegal
activities, such as corruption, bribery, money laundering,
forgery, embezzlement and collusion case. The Group
has set up a clear reporting channel for all staff to report
any violation noted from an individual or its departments.
The Group is committed to protect the whistle-blower and
keep his identity confidential. In addition, all staff shall
not accept or request any personal benefit or advantage
in connection with his or her duties and with the business
of the Group. Anyone who has conflicts of interest must

declare and obtain prior written approval of the Group.

In case of any violation of laws or “Code of Conduct”
established by the Group, Cheuk Nang adopts disciplinary
actions with no mercy and hesitation. During the Reporting
Year, there was no legal case regarding corrupt practices
that was brought against Cheuk Nang or its employees,
and we strictly complied with the Prevention of Bribery

Ordinance.

Cheuk Nang provides anti-corruption training to Directors
and employees through e-training, articles and video in
order to strengthen the integrity awareness and professional
ethics of all employees, so as to create a fair and honest
Due to limited resources of the
Cheuk Nang did not

maintain training record in the anti-corruption training by

working environment.

Human Resources Department,

employees during the Reporting Year.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 (([) HR/45  Annual Report 2025 41t



RIE-HERERHRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BS: HERE B8: Community investment
MR FI L EREM ML REL BB R It is the primary corporate social responsibility of us to
MEBEPCEMLESET - S4EMAG > LR 2  contribute to our community where we operate. Cheuk
B A EREBKHRE@MBIMER - B - Nang believes that community involvement could bring a
HM/MEEBE THRA—#H28ExE T KN positive return to both society and the business. Meanwhile,
HRTE - MBI REMEEEE - KK » & we also encourage our staff to participate in voluntary
B ES KR EEm T HH @58 - B and charitable services with their families to build friendly
MMESH2EMLEES - WEMAEARMEME community relations. In the future, Cheuk Nang will
EEESE W AOREMLRMEEEL o continue to seek opportunities to support community
programmes actively. We also proactively participate in
community activities to create a caring atmosphere in
the neighbourhood and strive to promote harmony and

prosperity in the community.
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REHBRE

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY!'

B Environmental
—E-_m/ —E-=
BE BRANER “IfE “hEE
Aspects KPIs 2024/25 2023/24
AT : BERL? AE/M (TNOx]) Tr(F5r)) 5.93 6.27
AT: Emissions? Nitrogen oxides (“NOX") Kilogram (“kg")
A (1sox]) Fr(FR)) 0.27 0.37
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”") Kilogram (“kg")
RH (TPM]) Fr(Frl) 0.44 0.46
Particulate matter (“PM”) Kilogram (“kg")
AL2 RERE BE1-EEHEHR
A1.2: Greenhouse gas® Scope 1 - Direct emissions
nE — Bl BN OAMEE) 48.29 67.05
Motor vehicles Carbon dioxide equivalent emission
(in tonnes)
ER-SREEBYRAS ZELREBHH (AMTE) 48.29 67.05
Total direct carbon dioxide Carbon dioxide equivalent
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)
ER-SRERIREE “ELRERHR 2.30 2.92
(AWE) BEAR
Intensity of direct carbon dioxide |Carbon dioxide equivalent
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)/Total number
of Employee

v KREEEEREA TR

mAEBRR

FIBSFHEA&MEE T AR/ NERIE21{EL -

All figures have been rounded up to 2 decimal places, unless otherwise specified.
2 HFRMIIVRBEREER S AT CRAEERE L RERmEI N MR —
BEIRERIN T - _F A TIEN [ EHER — 82 REFERER | (https:/ecib.emsd.gov.hk/index.

php/en/energy-utilisation-index-en/transport-sector-en)st & ©

CIRIBRBAERIERERES AR

The emission is calculated based on the “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” published by HKEx and “Energy Utilisation Index — Transport Sector” latest published in
April 2022 by Electrical and Mechanical Services Department of HKSAR (https://ecib.emsd.gov.hk/index.php/en/
energy-utilisation-index-en/transport-sector-en).

I E R nJiFESU%EF A X5 A T3 ey (anfa 3R
el E

The greenhouse gas emission is calculated based on the “How to prepare an ESG Report” Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEXx.

B RERME)N MR IRIBEARAERIEIRER
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—E-m/ —EC-=
EH BRENER “IfE “EE

Aspects KPIs 2024/25 2023/24

HE2-BEENR

Scope 2 - Indirect emissions

RENES “SCHEE M AR E) 11.55 11.02
Acquired Electricity Carbon dioxide equivalent emission
(in tonnes)
BE_SLREBFRAE “EmERBHR (UM E) 11.55 11.02
Total indirect carbon dioxide Carbon dioxide equivalent
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)
BE-—EtRERFRER —ERERKR 0.55 0.48
(AM5HE)EEAY
Intensity of indirect carbon Carbon dioxide equivalent
dioxide equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)/Total number
of Employee
BE3-HiHH
Scope 3 - Other emissions
ERERZENEER “ELREEH M ABE) 3.71 3.35
Paper waste disposed at landfills | Carbon dioxide equivalent emission
(in tonnes)
EEBBMEIRTT “SHE SR (AN E) 1.30 2.48
Business air travel by employees | Carbon dioxide equivalent emission
(in tonnes)
At —AREBHFHAE “EmERBHER (UM E) 5.02 5.83
Total other carbon dioxide Carbon dioxide equivalent
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)
At —StmEBHFREE ZELBREERR(AMHE)/ 0.24 0.25
BEAY
Intensity of other carbon dioxide |Carbon dioxide equivalent
equivalent emission emission (in tonnes)/Total number
of Employee
BERRERAE
Total greenhouse gas emission
BERBHBAR “EmERKR (AR 64.86 83.90
Total greenhouse gas emission Carbon dioxide equivalent
emission (in tonnes)
BERBHEREE ZELBRERFR(AMHE)/ 3.09 3.65

Intensity of greenhouse gas
emission

EEAR

Carbon dioxide equivalent
emission (in tonnes)/Total number
of Employee
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Em

BREXRER

—E-m/
“hHEE

—g-=
“MEE

Aspects KPIs 2024/25 2023/24
A13: BERED FEXRERRNAE g id i
A13: Total hazardous waste produced | Tonnes Nil Nil
Hazardous waste* FELRERRNEE W/ EEAY i i
Intensity of hazardous waste Tonnes/Total number of Employee Nil Nil
produced
A4 BEBEYP T i 0.77 0.70
Al.4: Papers Tonnes
Non-hazardous waste® EEREEY) & = i
Domestic wastes Tonnes Nil Nil
FELRERRNAE | 0.77 0.70
Total non-hazardous waste Tonnes
produced
FELRERRNTE W/ EEAY 0.04 0.03
Intensity of non-hazardous waste | Tonnes/Total number of Employee
produced
A2.1: BERS ERgEREER
A2.1: Energy® Direct energy consumption
3 KR 175.96 244.30
Unleaded petrol MWh
ERERARE KR 175.96 244.30
Total direct energy consumption | MWh
ERERRERE KRB/ EEAR 8.38 10.62
Intensity of direct energy MWh/Total number of Employee
consumption

v

SR AENBEERVEAE=7AE

RERIEREE Bt

ZEARERIEREL T ERRBRMNER -

The hazardous and non-hazardous wastes in construction sites have been handled and disposed by third-party
contractors, so this KPI is not applicable to our business.

RBEHANREERERNEENEREY -

Only includes waste directly controlled and generated by the Group.

SIEHE - BRERE
ERARINR T =—

FRAMOPREEH -

REREEDNRBEATEXZATEN(NFAEFRE HEREGRSINMHE—
REEFR(EERRABENEN)

5245 8 A 9 L
AT B A TSRO T TR B E S B

The energy consumption is calculated based on the “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by HKEx. For Energy indirect emissions (main sources from
purchased electricity), the emissions factors for Hong Kong-based operations is calculated based on the emission

intensity published by the Hong Kong Electric Company Limited in 2021.
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—E-m/ —EC-=

BE BRENER “hEE —REE
Aspects KPIs 2024/25 2023/24

BEEREE

Indirect energy consumption

RENEN KRB 16.99 16.20

Acquired Electricity MWh

MERREEE KB 16.99 16.20

Total indirect energy consumption | MWh

MREREETE kEE/EEAR 0.81 0.70

Intensity of indirect energy MWh/Total number of Employee

consumption

RERERE

Total energy consumption

BERERE KEE 192.94 260.51

Total energy consumption MWh

EREERE kEE/EEAR 9.19 11.33

Intensity of energy consumption | MWh/Total number of Employee
A2.2 : FEKE FKAE Y hHK il
A2.2: Total water consumption Cubic metre Nil Nil
Water consumption’ EARE UK/ BEAY i i

Intensity of water consumption | Cubic metre/Total number of Nil Nil

Employee

7 BERHUKTIHEYMEEERSHEERES - Bt -

ZEARARERL TERARRMNER -

As our water supply is controlled by the property management service provider, this KPI is not applicable to our

business.
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Social

—EgE-=
—EE
2023/24

—_Z=-_m
—EHEE
KPIs i 2024/25

g
i1 BREARER

B1.1: BREMH RERERES

B1.1: Total workforce By employment type
2B EE#E 21 23
Full time No. of employee
B BE#AE i i
Part time No. of employee Nil Nil
Bt EE D
By geographical region
B EE#E 21 23
Hong Kong No. of employee
gk by
By gender
ESRis EEHAE 7 10
Male No. of employee
Z % BE#AE 14 13
Female No. of employee
BRERE D
By age
30BRA T EEZHE 1 &
Below 30 No. of employee Nil
315405% EEHH 4 4
31-40 No. of employee
41E5058% EEHHA 4 4
41-50 No. of employee
50884 EEEH 12 15
Over 50 No. of employee
RESERF &S
By employee category
RAREEAR EE A 5 5
Senior management No. of employee
PAREEAR EE&E 5 4
Middle management No. of employee
—REE BEHHE 11 14
General staff No. of employee
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[Em ARERIER B —Z==-mm —===
—HEE —mERE
Aspects KPIs i 2024/25 2023/24
B1.2 : EERAX RERERE S
B1.2: Employee turnover By employment type
L % 5 17
Full time
% % s i
Part time Nil Nil
R EE 5
By geographical region
e % 5 17
Hong Kong
BRI E D
By gender
B % 14 10
Male
peqid % i 23
Female Nil
BERE D
By age
30BRA T %o £ "
Below 30 Nil Nil
31E405% % e &
31-40 Nil Nil
412505% % e 25
41-50 Nil
50B%A £ % 8 20
Over 50
B2.1 : AT{ERIEMILTHA | TIEMBZET RE#H = i
B b & Work-related fatalities |No. of employee Nil Nil
B2.1: Number and rate of ITHEEEZET % i [
work-related fatalities? Work-related fatalities Nil Nil
B2.2 : ATHBEATIERE RHIBERXIEAHK H & i i
B2.2: Lost days due to work |Lost days due to work |Days Nil Nil
injury® injury
8RB CEMRFEA UERIRTREIEMELRN TERBREESR -
There was no reported case for work-related fatalities and lost days due to work injury in the financial year of
2022/23.
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[Em ARERIER B —Z==-mm —===
—HEE —mERE
Aspects KPIs 2024/25 2023/24
B3.1: ZIlREA DL REREREE D
B3.1: Percentage of By employment type
employees trained Sy % 24 22
Full time
i3 % " i
Part time Nil Nil
RESERED
By employee category
SREEAE % 80 80
Senior management
RRERAR % 20 20
Middle management
—RBE %
General staff Nil Nil
B3.2 : T XM TFHEE |BREETKAZIINF |FE 30.60 33.00
B3.2: Average training hours | ¥FEk
completed Average training Hours
hours completed per
employee
RERERE D
By employment type
28 iy 30.60 33.00
Full time Hours
R R 81 i e
Part time Hours Nil Nil
RESERE D
By employee category
BRERAR i3 24 7.40 8.00
Senior management Hours
FAREEAR B 2K 1 1.25
Middle management Hours
—REE iSE = &
General staff Hours Nil Nil
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[Bm BEENIERE B —==-mS —===

—HEE —mERE
Aspects KPIs i 2024/25 2023/24
B5.1 : B MEAREMHE |HuESS
B5.1: Number of suppliers By geographical region

and contractor BB YIS S =1 14 14
A
Hong Kong No. of supplier
and contractor

B6.1 : EEXCEXEMBHY RHL2EEEEHMA % 5= i
FRZ2EEFEAMADK RN ERDEXE
A DL n AR B
B6.1: Percentage of total Total products sold Nil Nil
products sold or shipped or shipped subject to
subject to recalls for safety recalls for safety and
and health reasons health reasons
B6.2 : HIERAMNE mHY REBANEMNR | RFEE L L
BERBE
B6.2: Number of products Products related No. of complaint Nil Nil
related complaints received |complaints received
B7.1 : EEMGHVAERMHE |RERPALHITASL |RFEHE = i

HEBRHDIDEAK

BSEARRMNEE K

E=HER
B7.1: Number of concluded |Number of concluded |No. of case Nil Nil
legal cases legal cases regarding

corrupt practices
brought against the
issuer or its employees
during the reporting
period and the

outcomes of the cases

B8.1%B8.2 : L @IRE HIEREE

B8.1 & B8.2: Community Donation on focus area

investment HRERE ETT i i
Community investment | HKD Nil Nil
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B PR (BRI
e

Aspects
1 BE

AT: Emissions

HERERKEKSI)AE HKEx ESG Reporting Guide Content Index

—REER
FARENEE Hil HEZMH
General

disclosures Corresponding

and KPIs Description section
—REE BERERIMBEREBYN - MK R THEEE A1 BERY
S EERBERRVMNELSH

(@ BHX: R
(b) BETFHBEITABERTZENHBERK
R 01
B E R -
General Information on: A1: Emissions
disclosure (a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

AT.1 PR SR R AR B BRI B - RRBEBERHE
The types of emissions and respective Performance Data
emissions data. Summary

A1.2 BERBAESNE AMGE) R(MER) T | RRBERE
JZ o
Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) | Performance Data
and, where appropriate, intensity. Summary

A1.3 FEABAZREEMRE (AMETE) K (E |REBIERE
R)ZE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) | Performance Data
and, where appropriate, intensity. Summary

Al.4 FEAEBEZEEMAE (UBTHE) L(E |RABERE
R)ZE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in|Performance Data

tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. Summary
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Description

HEZHE

Corresponding

section

A1.5 RV E BE R E B i R PTISRCR o AT )
Description of measures to mitigate AT: Emissions
emissions and results achieved.
A1.6 M EEEERBERERYNIE  BEE |A1: BERY
EEWEENMTERR -
Description of how hazardous and non- A1: Emissions
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
A2 BRER | —REE ERERER(BREER - KEEMEME) (A2 BIRER
HYBRER e
A2: Use of General Policies on the efficient use of resources, A2: Use of Resources
Resources disclosure including energy, water and other raw
materials.
A2.1 REPAEDNERR AEEERERE (A | RREBERE
TETERGAE) REE -
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption | Performance Data
by type in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity. | Summary
A2.2 RBEKEREE - REBIERE
Water consumption in total and intensity. Performance Data
Summary
A2.3 et BER(E AT B R PTSRR o A2 - BIRER
Description of energy use efficiency A2: Use of Resources
initiatives and results achieved.
A2.4 A SKBUGE R /KIR A BERERE - ARRE (A2 BREMS
FHRKB S B RAAEKR -
Description of whether there is any issue in |A2: Use of Resources
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
A2.5 HRmATABREMHNEE (UEETE) & (10| A2 - BIRER

BR) BEEEMEE -
Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with

reference to per unit produced.

A2: Use of Resources
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—BRRER

ERANER HESH
General
disclosures Corresponding
Aspects and KPIs Description section
A3 IRERRR | —REE BMEBRTAHRERRABEREREARZE (A3 RELRRAER
ER A ERR e
A3: The General Policies on minimizing the issuer’s A3: The Environment
Environment disclosure significant impacts on the environment and |and Natural Resources
and Natural natural resources.
Resources A3.1 HMEREBHEHRERRAERNERTE A3 RERRAER
MEKBMEEABZENITTE -
Description of the significant impacts of A3: The Environment
activities on the environment and natural and Natural Resources
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.
FRIREE | —REE BRIREHECRMAEEHBRITAELERE A4 RIFEL
MEARIKMERETHIEE -
A4: Climate General Policies on identification and mitigation of |A4: Climate Change
Change disclosure significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
A4.1 MR ERAREEHRTAELEZENER (A4 RIREL

RIREEEE RELHTH -

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, and the actions taken to

manage them.

A4: Climate Change
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—REER
AEENEE Hil HEZH
General

disclosures Corresponding

and KPIs Description section
— R E BRI LR BEBRE - TERE - R(B1: &%
H - FERE  ZTt - REBAREMBEFS

EEERIEVIE
@ HEHX: K
(b) BTFHBETABERZENMEBEEREN
B
B & #} o
General Information on: B1: Employment
Disclosure (@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

B1.1 R BREL - FiRERMREDNE | RRBBERE
B -
Total workforce by gender, employment Performance Data
type, age group and geographical region. Summary

B1.2 mIER - FiRARNRMRESWEERAL RRBERE

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group | Performance Data

and geographical region. Summary
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—BRRER

FEREAMER #il HESH
General
disclosures Corresponding
Aspects and KPIs Description section
B2 : 2FELE —MRWE FRARHRZETIHERELMMREREB2RE B2 @FHELTE
HEEER
@ BX Rk
(b)y BFHBETABEARZENHEBELIZER
R
B R} o
B2: Health and | General Information on: B2: Health and Safety
Safety Disclosure (a) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations
that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
B2.1 ATEREEME T AB R X - RABIERE
Number and rate of work-related fatalities. | Performance Data
Summary
B2.2 EIEGEEAIEEE - RRBEBERHE
Lost days due to work injury. Performance Data
Summary
B2.3 PR B KRR B e 2460 - AR (B2 - BT R
BAETT MEER A -
Description of occupational health and B2: Health and Safety
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
B3 : R NLIEI | —RIEE BFRARTEEET LEBENMBNEEEDN B3 - R MIEI
R - WA EIES -
B3: Development|General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge |B3: Development and
and Training Disclosure and skills for discharging duties at work. Training

Description of training activities.
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Rig

Description

CHERERBRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HEZHE

Corresponding

section

B3.1 U REEERN (WS RAEEE TRER RRBERE
B)ErsXilEEB DL
The percentage of employees trained by Performance Data
gender and employee category (e.g. senior | Summary
management, middle management).
B3.2 RUEMEEEEMNE D  BREETAXI | RBEBIERE
B S 15 R 8K o
The average training hours completed per Performance Data
employee by gender and employee category. | Summary
B4 : TR | —MRWE BEHLEETH®RFISTH B4 : &5 TR
(@ HBEX: K
(b) BETHBRTABEARZENHBEEIRNK
A
B ER o
B4: Labour General Information on: B4: Labour standards
Standards Disclosure (@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced
labour.
B4.1 T FRIBEPIN R EARRET RRF| B4 : 5 T#R|
BT
Description of measures to review B4: Labour standards
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
B4.2 MR EBRREZRBREIEREEERAMRE B4 : 5 T#R|

A -
Description of steps taken to eliminate such

practices when discovered.

B4: Labour standards
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspects
B5 : HEHEEE
B5: Supply Chain

Management

—RIXER
BREAERIER
General
disclosures
and KPIs

Description

HEZHE

Corresponding

section

— R E EEHRENRENMEERBREBR B5 : 12
General Policies on managing environmental and B5: Supply chain
Disclosure social risks of the supply chain. management
B5.1 mrimRE D HEBEA o RRBEBERHE
Number of suppliers by geographical region. | Performance Data
Summary
B5.2 it BB R HEmED - MERTTARIE|B5 - HEEEIE
DI ERER - ANMBEERITRERTE -
Description of practices relating to engaging |B5: Supply chain
suppliers, number of suppliers where the management
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.
B5.3 R BRERIHER S ERANIRIENEE (B5 : HEREIE
RERRIEG - ARERRITRERT X -
Description of practices used to identify B5: Supply chain
environmental and social risks along the management
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
B5.4 i ERERERREESARAER LR |B5 - HE#EIE

BB - ARBERITRERTE -
Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how

they are implemented and monitored.

B5: Supply chain

management
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Aspects
B6 : EmAIE

B6: Product
Responsibility

—BRRER

BRiE

FEREAMER #il

General

disclosures

HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HEZHE

Corresponding

and KPIs Description section
— R FRAFMRHERNMRBHNEERLZ S EE - (Bo: EmBEE
BFELLBEEARBRITERN
(@ BX: Rk
(b) BETHBETABERZENHBEEIRN
A1
B -
General Information on: B6: Product
Disclosure (@)  the policies; and responsibility
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.
B6.1 EEXCEXEMABTRL2E@FEER RRBBEH2
mZARUYH B L °
Percentage of total products sold or shipped |Performance Data
subject to recalls for safety and health Summary
reasons.
B6.2 REFAREMNMRBORFHENANLES S | RESBERE
see
Number of products and service related Performance Data
complaints received and how they are dealt |Summary
with.
B6.3 R E R RENBEEBENED - B6 : EmAIE

Description of practices relating to observing

and protecting intellectual property rights.

B6: Product

responsibility
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—REER
R ENIEEZ
General

disclosures

HEZHE

Corresponding

Aspects and KPIs Description section
B6.4 S EieE B ME MO WREF - B6 : EmAIE
Description of quality assurance process and |B6: Product
recall procedures. responsibility
B6.5 MEEEERRERLEBEE - UAKIEHE Bo: EmEE
WITRERTTIE
Description of consumer data protection and |B6: Product
privacy policies, how they are implemented |responsibility
and monitored.
B7 : RES —RIEE BRABLLARRS - IR - MFFRARER B7 : R&JS
@ BEX: Rk
by BFHBETABERTZENEBEEREN
B
BIE R -
B7: Anti- General Information on: B7: Anti-Corruption
corruption Disclosure (@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.
B7.1 RERPAHHTAXKEREREIACES RRBEHE
MEBEISRMERMFWEE MFARER -
Number of concluded legal cases regarding |Performance Data
corrupt practices brought against the issuer |Summary
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
B7.2 by E i M BB RAE - ANAERIRIT N |B7 - REIS

ERIK-
Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored.

B7: Anti-Corruption
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Aspects

—RIXER
BREAERIER
General
disclosures
and KPIs

BRiE

HEREBRSE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Description

HEZHE

Corresponding

section

B7.3 HmMEEREITRENREIGTEI - B7 : RE S
RPEREEITEBEARE
EEEFIET R WS
TR SR 3 & 3K BR 7%
BREIIERER -
Description of anti-corruption training B7: Anti-Corruption
provided to directors and staff
We are in the process
of revising our training
protocol of the Anti-
corruption and will
disclose this KPI
information in future
reporting.
B8 @Ik E |—REE FREUAHRSERTHREEMELEBRFTEM B8 HEKRE
BREEKEDEEELEBNROBE -
B8: Community |General Policies on community engagement to B8: Community
Investment Disclosure understand the needs of the communities investment
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
B8.1 EIEREB(HE REFHE HIFE (B8 HERKRE
ko2 Xk 85) -
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, |B8: Community
environmental concerns, labour needs, investment
health, culture, sport).
B8.2 EEIHBEMBHAER (W EHERH) - RAHBEBERE

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time)

to the focus area.

Performance Data

Summary
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EEeREEBE_S_AF~A=+H1
FEZHREZENEEXZFEEXESKES

—
BE

FEXK
ARREBEBRREDE -

ARAFNHBRARRBERRZ EEXER
HBEBREETE RN FEARKMNE
MERATIEDERER RELRER -

REBAFERBEEBEE LR ZRE
DT E I B TS R B a6 e

EBKER
BRAREEF AN EGHER MR R ES
ERAOBAEERANFRBIZEEZEI9E
WMERREEAN MABAEEATEEY
B EBE R TR EM R - TRE R E63
BEEFOBEMDEERREAN  REUHK
MESMAETH T AEEN M KRR
EMEHEZERBR R_ZE_AF<A=1+H
HFEREBRTEBRETHASEE G E
MEAEH AFHRFI4BRTIHEE R
FUBHE] UHBEARKRBEEZSTA
EEFRNKRE I BRAEERREK
R HEEOEBRREAEEEERATE
WMABERRROZETFBER 5 AIFIR
FIEEBIEMDEERAMER -

The Directors submit to the shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates comprise property development, investment and
management in Hong Kong, Macau, the People’s Republic

of China and Malaysia.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to

the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 13
to 19 of this Annual Report. Description of possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 63
to 69. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group can be found in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. There is no important
event affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year ended 30 June 2025. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five Years’
Summary on page 4 of this Annual Report. In addition,
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 83 to 84.
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EEEHRESE
Report of the Directors

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2025
and the financial position of the Group at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 150 to
308.

An interim dividend of HK2.25 cents (2024: HK2.25 cents)
per share, totaling HK$14,685,000 was paid on 17 April
2025.

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK2.0 cents (2024: HK4.0 cents) per share
payable to those shareholders whose names appeared in
the register of members as at the close of business on 28
November 2025, which together with the interim dividend
of HK2.25 cents (2024: HK2.25 cents) per share, makes a
total distribution of HK4.25 cents (2024: HK6.25 cents) per
share this year. After approval by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on
15 December 2025.

Particulars of dividends proposed and paid during the year

are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 30 and pages 158 to 159

respectively to the financial statements.

DONATIONS
There is no charitable donation made by the Group during
the year ended 30 June 2025.
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REYMEMYHE - HBRRE INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RNEBMARNERNZILEYEMYE - #22 Details of the movements in investment properties and
BE2EEBHEBE DA TERTBEHRERN  property plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

B4R EI5A notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements respectively.

Yl 5= PROPERTIES

NEBMRY MR 2B TIENE309E E  Details of the Group’s interest in properties are set out on
%3128 A ° pages 309 to 312.

Bz 7K SHARE CAPITAL

WK 2 SIS NI SRR M 5T5 3018 «  Details of the movements in share capital are set out in note

30 to the financial statements.

Al ik 2 & DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

MRZZBE-RFENA=1H AAFAHEDIE  As at 30 June 2025, the reserves of the Company available
2 B EIEE4) 586,768,000 T (—Z =/ for distribution amounted to HK$86,768,000 (2024:
F :176,676,000757T) ° HK$176,676,000).

(e BONDS
KREB 2 EHFBHRITEHRRMFE17 o Details of the bonds of the Group are set out in note 17 to

the financial statements.

B /8 2 F SUBSIDIARIES
RAAREBMBATN S _RHE/NA=1 Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30
BZHBHRUERERNTTI8 - June 2025 are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The amounts of bank loans and other borrowings of the

Group at 30 June 2025 were as follows:

£8
Group
BT T
HK$’000
RITER Bank loans 1,023,520
BN Advances from a director 250,134
1,273,654
EEAD Repayment analysis:
RITEX Bank loans
— DR —%F — within one year 543,520
—fEE—F - in the second year 480,000
1,023,520
EERN Advances from a director
— £ B F 48 5K H - no fixed repayment terms 250,134

AEBCZEEREBEELEKRLR22.2% (=
TP £ 20.1%) * AERITER R EAE
ERNUEBEEFENE RITERRE
ERREEE 2 T FEIELE DR 7580.4%
(ZZE =Y : 84.2%) &19.6% (=F =Y
F:15.8%) °

BHE—_ZT_RAFRA=1tH AEBKXH
2B E RBITFER  RITERLEME
ERBRATMER ARBNETT -

1,273,654

The Group’s debt to equity ratio was approximately 22.2%
(2024: 20.1%) expressed as a percentage of bank loans and
other borrowings over net assets of the Group. The ratio of
bank loans and advances from a director over the Group’s
financial debts is 80.4% (2024: 84.2%) and 19.6% (2024:
15.8%) respectively.

Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances, bank loans
and other borrowings were denominated in Ringgit
Malaysia, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar as at 30 June
2025.
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FFEHEHE

AEEFRIOIAFZEE BERAGBGHE

FHINEBA4EA o

X

REEARBEARSTIEBY > KA F

ZERR:

HITES

HEEEL (£/E)
WA 2B (FEE)
HAE

] F Sz E

EHITES
FTREERSE

BYHBTES
MERBEE
BAZRE
FEREL

HEEEL  FAREERAFTSLLEAE
MERBFAEG LWESIR WNHEEE

FEAFEBEE -

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 4.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
Dr. Chao Gigi (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Chao Howard

Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham
Mr. Sun Dai Hoe Harold
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei David Chris

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil, Mr. Sun Dai Hoe Harold and
Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie will retire at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

EEARBEEARER - #BiEZEL - # During the year and up to the date of this report, Messrs
EEt AFFLLRBRELEIAZAN Chao Sze Tsung Cecil, Chao Gigi, Ho Sau Fun Connie
NAMBARIZEE - HEFANMEEAIHR and Chao Howard are also directors of the Company’s
0 ARFMBAT ZHEMEEMT : subsidiaries. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries

during the year and up to the date of this report were as

follows:
FFEH L Ms. Hui Wai Man
EE¥Y L+ Ms. Haw Suat Tin
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7 KRB AT BV K B
R_F_BFANA=1+A REZHRY

EIROIE3521G IR IF Mz S it 2 40 8% -
RARABZESERESITBRABKELETA
REFEFSFRHFRUEEARARSEAEM
B EEM R A EZDE (EEH KIS K
([SFOL) EXVEBM GBI EM ERBENT B
HAR QB R EERZFT) AR

(i) ARA
A AR A
Name Equity
iR EREL

Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil
FHRE ERELb
Lee Ding Yue, Joseph
Mret - B BEIR ERMAKE 2 DEERE
m ] ARRZEERRMABRA
AINMHMRESER A BRI -

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary Shares

EEEHRESE
Report of the Directors

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biography of Directors and senior management are set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 30 June 2025, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive in the shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies, were as follows:

(i) Company
B A= EEER
Personal interest Corporate interests
(B EE%) (B EE%)
12,573,397 453,408,112
(1.93%) (69.47%)
1,765,767 -
(0.27%) -

Note: The shareholdings disclosed by Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung
Cecil under the heading “Corporate Interests” in the
above represents the shares held by Yan Yin Company
Limited and Szehope Securities Company Limited,

substantial shareholders of the Company.
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(i) MEAF

(ii) Subsidiaries

(EPN 55 EEERE

MEAR SR E=x @S Personal Corporate
Name of Subsidiaries Directors Equity Interests Interests
Ace Cosmos Finance Limited — ZF 83 A - 192 %
Lee Ding Yue, Joseph  Shares - 192 shares

(1.92%)

B A H %A EHT A DNRIRMD Z
RER|

RZZFEZRAFRNA=+H BLEMIN F
EERABBASTWEESARAQGISHEN
BARZERMDARD AR FBREESF LN
BERAIE352 N S M mskkE L™
NAIEEFF XS FAUFTRAARQG] K
RZFfT e

MRAFERN » AR7F) - HEBAR - A& RN
J& Ak E B A A3 2 BT 0] 15 5 A AN
REEFABEARAHEMA A 2D
HEHFLREFFRF S -

The Company did not grant to the Directors, Chief Executive
or their associates any right to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
associates had any interest or short position in the shares
of the Company or its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2025 that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.
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EEEHRESE
Report of the Directors

INTEREST DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2025, the register of interests in shares
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that
the Company had not been notified of any substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

Chief Executive as disclosed above.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There are no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, it is confirmed that
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float

under the Listing Rule.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the

Articles of Association of the Company.

STAFF

As at 30 June 2025, the Group employed 49 staff. Staff
remuneration packages are normally reviewed annually. The
Group also provides other staff benefits, which include year
end double pay and contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes.
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HEREALRS
BAMEALR S EEFAER RN
BHREMEFENREAR LR 2 EFE0%
A o

R & &
ARRABLEEEMESRITTIAR—FA
RIERFBTREGRCEEZBERIN Z
RIEE K

BEEEN

WA AR A R 4 AT ST s F A AR
BARRAZBAEFETEEHHEBZ
BRRARZEH -

TEREFRHERD

AAFEARN AEBEzRAREERE K&K
EE L A EE 2 KBTS 5E98.8% &
68.7% °

ERFEAN AEEBZAKRKBEREMREKNE
B AREE 2 EEBEDANE19.7%K%4.7% °

BRALFt E RZF-RFA=1+H "
WEARNAES HEEALTHEMBER
(MES=HAREEARRRABBEAED 20
FE)EARAAREPRAAHERBTHEE
A EmER -

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of related party transactions are set out in note 32 to
the financial statements and in the above under Directors’

interests in contracts.

SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during

the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest suppliers and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for 98.8% and 68.7%

respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the five largest customers and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for 19.7% and 4.7%

respectively of the Group’s total turnover.

Save as aforesaid, at 30 June 2025, none of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interests in the

Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Director has interest in any business which is,
either directly or indirectly, competing with the business of

the Group.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Group has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Group considers all

of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There is no continuing connected transaction which is
required to comply with the requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules during the years ended 30 June 2025 and
30 June 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its Directors’ and senior management arising
from corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision
is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by
section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”) when the Report of the Board of the Directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with

section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares

during the year.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2025 were audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, who will retire and a resolution to re-appoint Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company will

be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
On behalf of the Board

Cecil Sze-Tsung Chao

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2025
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BIAZBMHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 150
to 308, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2025, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy

information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2025, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly

prepared in compliance with the Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) as issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AR ETEE (FH) KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
BREETSHE Key Audit Matter
REYWEL 1 1E Valuation of investment properties

FRR AR A B KRR 5T E2.5,4.15%14  Refer to Notes 2.5, 4.1 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RZE_AFXXA=Z+H & As at 30 June 2025, the Group had investment properties
BEERERAABEFEMNEREMEANE measured at fair value amounted to approximately
3,682,520,0008 T MIEEWE QA A EER HK$3,682,520,000 and a decrease in fair value of
914,881,000 TEEZFEMEREIEZ  investment properties of approximately HK$914,881,000
RPHER was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss for the year then ended.

EEEREWENDALEBEMGE B% The estimate of fair values of the Group’s investment
BREAERMINE(EEMEITHOBIYLIE properties were assessed by the Group based on
B ERFERBEKXNHE XfHEt - 215 independent valuations performed by qualified external
HEFEREFEZRK - valuers, in which significant judgements and estimation,

including valuation methodologies and key assumptions, are

used.

BB FE—EE - AARTHEERFSMME We focused on this area because the significant estimates
ERAPEOEZHTMABFTZERERN and judgement involved in determining the property
ETEMME ZBEAEE - valuations warrants specific audit focus and attention on this

area.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures in relation to the investment

properties included:

reviewed the valuation reports of the investment
properties to discuss with the management and valuers
to assess the methodologies and key assumptions

adopted in the valuation;

assessed the valuers’ qualifications and expertise and
read their terms of engagement and evaluated the
objectivity, independence and competence of the

valuers; and

evaluated the methodologies used and the key
assumptions, such as capitalisation rate, market rent
and developer’s profit margin, adopted in the valuation
models based on market data, entity-specific historical
information, relevant development plan, and the nature

and composition of the Group’s investment properties.
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BIAZBMHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

Assessment of the net realisable value of properties held for

sale

Refer to Notes 2.9, 4.1 and 19 to the consolidated financial

statements

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had properties held for sale
amounting to approximately HK$3,590,576,000.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling the property. The
net realisable value was determined by the Group with
reference to the valuation performed by independent
qualified external valuers. Given the significant judgements
and estimates used in assessing the net realisable value
of properties held for sale, such assessment is considered

significant to our audit.

Management concluded the impairment loss of
approximately HK$166,068,000 on the properties held for

sale was recognised for the year ended 30 June 2025.

We focused on this area because the significant estimates
and judgement involved in determining the property
valuations warrants specific audit focus and attention on this

area.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures in relation to properties held for sale

included:

— reviewed the valuation report of the properties held
for sale to discuss with management and the valuers
to understand the methodologies and key assumptions

adopted in the valuation of the properties;

— assessed the valuers’ qualifications and expertise and
read their terms of engagement and evaluated the
objectivity, independence and competence of the

valuers; and

— evaluated the methodologies used and the key
assumptions, such as estimated selling price of
properties held for sale, adopted in the valuation
models based on market data, entity-specific historical
information, relevant development plan and the nature

and composition of the Group’s properties held for sale.
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BIAZBMHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in the
annual report of the Company, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
as issued by the HKICPA and the Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are
responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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BIAZBMHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control.
e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.
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BIAZBMHRES
Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

23 September 2025

Han Pui Yu
Practising Certificate No.: PO7101
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
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Notes

Revenue 5
Direct costs

Gross profit
Other income 7
Changes in fair value of
investment properties 14
Changes in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")
Net expected credit loss (“ECL”)
of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”)
Administrative expenses

Finance costs 8
Loss before income tax 9
Income tax credit 10

(Loss)/Profit for the year

(Loss)/Profit for the year
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

(Loss)/Earnings per share for
(loss)/profit attributable to the
owners of the Company
during the year

Basic 12

Diluted 12
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—E-REF —E a4
2025 2024
TET FA7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
168,516 188,042
(125,870) (81,246)
42,646 106,796
21,697 22,132
(914,881) (154,070)
12,838 6,000

- (4,975)
(289,646) (56,570)
(53,855) (53,831)
(1,181,201) (134,518)
37,130 305,522
(1,144,071) 171,004
(989,199) 171,678
(154,872) (674)
(1,144,071) 171,004
HK$(1.52)78 T HK$0.267%8 7T
HK$(1.52)78 T HK$0.267% 7T




TEE (BB) aF (Loss)/Profit for the year
HaZ2mEBA(XH) - Other comprehensive income/(expense)
2 M BRBL 1| for the year, net of tax

[tems that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of financial assets
at FVTOCI (recycling)

HigrsEmoEE
BmmIES -
BARBEFAHEMEE

WHEPhZeRMEEAR
BENZE (OK+)
BMEFINSBEEE 53K Exchange gain/(loss) on translation

EEZERER,(EE)  of financial statements of foreign
operations
HEDOWIE AR EEST A Net loss upon disposal of financial

HitzmElaEs 2o r assets at FVTOCI recycled to profit
BERFER or loss

Items that will not be reclassified

MEBIAIEHRDBE

BRmIEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
BEEEBR T RETF Change in fair value of land and
NABEEY buildings held for own use
Hth 2 e as B0 10 A BE &Y Income tax relating to components of
Frig i other comprehensive income
AREZEEMEEKR A Other comprehensive income/(expense)

(i) EHEREA

for the year, net of tax

AEEZE(ZH) WA  Total comprehensive (expense)/income
wE for the year
THATEEXRFERE Total comprehensive (expense)/income
(X)) A #EE: for the year attributable to:
ZAN/NEIES RS WN Owners of the Company
FEFE AR HE = Non-controlling interests

SARETHEWER
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

—E_REF —EoH
2025 2024
TET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(1,144,071) 171,004
(6,039) (11,972)
89,598 (15,126)
35,034 1z
118,593 (27,098)
(1,869) 593
308 (98)
(1,561) 495
117,032 (26,603)
(1,027,039) 144,401
(872,167) 145,075
(154,872) (674)
(1,027,039) 144,401

RERETFTARAFAEAFBESHNEEIE Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company are set out

BEEE11AR o

in Note 11.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RIZFEZHENA=1+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2025

—EBZhHF Byt S
2025 2024
B &t TET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IRBEE Non-current assets
WEYZE Investment properties 14 3,682,520 5,365,067
Yz - Hees RERiE Property, plant and equipment 15 187,465 190,569
HEMIERBEE Other non-current asset 16 950 950
Hihem&E Other financial assets 17 23,238 49,248
EETIEE E Deferred tax assets 27 15,001 15,001
3,909,174 5,620,835
RBEE Current assets
ERDPFEME Properties under development
for sale 19 2,076,838 1,394,106
BERCHFEME Completed properties for sale 19 1,513,738 1,586,016
EMemEE Other financial assets 17 - 628
BAnBEFABRZ Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 20 2,955 57,216
FE W E 5 AR R HAth Trade and other receivables
JrE W BR 3R 21 21,436 21,095
2B EEFER Pledged time deposits 22 4,036 -
RITHEELRRS Bank balances and cash 22 834,506 881,792
4,453,509 3,940,853
RBAE Current liabilities
B b fE S BR K Other payables 23 144,672 146,092
araE Contract liabilities 24 38,803 12,785
JEAS FE4E AR AR 3R IR Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 25 239,990 239,990
FETREE A R FE Amounts due to related
companies 25 4,911 4,645
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 26 543,520 1,131,508
EEIR Advance from a director 31(a) 250,134 211,617
HEAE Lease liabilities 28 2,229 1,290
REIBRBEXMEE Long service payment
obligations 29 570 -
FE IR Tax payable 192,260 215,495
1,417,089 1,963,422
MEBEEFHE Net current assets 3,036,420 1,977,431
MEERREBAEE Total assets less current
liabilities 6,945,594 7,598,266
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FRBEE Non-current liabilities
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings
HERE Lease liabilities
EAETIE B {E Deferred tax liabilities
REIBRBEXMEE Long service payment obligations
BEEFE Net assets
= EQUITY
LN Share capital
& Reserves
AT HFEAEMEER  Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company

IR ER Non-controlling interests
AR Total equity

ii- N

Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil
BFE
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RIZFEZRAENA=1+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2025

—E-RE —EZF
2025 2024
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
480,000 -
1,533 744
639,183 704,926
113 -
1,120,829 705,670
5,824,765 6,892,596
2,468,985 2,468,985
3,302,424 4,215,383
5,771,409 6,684,368
53,356 208,228
5,824,765 6,892,596
HRZ
Chao Gigi
EZE
Director



GeHeREXk
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

H it
Notes
RETHHERE Cash flows from operating
activities
B 35 Al B 48 Loss before income tax
FE Adjustments for:
M MBRBETE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 9
EREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use
assets 9
LSRN Dividend income 7
B A Interest income 7
B 5 KR Finance costs 8
KEMELAAREBEZ Changes in fair value of
) investment properties 14
BRPYERE Provision for properties under
development 9
HEREYHEER Loss on disposal of investment
properties
HERAALBETA Loss on disposal of financial
HEfpxmElamz assets at FVTOCI
TREERIR 9
BAREBEE ARM ECL of financial assets at
EEREZEREE FVTOCI
MIEHEREX
BARBEFAERZ Change in fair value of
TREEZANEE financial assets at FVTPL
i
RERB S NEE Long service payment
obligations
ME 5 Z 5 Exchange difference
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—E-RE
2025
FET
HK$’000

(1,181,201)

4,432
2,566
(3,149)
(18,032)
53,855

914,881

166,068

39,627

(12,838)

683

—E 4
2024
FETT

HK$’000

(134,518)
619
3,171

(4,425)

(15,829)
53,831

154,070

5,949

4,975

(6,000)

23,751




GEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

—E-HE —EF
2025 2024
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
NEBETEBA 2K Operating (loss)/profit before
(E18) & F working capital changes (33,108) 85,594
FEWER D Decrease in properties held for
sale 84,392 9,245
B REWNER R EAM (Increase)/decrease in trade
JFE W BR X and other receivables
() R (341) 5,652
b i 15 BR SORL Decrease in other payables (650) (7,446)
aHaEEm S Cld) Increase/(Decrease) in contract
liabilities 26,018 (125,897)
BERARLBEA Purchase of financial assets at
BazemEE FVTPL — unlisted investment
- LETREES fund - (3,000)
HERAABETA Proceeds from disposal of
BmsemEEMS financial assets at FVTPL —
- EBEE LT ZRAR equity securities listed in
5 5 Hong Kong 67,099 -
KBRS FTEYL  (FF) Cash generated from/(used in)

ZH% operations 143,410 (35,852)
RENEGE TN Finance costs paid (39,687) (39,970)
MIB(ER) BR Tax (paid)/refund (55,161) 282,476
EETEFTEET 2 FSE  Net cash generated from

operating activities 48,562 206,654
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GeHeREXk
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

—E-RE —EF
2025 2024
iig=a FE T TET
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
RETBHZRERE Cash flows from investing
activities
% 8 U A Dividend received 3,149 4,425
FEHA Interest received 18,032 16,330
BEMHE  HBEREZE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (1,695) (582)
KEWFEE N Additions of investment
properties 14 (4,400) (7,326)
WaRkBHEREWE Proceed from disposal of
investment properties - 74,109
WakE HEWE - Proceed from disposal of
2SN AR property, plant and equipment 13 30
EEIZAAREESTAEM  Redemption of financial assets at
PEWNEEREE FVTOCI - 2,291
HEZRAAEEFG AEM  Disposal of financial assets at
rEKRFZEREE FVTOCI 16,006 -
2R E HATE FAE N Increase in pledged time
deposits (4,036) -
REZETELEZ Net cash generated from
B FEE investing activities 27,069 89,277
METBH2RERE Cash flows from financing
activities
2R E Dividends paid (40,792) (34,265)
FIRIRITER K New bank and other loans
HEMER raised 33 1,428,000 398,000
RITEFER Repayment of bank loan 33 (1,533,480) (132,000)
EFRFTENR Repayment of advance from
a director 33 (22,783) -
EERRRME Proceeds from advance from
a director 33 61,300 38,901
A3 &) FRIE G AN Increase in amount due to
related companies 33 266 3,018
XHHEEAEN Payment of capital element of
BEAREER lease liabilities 33 (2,350) (2,326)
B4 B 5 A AR Finance costs paid 33 (182) (48)
XMEERBHHE Interest paid for the advances
from a director 33 (14,756) (13,043)
BETEAT (BH) Net cash (used in)/generated
B4 HEE from financing activities (124,777) 258,237
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nVT F=E5 EE ﬁ UL B %
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

—E_-HF —TmF
2025 2024
H it FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
fﬁ@:&fﬁﬁ%’ﬁwz Net (decrease)/increase in cash
W) R and cash equivalents (49,146) 554,168
$?ﬂzfﬁ$&fﬁi Cash and cash equivalents at
ifﬁ% beginning of year 879,284 322,792
EXESEFHNTE - Effect of foreign exchange rate
%ﬁﬁiﬁi changes, on cash held 4,368 2,324
FRZEAERBEELEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 834,506 879,284
RITEGERESZEEY  Analysis of the balances of cash
HERD M and cash equivalents
HEEET B RBERL%] Bank balances and cash as stated
ZIRITHEFRE® in consolidated statement of
financial position 22 834,506 881,792
VB SRTTE Less: Bank overdrafts 26 - (2,508)
834,506 879,284
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rEEmEER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-T-RFBA=+HI%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

ZRIZELR-BER

EREH

EREMRENH
AEENEBERIHER
ErZENBER
ROAEEHARRZEAE
T eREELABEED
(EgeR)
THRETERRY

Az EERESHN
R

EREEAEER

BRERBAM-F==
RERE (Hit1)

BREREAN-F-ME
hERE (Hit11)

“E-REARZTRER

Balance at 1 July 2023

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive expense for the year:
Exchange loss on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations
Change in fair value of financial assets at
FVTOC! (recycling)

Surplus on revaluation of land and
building

Income tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

2024 final dividend approved and paid
(Note 11)

2025 interim dividend approved and paid
(Note 11)

Balance at 30 June 2024

EONGE PN At
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

BLRRE
FHARH
2R
SHEE
e HERE  NEEHER (R + REEA g FERER BiEs
Financial assets
at fair value
through other
Property  comprehensive Non-
Share Exchange revaluation reserve Retained controlling
Capital reserve* reserve* (recycling)* profits* Total interests ~ Total equity
TER TiET TER TER TET TER TEn TER
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
(Wit300)
(Note 30(a))
2,468,985 (412,007) 32,655 (19,702) 4,503,627 6,573,558 208,902 6,782,460
= - - - 171,678 171,678 (674) 171,004
- (15,126) - - - (15,126) - (15,126)
- - - (11,972) - (11,972) - (11,972)
- - 593 - - 593 - 593
- - (98) - - (98) - (98)
- (15,126) 495 (11,972) 171,678 145,075 (674) 144,401
- - - - (19,580) (19,580) - (19,580)
- - - - (14,685) (14,685) - (14,685)
2,468,985 (427,133) 33,150 (31,674) 4,641,040 6,684,368 208,228 6,892,596
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GEEEREX
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

ARREEARLERSE
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
RAAEE
HALf
2EfRL
tREE
e BERRE NEEMRRE (B REER: E3 FERER L 4
Financial assets
at fair value
through other
Property  comprehensive Non-
Share Exchange revaluation reserve Retained controlling
Capital reserve* reservet (recycling)* profits* Total interests ~ Total equity
TR TER TERL TR TER TERL TR TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Héts0a)
(Note 30(a))
CECMELR-BAR Balance at 1 July 2024 2,468,985 427,133 33,150 (31,674) 4,641,040 6,684,368 208,228 6,892,596
EEFR Loss for the year - - - - (989,199) (989,199) (154,872) (1,144,071)
EREMZERE Other comprehensive expense for the year:
REBNEEERUBRE Exchange gain on translation of financial
EEER & statements of foreign operations - 89,598 - - - 89,598 - 89,598
BRABHAZM2ENEZEE Change in fair value of financial assets at
EELAEENEH(RAF)  FVIOC (recycling) - - - (6,039) = (6,039) = (6,039)
EREEEPEEERDLBE  Netloss upon disposal of financial assets
HARMZEHEIEBEE  at FVTOCI recycled to profit or loss
5B - - - 35,034 - 35,034 = 35,034
THREFERER Deficit on revaluation of land and
building - - (1,869) - - (1,869) - (1,869)
A2 EREERDHHAER  Income tax relating to components of
other comprehensive income - - 308 - - 308 - 308
FRREREAE Total comprehensive expense for the year - 89,598 (1,561) 28,995 (989,199) (872,167) (154,872) (1,027,039
BHERBAN-Z-NF 2024 final dividend approved and paid
RERE (W) (Note 11) - - - - (26,107) (26,107) - (26,107)
BHEREAN-Z2-0%F 2025 interim dividend approved and paid
wERE W) (Note 11) - - - - (14,685) (14,685) - (14,685)
ZECRERRCTHER Balance at 30 June 2025 2,468,985 (337,535) 31,589 (2,679) 3,611,049 5,771,409 53,356 5,824,765
*

L HHEEREE RV ESEAMBRRESP
ANE B2 FEHE43,302,424,0008 T (==&
— P94 : 4,215,383,00008 7T) °
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These reserve accounts comprise the Group’s reserves of

approximately HK$3,302,424,000 (2024: HK$4,215,383,000)

in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

1. —RREHR
See(E@)BRAR (ARDA]) JH—
HEESEMRIZAEREADR @ &
D7) 2 EE R i B 4 BE R AN 4 SR AR 4%
BRI MESLEHIAESERPE
ARERME ([HRE]) - KA ZBH
REBHAXSHERRDA LT -

RRABREMBRAR (SHEIAEEH])
H—ABEMNLZERRBMABR
AR (MAD ER - RBER - EF
RASARER B 2 SRARVER R R IR IRAA o

V

REBZEIBXRBEEH/YMEZREM
RERBEHYEEELEBRBERS -

BHE T A A=THILFEZ
HBRREEEFEN T _AF 1A
—+t=RAHETIE -

GENERAL INFORMATION
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a

limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the
annual report and, its principal place of business is
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
controlled by Yan Yin Company Limited (“Yan Yin”), a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong. At the reporting date, the directors consider
the ultimate parent company of the Group is also Yan
Yin.

The Group is principally engaged in property
development and investment and provision of property

management and related services.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2025 were approved for issue by the
board of directors on 23 September 2025.
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GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. TESHHEXRBE 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

2.1. MRl B2

HNE150B £EF308H 2 F E4r
EUBBRERDBREEGHAE
([BEFFRAE]) Bh 2B EY
BWmEED - ARBEREMEERE
R1ERI z BB wE RS
8] - HEAGERRRE ([HEH
B EER S ER] ) REB LR
KRAzgRAIMAR -

N AW HEBRNMNTAERAZES
RAMEGIZHRE - MRBFEER
BMaXZMAERAAES EMRA
BAZEERE -

TEEHBREREERFEE
BUEMR - MAF AT REIERT 2 BR
ISR G AR R S AL
By BRRZZE (WE) ERH
AE3FRIRER -

These annual consolidated financial statements
on pages 150 to 308 have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRS accounting standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations (“HKFRS
Accounting Standards”) and the accounting

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance
and include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing

Rules”).

The material accounting policies that have been
consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new and
amended HKFRS Accounting Standards and the
impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1. wmEI B (F)

HEVBRRILBE LK AEE
wmE - TR AR BEYERER
I

#EEF A2 E K
CEMEE R

- THEREBEFOBEME  Has
B

BRAAEEER NI S HERH
m o

T BN RBERE M MR T N
GETART RBR - BEZRFMEETD
REEEEHBAMFEFRITH IR
ERAMEHE L - ERERK
R BEZFEAAMEA - PR
RSEEH @R REMRZHE
SBR LA HMBREAMEEE
AZ BEBERME4KE -

The consolidated financial statements have been

prepared on the historical cost basis, except for:

— investment properties;

— financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL");

— financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”); and

— land and building classified under property,

plant and equipment.

which are stated at their fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the

accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation

2.2 ImEERE

HRAEVBREREIERR T REN B
ﬁﬁjﬁiﬁz/_\ﬂz‘f—azaﬁﬁi&
;EO

MEARRAEEIZEHNER - K
SHEZEH —EAERE  ETHREEN
EEHENE - AT ACH2ENE
MEBA RO - WHEENBIR

seTM amﬂ’]ﬁ%jjg“ B o £

Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ) °

ANEE B EBIEFIERESHER
Al Z WA R H & AL E B SR
R BEIAREE N BEGZHE
RAEAIZ BRI -

mEURAMIEHMERE - KREARTA
MR 5 - EHRASR S RER
i %Tfﬁ SBARRIEEEHRE
ZAREBREBNGFARE KRR
M EENEREANEE 2 AEE
TTRERH - B ARMEHRRP
EHRNCHECR BV ERIELAER
AR EARNEBERMON S TR
B o

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power over
the entity, only substantive rights relating to the
entity (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statement of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

2.2 HLERE(E)

FFEBRERRRTBNARRINE
EAREMBARNER - MAS
B B SRR A AR B
FYARMERR - BRAEEEBERAOY
HTETHBEEENMNENERL
HREBEEBEH  AEEFE
BUAQARBERZMB QR THA
FEEM G0 R & 8 (A FFE
P

o

Bk

FEIERIE S E A TR AR R 42
@A EFIR - EEERARRAM
BEENREDH - FEBRBERER
SEXETNED  FRAFER
AR RANAR & UL a AR R A FR IR IR
RzBEOR - DRlfEAHIERR
ME A RERFIIR

EARRBHBEHRERS - HEB AR
FRACB AT DR B2 - BRIEZ I
BRARBINARFTEELEXRRRE
AHESES - KANEBERER
HEMRA -

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income respectively for
the year between non-controlling interests and the

owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. Cost also includes

direct attributable costs of investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. TESHHERE (&)

2.2

2.3

REEE ()

RRARHEME TE’J%F*ETFE
HE B W MK B S E
WUHE T 2 A el 2 R EI &9 P B A
BHEARR A BT HER o

SRR

MBEBRERABITER - HIFAAR
A2 R -

A ARERZERMEHRRAR

m%[x%&%i%EZm%Ez
MEAZERNERZINEEE - 1
HEH DINEFHECEBEER
BEREEHERRYE - L8 IHE
RGENEEAENREEREE
MBEMELEN I ERE 15
RiEm KR P ER -

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’s pre- or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s

profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented
(HK$), which is also the

functional currency of the Company.

in Hong Kong dollars

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. FEEHBERBE (A 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 e (1) 2.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

AR R BEE B AINESTHERIE Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
E¥BEEUARRBEREE HHNR denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
TEREFHBE - WIEARAEE at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
BaEr— 8o WmE o LAINEEL K value was determined and are reported as part of
RETEEEKHEEE TETE the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
B (MEERARX S ANE XK are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
B EFEBEEN2AEBENK currency are not retranslated (i.e. only translated
M BERFARRR  ZWEHIE using the exchange rates at the transactions date).
KB RBEB O Bt AfEeE - 8 When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary
JEERMEAEN AR BENSHE item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
KA HE AR S W as T BRI - FZ A component of that gain or loss is also recognised
SHBERNEMELLIBEEH in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss

ftb 4R & Was T HERR o on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in other

comprehensive income.

R E M BEmES - FTBERIMNEE In the consolidated financial statements, all
E@1IE|JE7I%#I§?§FKLAE@$E.§IJ individual financial statements of foreign

BB ARNEESH®R SHER operations, originally presented in a currency
BT BEMBBRCEREBERHN different from the Group’s presentation currency,
Wi RBE R 5%77?”45(7\%11%% have been converted into Hong Kong dollars.
KRZSENEXFER/BET » 3 Assets and liabilities have been translated into
FEME R A RIEREBEIE R T - 4K Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the
R EHENFIERFTHERE reporting date. Income and expenses have been
T e WRFEENEMERESHE converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
Htp 2 mR PR LR exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
PN FHEPEFRE - or at the average rates over the reporting period

provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately

in the exchange reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. TESHHERE (&)

2.3

2.4

ShEEBRE ()
&I ER (AHERKER
BN BB - P RKRE

HEBBINEBR B R B BEF
BOHE)ME - AXBEMENAR
BERFEREZRYBEBNAEEEH
DIERL o R REN IFEAE
smAVEME R Z Y B R IHER
BETesHoBEEa -

MR B EINEBFHNE R
TTEMD R E (Bl K EE %MZ%) J
RAELERGENRBIFES T
s BTAEBmEPER

W - s MR (M EE2.139 A
A EE R E E AR IN) AR
BERAN  BEKRK (BREERR
BRI PA 5 & B %8 7 2= HL P 5 O 3 B A
RIFRTE LM EAKRA) R - B
BENRBAREE R BN TAETT
g BRIERARE RFHTEM
Z2tBEBE (WA K -KT
AE ERRITE B B L AR EY)
SN BRI AR X REH T &M
REPREEKL (E) 5K -

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group
are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed to
non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e., no loss of
control) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit

or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than cost of
right-of-use assets as described in Note 2.13) are
initially recognised at acquisition cost (including
any cost directly attributable to bringing the
assets to the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the Group’s management). Except
for land and building held for administrative
purpose as described below, they are subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

24 WX HERRE (E) 2.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Land and building held for administrative
purpose are stated at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
(Note 2.17), if any. Any revaluation surplus is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
credited to “property revaluation reserve” in equity.
To the extent that any revaluation decrease or
impairment loss has previously been recognised in
profit or loss, a revaluation increase is credited to
profit or loss with the remaining part of the increase
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Downward revaluations are recognised upon
appraisal or impairment testing, with the decrease
being charged to other comprehensive income
to the extent of any revaluation surplus in equity
relating to this asset and any remaining decrease

recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values, if any,
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-

line method, at the following rates per annum:

Land and buildings 2%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 10%
Motor vehicles and accessories 20%

Accounting policy for depreciation of right-of-use

assets is set out in Note 2.13.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 WP HBERKRE (E) 2.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

285
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The asset’s residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation
surplus remaining in equity is transferred to
retained profits upon disposal of land and buildings

and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see Note 2.13) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.
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2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Investment properties (Continued)

2.5 REMWE (R

REVMEBIRD BRI E R RET
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Investment properties include completed properties
and investment properties under development for
continued future use as investment properties.
Investment properties are measured at cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value.
Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers, with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and nature of the investment
property. The carrying amounts recognised at
the reporting date reflect the prevailing market

conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Investment properties (Continued)

An entity shall transfer a property to, or from,
investment property when, and only when, there is
a change in use. A change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition
of investment property and there is evidence
of the change in use. In isolation, a change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property
does not provide sufficient evidence of a change
in use. Examples of evidence of a change in use

include:

(i) Inception of an operating lease to another
party, for a transfer from completed properties

held for sale to investment property;

(ii) Commencement of development with a view to
sale, for a transfer from investment property to

completed properties held for sale;

(iii) Commencement of owner-occupation, or of
development with a view to owner-occupation,
for a transfer from investment property to

owner-occupied property; and

(iv) End of owner-occupation, for a transfer from

owner-occupied property to investment

property.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. TESHHERE (&)

2.5

2.6
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RIREME  TEEBHMOHSEN
I E

IMREBREMEEXBRYE - Al
HEHDBRAME  Has LRk

BEESEHSBEENRABEKS
GRS ©

HittERBEE
HIERBEERGMES - BUS
G FTEF RN ARETVIRRER
B ASamEThARRE - &P
BFERNEBEERE Eiﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬂ”%ﬁ
(RMizF2.17) - BEETHEIE -
EEEREBSEGERASWE fT%
B AREERASGTEE
BEEXF - RTZE - E'Jﬁﬁﬁ%
A A ER B R AR AR
RARGFHEETEFTRIE °

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Investment properties (Continued)

When an entity decides to dispose of an investment
property without development, it continues to
treat the property as an investment property
until it is derecognised (eliminated from the
consolidated statement of financial position) and
does not reclassify it as completed properties
held for sale. Similarly, if an entity begins to
redevelop an existing investment property for
continued future use as investment property, the
property remains an investment property and is not
reclassified as owner-occupied property during the

redevelopment.

[f an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting

purposes.

Other non-current asset

Other non-current asset represents club debenture.
Club debenture acquired is measured on the initial
recognition at cost and its useful life is assessed
to be indefinite. The club debenture is tested for
impairment (see Note 2.17) at each reporting
date and not to be amortised. Its useful life is
also reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for

on a prospective basis.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial instruments
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Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial asset
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are
transferred. A financial liability is derecognised
when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial

assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component and are
measured at the transaction price in accordance
with HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (“HKFRS 15”7), all financial assets
are initially measured at fair value, in case of a
financial asset not at FVTPL, plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the profit or

loss.
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2. FESTTHRERE (&) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
27 €T H (&) 2.7 Financial instruments (Continued)
EMEE (&) Financial assets (Continued)
THEEN T ENAIEE (B) Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets (Continued)
TREEDRATEE Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:
- BREERK AR — amortised cost
- ERAnEBEFTAEBEZ % -  FVTPL; or
- BRAOARBETTAEMZEZMmUK - FVTOCIL.
DEHATMERE The classification is determined by both:
- EREEISREENBER — the entity’s business model for managing the
= & financial asset; and

. SBEENARBSRER
T

FIEEBRETHEIANEREENLH
MW AMT W ET B E RS EM
WARFIER - BEITHRE AT 53R
o Z YR K0 TR HA{E R KRR
4h o

— the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented
within finance costs or other income, except for
expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade receivables

which is presented within administrative expenses.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are
not designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and

collect its contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted
where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
Group’s trade and other receivables, pledged time
deposits and bank balances and cash fall into this

category of financial instruments.
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2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

2.7 @@ T A ()

TREE (&)
EHEENEATE (H)

EFRE (&)
BonBEFAEMEARENS

BEE - D+

IMRKENARREREEERRER
EMABOXN  WAEZKRERE—
BEBEIPRE  AZEBKELR
MEMEBEBWESRBESREM
HERERE - RFEEHNEM
2EW PR - EERENEE
B8 FEWA (ERERMEE
FE) RIMNEBRBERERIN o 21E
ERZNER  HizmEiams R
BHEHREEaT B O =8 -

PR E
BRAEZFRED R RRAAEER
ANBHZEMEE  RIFZRAR
BTRUAREEEENH ® M
B YHAEVRERZRER &
NARPEEBRHIEE /B AAEER
AE M2 W (KA B Y © itk
EEEESRETANER FET
W BEREERENAEHITANA
JE 8 IR E F S HETT ©

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTOCI — recycling

If the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest
and the investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collection
of contractual cash flows and sale, subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of ECL, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to

profit or loss.

Equity investment

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition
of the investment, the Group elects to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling). Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but only be made if the investment meets the

definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Equity investment (Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established. Dividends are included in the “other

income” in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include interest-
bearing borrowings, lease liabilities, other payables
and advances from related parties (including
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
amounts due to related companies and advance

from a director).

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities)
are initially measured at fair value, and, where
applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the

Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.
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2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial instruments (Continued)

2.7 @@ T A ()

TREE (&)
@A ER S HEA 2 ()

BEig cmBE (REaGE®RIN)
RRAERANEERBHEKATE
BEEREBEARBHETABREFD
PTHEITAEMESRERERIN - HPER
BRAREERNE  ERSBNEEE
%E¢ﬁmo

FEABEET A RS EENE
HESEHTBRANA -

HEREMNSABRIRNWE
213 ¢

43
AR D R - MG FTE
CEE R 33 T
TSR BB (I8 2 5 A)
S [ ({2 RO E (T 29 - 1%
R BRI R SR B 2
W -

BREREESEARDEE K
FAKEERNERS BHPERED
R+ _EAMEEEAE-

SEAEREAS CATAEETHH
2 BEMERNNERLHEE S
HARMEKIERE NEEERE
HEEABTHNRO I EENRD

K
HE

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities (Continued)

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method except for derivatives
and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which
are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or

losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges that are reported in

profit or loss are included within finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in
Note 2.13.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings

using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless as at the reporting date, the Group has a
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting date.

Covenants that the Group is required to comply
with, on or before the reporting date, are
considered in classifying loan arrangement with
covenants as current or non-current. Covenants
that the Group is required to comply with after the

reporting period do not affect the classification.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities (Continued)

Other payables and advances from related parties

Other payables and advances from related parties
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”)'s
impairment requirements use forward-looking
information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans
and other debt-type financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVTOCI and financial guarantee
contracts (for the issuer) that are not measured at
FVTPL.

The Group considers a broader range of
information when assessing credit risk and
measuring ECL, including past events, current
conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts
that affect the expected collectability of the future

cash flows of the instrument.
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2. FEFHBERFBE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 SWMEERE (H) 2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
EREAEREREM T ER  BRAE In applying this forward-looking approach, a
i distinction is made between:

- VR REMEERBRER — financial instruments that have not deteriorated
LR fERRBRBENTRT A significantly in credit quality since initial
(IE—FERD & recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage

17); and

- VRERURERAEERER — financial instruments that have deteriorated
{tEERRERBRNMENE/MIA significantly in credit quality since initial
([®ZFEER]) -~ recognition and whose credit risk is not low

(“Stage 27).

[E=ERIERECRERARR “Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have

BREZSENSREE - Al > & objective evidence of impairment at the reporting

SENSREEDTBRILER - date.

M2 A FEBERBRIERER “12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1

FRERERNMIEHAPERE category while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the

KIWABARE_BERER - Stage 2 category.

FRHERAEANTERER T AT Measurement of the ECL is determined by a

HASS s AV R IB R 9B R Nt (L probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over

FHHERE © the expected life of the financial instrument.
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2. FEEHBERRBE (A) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 SWMEERE (H) 2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

B 5 EWERM Trade receivables

HEZRERUIRZME - AEEHKA For trade receivables, the Group applies a
B A ERBMERELR - IR simplified approach in calculating ECL and
BeERE HHRNKRFEBERE recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
REREERE  ZTERICMEE at each reporting date. These are the expected
BN REL A BT - shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering
BUERANBELRENTEHRRA - the potential for default at any point during the life
Rt HEBHBERBLRE  AEED of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL, the
By —EENEE L ERBERER Group has established a provision matrix that is
MINEBIEIT AV AR AR fE - WARIR(E based on its historical credit loss experience and
BATERIFE € /AR ERE = external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking
EITHE - factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

BTFERAEHELS  BRES To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
FRERBHZERARERFZEMNBA grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
HAREETTOME - and the days past due.

BEBERL T ENREMEEHEER Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
BRAABETARMEE Kz and debt investments at FVTOCI

EFERE

REEGFEAMBWE SRR - 1R The Group measures the loss allowance for other
AREBEFAEMEZEKEFHOE receivables, debt investments at FVTOCI and bank
FIRE  ROTEFLRBESFR121E balances and cash equal to 12-month ECL, unless
RIEHAERBEKRMIBREES - [RIE when there has been a significant increase in credit
B ¥R HE R 1R 15 A R B AR g hn risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
AEEERXGEHREREX -2 lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
BIEHER R F TR BIE 1B R eV ECL should be recognised is based on significant
RN B VIR ERIARIEEELM increase in the likelihood or risk of default
A e 1 S L B Y B E B N occurring since initial recognition.
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2. TESHHERE (&)

2.8 ERMEERME (&)

BEBHEK AT EAMEHBEER
BAREE AR M2 E K zm
EHFRE (&)
R B VR EREEER
BEEINE  AEESHREAHS
BEEENRBREVIAERB S
BEEARBETLER - FEHEITT
i AEEeEZERAE AR
MEEMTEMEE @ BEELER
MATEMES  BREAZHKAR
B HENA] LS -

AE
/\EE

BRIR - EFEERARREEE
HEN - REEL TS -

- BT AN (ARE) A
EAFENERSIERRER
1t

- FEERBRMINETISIERR
2B 1§|J§DTEE$'J%K¢E‘3¢
- EBANERENEBE

#

- EE CEH- R £FERKR
HRAER IR A IR A TR T

FEL - TS EREF AR
TEBEERE NBETE
54

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments at FVTOCI (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial assets at the reporting date with the risk of
default occurring on the financial assets at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if

available) or internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default

swap prices for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in
regulatory, business, financial, economic
conditions, or technological environment that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

and

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 (([) HR/45  Annual Report 2025 41t



o & BB SRR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

2.8 TREEME (HK)

BBELA T EBYNEMLTHEER
BRAEEGARMEEH Kz F 8
EFRE (&)

- EBALERENBEREKTAY
mEBIE

NE L ERME S - BA RN
FBEAFEB30K - ANEBRK T*
[E\B2 B ¥ 46 FE R IA R FRE L h0 -
#K%‘%*ﬁ_‘\ﬁ&ﬁﬁfi%ﬁ@ﬁﬂ
A FTaE - AMER

BEMOLE  AEBERREBITAD
ZA % B ) 25 e 5R 18 I R B 3 1Y
N MRS HmERRECEF LA
MPEH PR - inREBFKTAE
HERBRREK  EEILAEAREN
ERREE  BERATEREHARNAEBR
BHETTAERRERERBNRES
M&%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ#%?ﬂm
It FP—EEREERABITE
HEMERBEWES

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments at FVTOCI (Continued)

— an actual or expected significant deterioration

in the operating results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates

otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at each reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if it has a low
risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower

to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.
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2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

2.8 TREERE (H)

BEBHEK AT EAMEHBEER
BAREE AR M2 E K zm
EHFRE (&)
RABEHEREREMS © E01)A
B SR INE RIS E TR
RAEM AT KA BERREEMNBER
SEEANGEREA(TEEEME
)R AEBRABEENSE
T (ZemEENRITEAR B
KR EHERUARURAAEBEE
BEZFHAAGERZNRE RE
BIREB B 90K (iii) x&ME
EMEMEWKESE365XK ©

RESHAFTE RN E 5 IR -
BArBEFAREMEEEEF A
BEFREREMeREENTAIE

FRBRKRFHEFIBEHNH E34.2

BMBEREH
RHBEREOMNS  ~AEEER
BEBAENR  REIERTAEZ
RFAEEAIR - Eitk - TREEIER
MAEERSAANEEBR AN
RREBAEBFERARTEA - &
15 NS AT AR E A A £ HE 2 (A 3R
15 o

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments at FVTOCI (Continued)

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when (i)
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held
by the Group); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due for bank balances and cash, pledged time
deposits and debt investment at FVTOCI; or (iii)
the financial asset is 365 days past due for other

receivables.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables, debt investments at FVTOCI and other
financial assets measured at amortised cost are set
out in Note 34.2.

Financial guarantee contracts

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to

receive from the holder, the debtor or any other

party.
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2. TESHHERE (&)

29 FEME
FTEVERBEDEXNZIFEMENR
BRPZFEME  WAREKKE
SEAERFEME 2BEKEA
BE o

(i) BEBZEFEYE

BRIV ZGEVERABSHE
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THOARAS ~ BEERETRAN
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KBEAXMNENMCBERK
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BIRFE TR TR B WA
BRIBFT R ERRARHEE
AmatHE e

(i) BEBERZIFEYFE
FRASEBER ZCERKRY
¥ HERATDREBEARLE BN
FrE BRI RIAR 2 R EK
RES B MEE -
AJ IR FE TR A FT B WA
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BEEXZFENRKAREFN
BEARAK - BB REF
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BB EFEMERNETHE -

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale include completed
properties for sale and properties under
development for sale and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

(i) Properties under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs capitalised (see Note 2.19).
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

(ii) Completed properties for sale

In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs
for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs
to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

The amount of any write-down of properties
held for sale to net realisable value is
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of properties held
for sale is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of properties held for sale recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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2. FEEHBERBE (A 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

210 RERBEEEY 2.10 Cash and cash equivalents
RekReFEMERRBRITHES R Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
BEERS  RITEHEFER - RS and on hand, demand deposits with banks. For the
Eﬁiumi%ﬂ’]iﬁ'mﬁ s Re kR purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows

EEVEREABREENRITE presentation, cash and cash equivalents include
fi - WREAK &R B IR & B IR eV AE B ED bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
7 e and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

21 ERNEE 2.11 Contract liabilities
EEPAEAS ERERERW AR A contract liability is recognised when the
NRER BRERAE - WASE customer pays consideration before the Group
I 7 7N £2 (38 B 57 A B W A R R AR recognises the related revenue. A contract liability
R MR EZER - BTN RER would also be recognised if the Group has an
BHEE EERBEAT - HEDN unconditional right to receive consideration before
& AR 1, 785 4% e 52 the Group recognises the related revenue. In such

cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.
HREZFNE—ER - JIHES For a single contract with the customer, either
REEHFEREE HRZHE a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
A EHEREBNSREENER presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
BERNLOFEIR - and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are

not presented on a net basis.

212 B BERELN 2.12 Financial guarantees issued by the Company
MGRRE X REREEEE AR A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
REB TR Z IGRNEA S 3R - 2% requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
TAHERAEXNIECEETH payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
BANBEEMERBRZEL - because a specified debtors fails to make payment

when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. FEEHBERRBE (A) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
212 BBERELH (&) 2.12 Financial guarantees issued by the Company
(Continued)
EASERHMBERE - BRY Where the Company issues a financial guarantee,
RN EEZEE MR the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
PERBEIERA - SRERORQ as deferred income within “other payables”. The
REBEEREGEHE IAMERNSE fair value of financial guarantees is determined
A~ SR B E R PR 2 R 2 based on the present value of the difference in cash
NWIRSREZRNBERTN X flows between the contractual payments required
AR MBS NAE =R under the debt instruments and the payments
TR o BT EREREITHN that would be required without the guarantee, or
B RERBEAEBEANZE the estimated amount that would be payable to
BEMNBER T AR o ARk E a third party for assessing the obligations. Where
WEBKRE BIARRAXEY S consideration is received or receivable for the
RIEELE W AR ERR TR - issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is

recognised in accordance with the Company’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where
no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on

initial recognition of any deferred income.

Hizg  BBERIDIZNFE2.8F 1R Subsequently, financial guarantees are measured at
BIESMERBRIREEMEHRELE the higher of the amount determined in accordance
AIEREEN BN E R 2 with ECL under HKFRS 9 as set out in Note 2.8
R B ISR E B RANERN Rt and the amount initially recognised less, where
WATHRE NS ERE - appropriate, the cumulative amount of income

recognised over the guarantee period.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. TESHHERE (&)
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ERFEN  AEEKEES
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Leases
(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease.
A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of
a contract, that conveys the right to use an
identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’.
To apply this definition, the Group assesses
whether the contract meets three key

evaluations which are whether:

— the contract contains an identified asset,
which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made

available to the Group;

— the Group has the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset throughout
the period of use, considering its rights
within the defined scope of the contract;

and

— the Group has the right to direct the use of
the identified asset throughout the period
of use. The Group assesses whether it
has the right to direct ‘how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the

period of use.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2,134 (&) 2.13 Leases (Continued)
(a) HEZEEZERAEFBAHBEA

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

(%)
1ERABANGT EMERHE

EHEMGBR  AEEEGE
MR R T EREREEE
MEERE - EREEERK
A8 ZRABHBEEAED
IR E  ARBELNEM
MsEEAAS  EEERER
HARRIFRBRMBREREEN
fRTAANAERK - E A REM
Ehta B H 2 A A e AR
B3R (0 BR Y B &9 (17 23K
Ehae) °

BRAAREEFMETENRE
REEENNERAEGHRA
MW—REWE  #EMREER
MWEREEEN  AEERE
BORYIEREEEETTINE -
WHERAMESERESR
EHEAFDAERKESH
[RiEMZBZH > ABREER
% BRIFAKELREETAEMR
EHRESH AR - E%ER
FER - A&EB e bREE
WEREEE - TAEREME
EENEERAEMHELN
ME - B RREBBNER
BEE WQREEFE-

(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a

lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position. The right-of-use asset is
measured at cost, which is made up of the
initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset at the end of the lease,
and any lease payments made in advance of
the lease commencement date (net of any

incentives received).

Except for those right-of-use assets meeting
the definition of investment properties and
those relating to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which revaluation model was
applied, the Group depreciates the right-of-
use assets on a straight-line basis from the
lease commencement date to the earlier of the
end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset
or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at
the end of the lease term. The Group also
assess the right-of-use asset for impairment
when such indicator exists. Those right-of-
use assets meeting the definition of investment
properties or relating to a class of property,
plant and equipment to which revaluation
model was applied are subsequently measured
at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policies.
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2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2,134 (&) 2.13 Leases (Continued)
(a) HEZEZRFAEBZAHEA (a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(#&) (Continued)
ERERMAGEFHEREE Measurement and recognition of leases as a
(%) lessee (Continued)

ERBBEEH NEBNEBRXR
MEOEENFENREFER
ERE YEREEPRESH
M= (40 R EXE 5 HETE 7% A
) A B A 18 B R SRR X
EITHIR -

AR ERBEFENHEENRK
HHEEMNRBE(BREE L
B [B] 5E 15 SRER ) IR 2= 1 ] B WX
HE R - EREHEA RN
AN R ARRIBEREE
RIEFTEMN RS EEANK - HE
NHRBEEREFEAEEESHA
SETENBERERERNITE
B ANMINREE AR RBRA
SETERLHERERE A
AR IEHENTRK

EYRETEZE - BRI
MEBRE  WIRINEHEREHN
MERA - BT EARBRE
MEHMFEHEEEE  HE

At the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments unpaid at that
date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group’s incremental

borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability are made up of fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed
payment) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable payments based on an index or rate,
and amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee. The lease payments
also included the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Group and payment of penalties for
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects

the Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability
will be reduced for payments made and
increased for interest cost on the lease liability.
It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or if there are changes in

in-substance fixed payments.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2,134 (&) 2.13 Leases (Continued)
(a) HEZEEZERAEFBAHBEA

(a) Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

(%)

1ERABAGT EFIERHE
(#)
HRARIEREBHEETER
REMNHEEBSN - AEEIRIE
EREHENHERNENTE
HERE  HEREREBNRE
A BE 1R BT R EHE 2
BEOEENREETITR -

HEEHMAER  HENFHE
REREEREBES - RE
REBECKLRAT  AlFTA

ANEBIEZRBECRIETA
HIEHHEETTEARIE -
15 e TH B AE B B0 A SR HE R
REEEMEERE  mIE
HERRANLEREER DB
mTPNEM - RHEEERENE
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ERAEEENZINERE T
MAKFBESENE  HER
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(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a

lessee (Continued)

For lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the
lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the

effective date of modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the
right-of-use asset, or profit or loss if the right-

of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-
term leases using the practical expedients.
Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and
lease liability, the payments in relation to these
lease are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term

of 12 months or less.

Right-of-use assets are presented included
in property, plant and equipment of the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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2. FEEHBERBE (A 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2,134 (&) 2.13 Leases (Continued)
(b) FEEHHHEA (b) The Group as a lessor

EREMEA  NEEGEEE As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as
DTRAREHENREMEE - either operating or finance leases.
MREEEE T ER T HER A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
BEEMBEEENOME AR transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
M - B ERREEE incidental to ownership of the underlying asset,
MRTER - Ao RAKENR or classified as an operating lease if it does not.
e,

REEBTREREMENRLE The Group also earns rental income from
HERBMES WA - HEUWKA operating leases of its investment properties.
EEERNIRERERER - Rental income is recognised on a straight-line

basis over the term of the lease.

QUBBEBRIREE 2.14 Provisions and contingent liabilities
EAEERBESHEMmMAE TR Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
B OEENETE)  BITZEK present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
RAREER S AL ENMZERMR of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
t o MBS A AR S g of economic benefits will be required to settle the
it RIFEFER M - MR BERE obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
BEEKXN BEBEBRETEBER the obligation can be made. Where the time value
P sz B IRETIE - of money is material, provisions are stated at the

present value of the expenditure expected to settle

the obligation.

FrEREREERSE BT UE All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
& I 1 B DA S BR B B AR E A and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
i e
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2. FEEHBERFE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

QU4 BERRREE (F) 2.14 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
e TRRAIGEALEN =ML - Where it is not probable that an outflow of
A SR R A LA A] S 4 economic benefits will be required, or the amount
et e aEREERIEE cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
& - BRIFAE M 22 B AT BE 115 disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
N BIVERIER - RIS IR EERER probability of outflow of economic benefits is
BT B AN E e — (B S & remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
B EEARKREREANE LN AL will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
TUBBENEBEERT  TEERER occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
A BE - RIFLEN R LA A not wholly within the control of the Group, are
getEtgm/ N - RIERIGS © also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
2.15 R & 2.15 Share capital
B DR AR - BRANIRRE Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
BTHRE EMRERERET capital is recognised at the amount of consideration
(FBREMABR PSS H AR ) RE of shares issued, after deducting any transaction
HBEBNMERX ZBRE  UEE costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
BRGMBEBEEENKERR - any related income tax benefit) to the extent they

are incremental costs directly attributable to the

equity transaction.
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2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Y = 72 2.16 Revenue recognition

WAKRBHEFEDE  KEHE
TZHEEBRARDEERRA -

2. MEBHOES -

3. MERSER -

4. BRHEROBGEBEHOE -

5. B/ERITEOEBRERY
A o

2 (HER) REBBEB K AN

BmE RS EREEE P RKETE

A YA TE Z {8 5 ) Bh S BB
i 1 AR o

Revenue arises from the sale of properties held
for sale, rental income under operating leases and

estate management income.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the

Group follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer.

2. ldentifying the performance obligations.

3. Determining the transaction price.

4. Allocating the transaction price to the

performance obligations.

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance

obligation(s) are satisfied.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time
or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the

promised goods or services to its customers.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.16 Wz #ER2 ()
AN ER B A Ko ELAth Yo A B 5R BUR Y
BRI

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

HEW AN BREEFTIR
MtsE 2.13(b).

(i) WE EE

MEEERELENWENIEH
RGO &5 IR HER o

(i) WEHFHE (i) Sales of properties
WaHNEEHERE (FHA)E Revenue from sales of properties recognised
ERGIETE —RHEEERR when (or as) the control of the property is
R WA EFESETT transferred at a point in time. Revenue is
MENEYRBRSOEENRA recognised when the customer obtains the
- BARSECESRR WK physical possession or the legal title of the
TN A A ge W [ (B R R completed property and the Group has present
right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.
HYMEZINTFEFARE T Deposits received from customers prior to
BHETE ko BERBERE delivery of the properties to the customers are
i contract liabilities.
W& A P R AE 2 W 3 B B For contract where the period between the
HESMNRBBHEZ —FIU payment by the customer and the transfer of
P RH5EREERAXEKRY the promised property or service exceeds one
BEROTEMWHAE - year, the transaction price is adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component.
Gii) #HEHA (ii) Rental income

Accounting policies for rental income are set
out in Note 2.13(b).

(iii) Estate management income

Revenue is recognised in the period when

services are rendered.
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NEERIY - PR BB EEDFET
BAE A o

E-REAEZEEESRAER B
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Interest income

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of ECL

allowance) of the asset.

(v) Dividend income

Revenue from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ right to receive payment is
established.

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, other non-current
asset and interests in subsidiaries in the statement
of financial position of the Company are subject
to impairment testing. All such assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the

asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of

money and the risk specific to the asset.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

217 FERMEERESE ()

ERHERER - B - HEEEBYL
REMEER TEAERDIERESR
A B A B U & B AL &/ N E B EY
BEFMBIMNBERKETE (AR
BERELERSEL) - FHit - GLE
BEFERERBRERR - A LLRAE
RIEERSEMERERR - £8
BRFBFEN D RCREMBRBE - A7
BEIRZEMNELRCEM - X
FHAEAM T Ao Beks &/ ME R R E
AREEN  ERERFENDR
BESURE BB o

BEBBDZZEERAELRESE
22 L5 BR - BRIFZBEZRE
ETREREER 2 XA ERER
ERASAERERE -

IR AN EE B E A W E S R
SPEEENEL  BEEEENK
[ & FE T B 48 AN R M TE M FHBR IT &
B HMIRm SR EE R - RIR
BReEm - MRRAERRER
5 o

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual cash-generating units, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the assets
in the cash-generating unit, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost of disposal, or value

in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.
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2. TESHHERE (&) 2.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through several defined contribution plans. In
addition, the employees employed under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance are also entitled
to long service payment (“LSP”) if the eligibility

criteria are met. The LSP are defined benefits plans.

(a) Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong, for all of its employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Moreover, as required by law, companies in
Malaysia make contributions to the national
pension scheme, the Employee Provident Fund
(“EPF”). Contributions are made based on a

percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries that
operate in the PRC are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. This subsidiary is
required to contribute 10% of its payroll costs

to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as employees render services
during the year. The Group’s obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage

contributions payable.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

218 EERA (&) 2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)
BKEF () Retirement benefits (Continued)
(b) REX 7z il 2 (b) Defined benefit plans
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The amount of long service benefit that
an employee will receive on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances is
defined by reference to the employee’s length
of service and corresponding salary. The legal
obligations for any benefits remains with the

Group.

The LSP obligations recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position is
the present value of the LSP obligation at the

reporting date.

Management estimates the LSP obligations
annually. This is based on the discount rate,
the salary growth rate, turnover rate and the
expected investment return on offsetable
MPF accrued benefits. Discount factors are
determined close to the end of each annual
reporting period by reference to government
bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid and have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the

related defined benefit liability.
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2. FEFHBERFBE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
218 EERA (&) 2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)
RIKEF (&) Retirement benefits (Continued)
(b) REXzEE (E) (b) Defined benefit plans (Continued)

REX@mKARDEMAT : Defined benefit costs are categorised as

follows:

o RBBEA (BFE B BB e service cost (including current and past
EWRFEAKA - LA KB service cost, and gains and losses on
MEENBZE) curtailments and settlements);

o JFMEBEXHIWA R * net interest expense or income; and

s EHFE- e remeasurement.

REBREX mat ERRBK Service cost on the Group’s defined benefit

RAABIHFMER - BEITH plan is included in employee benefits expense.

HERGFEERRB  HRBR Employee contributions, all of which are

BRI A - independent of the number of years of service,

are treated as a reduction of service cost.

REX @ FBRENFNE W Net interest expense on the net defined benefit
BEEEIRMIEd - liability is included in employee benefits
expenses.
B EREXDFREEL Gains and losses resulting from remeasurements
BN AE K (B IEEEER of the net defined benefit liability, comprising
MEBEX)FAEMERS W - actuarial gains and losses, are included in
WHAENRPRESHEEE other comprehensive income and are not
o reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

218 EEER () 2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)
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Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised

until the time of leave.

2.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment
income earned on the temporary investment
of the specific borrowing, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing

costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are complete.
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2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Accounting for income taxes
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Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of

tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well
as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be

utilised.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss and does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary

differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For investment property measured using the fair
value model in accordance with the accounting
policy above, the measurement of the related
deferred tax liability or asset reflects the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amount
of the investment property entirely through sale,
unless the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,

rather than through sale.
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2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
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For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies the requirements in HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” (“HKAS 12”) to the lease liabilities and the
related assets separately. The Group recognises
a deferred tax asset related to the lease liabilities
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred

tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of
taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the average tax rates that are
expected to apply to the taxable income of the
periods in which the temporary differences are

expected to reverse.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
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Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if:

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to

set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.
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2. TESHHERE(HF) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

221 R E 2.21 Segment reporting
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The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the chief operating decision makers for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service

lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable

segments:

Property sales;

—  Property rentals;

Estate management; and

—  Others — securities trading

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried

out at arm’s length prices.
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2. TESHHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

221 7| E (&) 2.21 Segment reporting (Continued)
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The measurement policies the Group uses
for reporting segment results under HKFRS 8
“Operating Segments” (“HKFRS 8”) are the same
as those used in its financial statements prepared
under HKFRS Accounting Standards, except that
finance costs, corporate income and expenses
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not included
in arriving at the operating results of the operating

segment.

Segment assets include all assets but bank balances
and cash, pledged time deposits, deferred tax
assets and corporate assets, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment,

which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and are not
allocated to a segment. These include tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities, certain borrowings and long

service payment obligations.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to

reportable segments.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Related parties

For the purpose of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to

the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of

the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures

of the same third party;
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate

of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group
and the sponsoring employers are also

related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close family members of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. RAMANEBITERMBR 3.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Amended HKFRS Accounting Standards that are

effective for annual periods beginning on 1 July 2024

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
following amended HKFRS Accounting Standards issued
by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group's
operations and effective for the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on
1 July 2024:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7

and HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance

Arrangements

Except for those mentioned below, the adoption of the
amended HKFRS Accounting Standards had no material
impact on how the results and financial position for
the current and prior periods have been prepared and

presented.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

FEAFITRRZBETEEBHMBEBEHR 3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
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HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amended HKFRS Accounting Standards that are
effective for annual periods beginning on 1 July 2024
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current” (“2020 Amendments”) and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
and Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants” (“2022 Amendments”)

The amendments clarified the classification of debt and
other liabilities as current or non-current, depending
on whether an entity has a right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months from the
reporting date and this right has to be existed at the
reporting date. Any expectations about events after the
reporting period do not impact the assessment of the
classification of the liabilities make at the reporting date
as to the classification of the liability.

Covenants of a loan arrangement that an entity must
comply with on or before the reporting date (even if
the covenant is only assessed after the reporting date)
affect the classification of that liability as current or
non-current. Covenants that the entity is required to
comply with after the reporting date do not affect the
classification at the reporting date.

The amendments also define “settlements” of a
liability, which includes transfer of entity’s own
equity instrument. However, if the holder’s conversion
option in a convertible bond is classified as equity
in accordance with HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation”, the transfer of equity instruments by
exercising the conversion option does not constitute
settlement of liability and would be disregarded when
determining whether the liability is current or non-
current. If the holder’s conversion option is classified
as liability, such option must be considered for the
determination of current/non-current classification of a
convertible bond.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. RAMANEBITERMBR 3.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amended HKFRS Accounting Standards that are
effective for annual periods beginning on 1 July 2024
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current” (“2020 Amendments”) and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
and Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities

with Covenants” (“2022 Amendments”) (Continued)

The amendments are applied retrospectively.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at
1 July 2024, the application of amendments did not

result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRS
Accounting Standards have been published but are not

yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the
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Group.

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 21

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards

Amendment to Hong Kong

Interpretation 5
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. MAFITRZBEITEEBHEIR 3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED

HEAETER (&) HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

ERBEDMRERZEBYBHREE Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting

RlE A (&) Standards (Continued)

VO EHARZEZRFE AR —HzziER ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
5 B F JZ HA 1 January 2025

O ERARZERF-A-HRZER 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
15 B9 4F 2 2 1 January 2026

OEAR-E AT A -BRZERA > Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
15 B F Z HA 1 January 2027

Y A H IR AREEE +  Effective date not yet determined

EETER AR ELERBHRZ The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements

‘ARSI HEEAEESFTBRR will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy

PEA - Bt e ARESTHRRESL for the first period beginning on or after the effective

TENFII RRET BB K RELE date of the pronouncement. Information on new

Al E RN - EM¥ra] REIERTEE and amended HKFRS Accounting Standards that are

M mELEAEG IS HAEENLG expected to have impact on the Group’s accounting

EMBBRELEETEATE - policies is provided below. Other new and amended

HKFRS Accounting Standards are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. MAFITRZBEITEBHEIR 3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED

HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements” (“HKFRS 18”) and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” (“HKAS 1”). It carries forward many of the
existing requirements in HKAS 1, with limited changes,
and some HKAS 1 requirements will be moved to
HKAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors” and HKFRS 7 “Financial

Instruments: Disclosures”.

HKFRS 18 will not impact the recognition and
measurement of financial statements items but the
presentation of them. It introduces three major new

requirements, including:

e reporting newly defined subtotals (namely
“operating profits” and “profits before financing
and income tax”), and classifying items into five
newly defined categories (namely “operating”,
“investing”, “financing”, “income tax” and
“discontinued operation”), depending on the
reporting entity’s main business activities, in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss;

e Disclosure of management-defined performance
measures (“MPMs”) in a single note to the financial

statements; and
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. MAFITRZBEITEEBHEIR 3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
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HKFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements” (“HKFRS 18”) and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Continued)

e enhanced guidance of aggregation and
disaggregation of information in the financial

statements.

Besides, narrow-scope amendments have been made to
HKAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, which includes:

e using “operating profit or loss” as the starting
point for indirect method for the presentation of

operating cash flows purposes; and

e the option for classifying interest and dividend cash

flows as operating activities is eliminated.

In addition, there are consequential amendments to

several other standards.

HKFRS 18, and the amendments to the other HKFRS
Accounting Standards, are effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2027 and must
be applied retrospectively with specific transition

provisions.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year

are discussed below:

Fair value of properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar property in similar
location and condition and subject to lease and
other contracts. In making its judgement, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources

including:

(i) the floor areas of the properties with respect
to the consideration from the independent and

identified buyer;

(ii) current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature, condition or location (or
subject to different lease or other contracts),

adjusted to reflect those differences;
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

4. EXEEIEET R A E (&) 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
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Fair value of properties (Continued)

(iii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those

prices;

(iv) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived
from the terms of any existing lease and other
contracts and using discount rate that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows;

and

(v) costs that will be expended to complete the
development to reflect the quality of the
completed development on the basis that the
properties will be developed and completed
in accordance with the Group’s latest

development plan.

The Group’s properties have been valued
individually, on market value basis, which
conforms to The Hong Kong Institute of Survey
Valuation Standards. In estimating the fair value
of the properties, the management of the Group
has considered the highest and best use of the
properties. The carrying amount of the investment
properties and land and buildings as at 30 June
2025 are approximately HK$3,682,520,000
and HK$180,660,000 respectively (2024:
HK$5,365,067,000 and HK$186,254,000
respectively). Details of the fair value information

are set out in Notes 14 and 15.
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4. EXREEH AT R A E (F) 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

4.1 fHEF FHEEE M (8)
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Allowance for properties under development and

completed properties for sale

In determining whether allowances should be made
for the Group’s properties under development for
sale, the Group takes into consideration the current
market environment and the estimated market
value (i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of selling expenses less estimated costs to
completion of the properties). An allowance is
made if the estimated market value is less than
the carrying amount. If the actual market value
on properties under development for sale is less
than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development cost, material provision for
impairment losses may result. The carrying amount
of the properties under development for sale as at
30 June 2025 is approximately HK$2,076,838,000
(2024: HK$1,394,106,000). Provision for
properties under development for sale amounted
to HK$166,068,000 have been written down to
net realisable value during the year ended 30 June
2025 (2024: Nil).
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

4. ERGF TR HAE (&) 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
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Allowance for properties under development and

completed properties for sale (Continued)

Management exercises its judgement in making
allowance for completed properties for sale with
reference to the existing market environment
and the estimated market value of the properties,
i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of selling expenses. A specific allowance
for completed properties for sale is made if the
estimate market value of the property is lower
than its carrying amount. If the actual market
values of the completed properties for sale are
less than expected, as a result of change in market
condition, material provision for impairment losses
may result. The carrying amount of the completed
properties as at 30 June 2025 is approximately
HK$1,513,738,000 (2024: HK$1,586,016,000). No
completed properties for sale have been written
down to net realisable value during the year ended
30 June 2025 (2024: Nil).
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4. ERGF AT R HAE (&) 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements
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Accounting for taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong, the PRC, Malaysia and Macau. There
are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Significant
management judgement is required in determining
the provision of income taxes. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities in

the period in which such determination is made.

In measuring the Group’s deferred tax on
investment properties measured at fair value,
management of the Group have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of these
investment properties measured using the fair value
model were recovered entirely through sales was
not rebutted. Deferred tax has been provided at tax
rates that are expected to apply upon sales of the
investment properties held by the subsidiaries of
the Group in Hong Kong, Macau, Malaysia and the
PRC.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

4. ERGF TR HAE (&) 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)
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Accounting for taxation (Continued)

For the properties in the PRC, the tax expenses on
changes in fair value of investment properties and
properties sales are recognised taking into account
the Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) and Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT”) payable upon sales of those
properties in the PRC. The LAT is determined
based on management’s best estimates according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations and provided at ranges
of progressive rates of the appreciation value,
with certain allowable deductions including land
costs, borrowing costs and the relevant property
development expenditures. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and these differences will impact
the income tax expenses and tax provision in
periods in which such taxes have been finalised
with local tax authorities. As at 30 June 2025,
deferred tax liabilities in relation to the valuation
of properties of approximately HK$639,183,000
(2024: HK$704,926,000) have been recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position as at 30 June 2025, as set out in Note 27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. EXRSEHEE R A E (&)

4.2 EREGHHE (&)

FreB et = (&)

BE  —HEABRTIEBENRLER
5 & 42,678,000 L (ZZF =Y
F : 42,678,000/ 7C) EERNEH
RZEZRAFNA=THMNEREH
B MK P HER - FI5SEHM
27 BEMRBEENERFE
KEREHE BHARKFESEARKF
ERBRRRGEER - WEEENE
SRR R TE R - B RAVRT
MEEERELRRE  LOEEe
ZHE R ER R ER o

5. WA
AEBZTBEBESAUBRRE
EHETARE - RAEER - RE A
EMIBEBEIEORIBZIRAMT :

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)
Accounting for taxation (Continued)

In addition, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$42,678,000 (2024: HK$42,678,000) in relation
to tax losses have been recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2025, as detailed in Note 27. The
recognition of the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, a material
reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period

in which such a reversal takes place.

5. REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note
1 to these consolidated financial statements. Revenue
from the Group’s principal activities recognised during

the year is as follows:

—E-RHE —EoE

2025 2024

FHET FAT

HK$’000 HK$000

Y HE Property sales 135,484 155,629
MEHEE Property rentals 32,992 31,794
g Estate management 40 619
168,516 188,042
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

5. WA (&) 5. REVENUE (Continued)
HEFEITSRNERA DR Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers
REBRAT EBERRMM I TS The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods
Ry ) 0 3t B #2745 7 mm A PR TS E 1S U - and services in the following major product lines and

geographical market:

BEZ_Z_AF~A=1RHLEE
Year ended 30 June 2025

NEHE NERE NEER L
Property Property Estate
sales rentals management Total

TR TERT TERT TR
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000

72 & Segments
& 5 35 Geographical markets
i PRC 135,484 861 - 136,345
BE Hong Kong = 31,116 40 31,156
SR Malaysia - 1,015 = 1,015
135,484 32,992 40 168,516
BEEBMKHERER Timing of revenue recognition
BIRREIRER under HKFRS 15 from external
ES N customers
XA At a point in time 135,484 - - 135,484
BEZ B MR Over time - - 40 40
WA EE BT B#RE Revenue not in the scope of
ERBEISHHNEER HKFRS 15 - 32,992 - 32,992
135,484 32,992 40 168,516
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

5. WA (4&) 5. REVENUE (Continued)
HEFEITARNBA DR (E) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)
BE-_Z-_MFEAA=THILEFE
Year ended 30 June 2024

MEHE NERE MEER a5
Property Property Estate

sales rentals  management Total

TET ThET TR TAET

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2% Segments
& 18,5 Geographical markets
hE PRC 53,654 - - 53,654
Bt Hong Kong 101,975 31,032 619 133,626
SRAE S Malaysia ~ 762 — 762
155,629 31,794 619 188,042
REBEMBREER Timing of revenue recogpition
ERRENRER under HKFRS 15 from external
BRRANER customers
T3 (RS B At a point in time 155,629 J L 155,629
REEEROED Over time - - 619 619
BWANEEZ B BRS Revenue not in the scope of
ERFISRNEBER HKFRS 15 - 31,794 - 31,794
155,629 31,794 619 188,042
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

6. DEER

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

ARAEE (BETEEEARAN)ED The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
REE 7 EEHEEFFMRMIFE2.21 © operating decision makers, have identified the Group’s
Ty = Ay o R B o T N bR O SR B reportable segments as further described in Note 2.21.
DEREEXBEREMIEL R MER These reportable segments are monitored and strategic
SRTE © decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment
operating results:
—EZ-HEF 2025
NREE NEEE NEER Rt g
Property Property Estate
sales rentals  management Others Total
THR FTHER TER THER THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ON Revenue
RE P s From external customers 135,484 32,992 40 = 168,516
ALl 25 Inter-segment revenue - 840 16,074 - 16,914
EHRE D HUA Reportable segment revenue 135,484 33,832 16,114 = 185,430
ERESH(F8R) &A Reportable segment (loss)/profit (175,286) (905,055) 1,082 (23,629)  (1,102,888)
Eth&H - Other information:
nE BERREHE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 120 4,164 148 - 4,432
RREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets - - 2,566 - 2,566
FRESHON Income tax credit (35,336) (1,794) - = (37,130)
RENEAABERD Decrease in fair value of
investment properties - 914,881 - - 914,881
BARBEFARELZ Increase in fair value of financial
EREERLBEEM assets at FVTPL - - - (12,838) (12,838)
HERD A BE AL Loss on disposal of financial assets
FEbREZEREERE at FVT0Cl - - = 39,627 39,627
FRPGENERE Provision for properties under
development for sale 166,068 - - - 166,068
EREIBEE Reportable segment assets 3,605,374 3,689,260 5,841 2,955 7,303,430
EREIHEE Reportable segment liabilities 160,078 262,599 7,196 2,265 432,138
ERFRDNHEE Additions to non-current segment
(ERIARERHE assets (other than financial
B5h) instruments and deferred tax

assets) during the year 202 5,352 243 - 5,797

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 (([) HR/45  Annual Report 2025 41t



GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

6. DEER (&) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
—E_WEF 2024
MEHE NEHE UESS: Efty R
Property Property Estate
sales rentals  management Others Total

TR TAL TR TAL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BA Revenue
MRE P s From external customers 155,629 31,794 619 - 188,042
2R s Inter-segment revenue - 840 49,252 = 50,092
ERE D HRA Reportable segment revenue 155,629 32,634 49,871 = 238,134
EREsREH/ (B8 Reportable segment profit/(loss) 71,231 (156,436) 5,747 22,589 (56,869)
AR Other information:
nE BRERRBHE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 27 462 130 - 619
ERREENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets - 777 2,394 - 3,171
MERGIA) /3 Income tax (crediti/expense (325,405) 20,284 < = (305,121)
REWERABERD Decrease in fair value of
investment properties - 154,070 - = 154,070
BRALEEIARRL Increase in fair value of financial
SREEAAEBEEM assets at FVTPL 4 - - (6,000) (6,000)
EREIHEE Reportable segment assets 3,779,612 4,584,165 3,847 57216 8,424,840
BRI BEE Reportable segment liabilities 132,033 262,555 4,801 6,157 405,546
FRFERDABEE Additions to non-current segment
(ERIARERHE assets (other than financial
BRAM) 20 instruments and deferred tax
assets) during the year 29 7,620 1,663 = 9,312
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

6. 7 EBEF ()
AEE 2 LB EMEARKE Y
BHBRFHBREREDHREMT :

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
The totals presented for the Group’s reportable
segments reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures

as presented in the consolidated financial statements as

follows:

—E-REF —F - F

2025 2024

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

AR E 5 B A Reportable segment revenue 185,430 238,134
N = Elimination of inter segment revenue (16,914) (50,092)
SEBA Revenue of the Group 168,516 188,042
AR E D EEE Reportable segment loss (1,102,888) (56,869)
F NN /NN Unallocated corporate income 18,548 17,698
AHOBRA M Unallocated corporate expenses (43,006) (41,516)
B 75 A A Finance costs (53,855) (53,831)
£ 3] % T B E 18 Loss before income tax of the Group (1,181,201) (134,518)
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GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Reportable segment assets
Bank balances and cash
Other corporate assets

Deferred tax assets

Total assets of the Group

Reportable segment liabilities
Tax payable

Interest-bearing borrowings
Other corporate liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities of the Group

Annual Report 2025 4:# ¢ CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (%£8) H5RAH

—E_RE —E-_F
2025 2024
TET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
7,303,430 8,424,840
834,506 881,792
209,746 240,055
15,001 15,001
8,362,683 9,561,688
432,138 405,546
192,260 215,495
1,023,520 1,131,508
250,817 211,617
639,183 704,926
2,537,918 2,669,092
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

6. 7EER (F)
REBMMINREF K RIERDEE
(2B TARBERBEERI) UE
LHWRESMT

EX(EEM) Hong Kong (domicile)
B PRC

B P Macau

2R Ph g Malaysia

BEEMMIEMEERREHRE RN
BEYRVE - FFRBEE (SR T A
BERIAEERIN) 2R A EEFT
s s B o

RARRBRELERAR  KEEZ T2
EEMRAEENTE -

AEBFAWAESE —IINEREHR
SWATEETI0%IA L -

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s revenues from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following

geographical areas:

HNREF WS

Revenue from external

FRBEE

customers Non-current assets
—E-RHE —EoNFE ZE-RE —E-UF
2025 2024 2025 2024
TF#&E T FAET T#ET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
31,156 133,626 3,000,200 3,250,960
136,345 53,654 453,302 453,328
— - = 1,448,441
1,015 762 417,433 403,857
168,516 188,042 3,870,935 5,556,586

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the non-
current assets (other than financial instruments and
deferred tax assets) is based on the physical location of

the assets.

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal place of the Group’s operation mainly are
Hong Kong and the PRC.

No revenue from transaction with single external
customer is amounted to 10% or more for the Group’s

revenue for the year.
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GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

7. OTHER INCOME

—E_RE —E-_F

2025 2024
TR THET
HK$’000 HK$’000

Dividend income from listed equity
investments 3,149 4,425
Interest income 18,032 15,829
Sundry income 516 1,878
21,697 22,132

8. FINANCE COSTS

—E_RE —EoE

2025 2024
THERT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Interest charges on:
Bank loans and overdrafts
(Note 26) 37,978 38,577
Advance from a director
(Note 32(a)) 14,756 13,043
Other incidental borrowing costs 939 2,163
Finance charges on lease liabilities 182 48
53,855 53,831
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

9. BRBAIEE 9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX
MR E R &G ~5EE Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging the
following:

—E-H5F —TomF

2025 2024
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BTN (BRESEHE) Staff costs (include directors’
emoluments)
& IEREMEBR Salaries, wages and other benefits 24,909 23,571
E RRAR KR A ET B K Contribution to defined
(K1i%(a)) contribution plans (Note (a)) 721 713
25,630 24,284
ZEEN & Auditors’ remuneration
NEE Current year 936 864
BB X H (M atn) Contract interest payment (Note (b)) 24,468 5,200
ERASBEANYEFERA Cost of stock properties recognised
as expenses 86,339 52,532
Y3 - IR RRIEITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 4,432 619
EREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,566 3,171
KREWEREEHETRAD Direct outgoings in respect of
BEMAAR investment properties that
generate rental income 16,568 15,431
KEMEREELETEES WK AR Direct outgoings in respect of
BEMAAR investment properties that did not
generate rental income 188 184
P 5 &5 1R % R Net exchange loss 4,779 534
HEEM Lease charges:
FEHIEE Short-term leases 158 143
BRIZE A EE AHM Loss on disposal of financial assets
rEHKREZEMEERR at FVTOCI 39,627 -
HEREYHEER Loss on disposal of investment
properties - 5,949
BHRPTEYERE Provision for properties under
development for sale 166,068 -
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9.

10.

o & BB SRR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR A& 1R ()
Kzt -

R-EBE-_AFER_ZT_NENA=+
A AEBERIZARE S EEL2KH
BRPHFHRIBEL A21,0008 7T - HE
TECRFR-ZE_NFANAZTH
FERN - NEBZEFEALRAHR
AR IR A L FROKF -

(a)

HE_ZE_AFAZtHILFE"
AREEELE DB 124,468,000
B (ZZF P4 : 5,200,000 70) °

FREBiET A
HRAEESERARREBE_FT _AF
NZZE_OEFRA=1tTHILFEES
B B ERTE A - SRR A B
HEFEENHIARR WL BEREE
s mMER P REHEEABFEH
RBFOERMERIES) - HEHERF]

B E 525% (—F U4 : 25%) o

T 3 38 (B B A B A AR IR AE B BY AR B AR
WORBIERWBEGE - THIRERE
ATHER 2 E RGERMHN - LHERT
LT ©

9.

10.

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) As at 30 June 2025 and 2024, there was a sum of
approximately HK$21,000 in the forfeited account of the
Group under the MPF Scheme. During the years ended
30 June 2025 and 2024, the Group did not utilise any
amount in the forfeited account to reduce the existing

level of contributions.

During the year ended 30 June 2025,
made a contract interest payment of HK$24,468,000
(2024: HK$5,200,000).

the Group has

INCOME TAX CREDIT
Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided in the

consolidated financial statements as the respective
group companies did not have assessable profit in Hong
Kong for the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024 or
the assessable profit was set-off against tax loss brought

forward from previous years.

Under The New Law and Implementation Regulations,
the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2024: 25%).

The provision for LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain

allowable deductions.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

10. TS FHFT A (&) 10.INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)
BINSEANO B EREEARNEE (HtE Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
RBE A RBRAEBKEMTRIEE the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
ERMIBITHEGTER - of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the

Group operates.

—E_RE —EPOF

2025 2024
FE T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEEBIE Current tax
PRI XS R PRC EIT
- RFEH — Charge for the year 13,255 7,484
- EEZE AT — Over-provision in respect of
prior years (Note) - (353,163)
13,255 (345,679)
FR B B AR PRC LAT 18,671 55,244
AR B FE A Withholding tax on dividend - 20,436
31,926 (269,999)
ELEBL R Deferred tax
KEFEE (Hiz27) Current year (Note 27) (69,056) (35,523)
FTiEsi#st A Total income tax credit (37,130) (305,522)
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

10.FF B8 %H st A (&) 10.INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)
AiEABREAENREEET A et Reconciliation between income tax credit and
BBz MR accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

—E-FHE T _PF

2025 2024
FTHET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
R 75 Al B 48 Loss before income tax (1,181,201) (134,518)
BEBFERBE16.5%tE (ZZF Tax at Hong Kong profits tax
ZPHF 16.5%) ZFIE rate of 16.5% (2024: 16.5%) (194,898) (22,195)
NRIHUR S B2 TS s & Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses 107,122 OM3 79
BART W 2 RIG B Tax effect of non-taxable
revenue (17,344) (19,917)
BN R ER| 2 M E Tax effect of differences in
overseas tax rates 39,586 9,856
REERRBERBE G E Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised 11,283 1,340
AEERARERAHGE B 2T Tax effect of utilisation of
FE unrecognised tax losses (1,550) (6,495)
EFZ R Over-provision in respect of
prior years - (353,163)
T IR E R LAT 18,671 55,244
A& S TR Withholding tax on dividend - 20,436
FBHTA Income tax credit (37,130) (305,522)
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

10. TS FHFT A (&)
EE

R —FNAR - ARR-HEEZENE
NEEEREMERE ORI FR AR ([1H#
BRI WB T B BB K E AR
BRYINEHERBRETHEEE £
T FER  BEFRIEK T RGEE
B WIREIBAN T BAE AR A T IR ET -

BIEFBEERBERE2016F E815E (AR
EHEMAZECERELHIBERRENSE
S BRRMEN RS ATHBI81I%A
) rEYUARENEIEERESE
B BFHEBRCEMBHEALRE
B BEEE—SPHEFEEEAMEER
BHEAN  ZHNCEMSHERLEERE
BEEmBEARTERR -

XM AEIEEE  BE_T__FH
=THIESFE  BEFNGEHEE -
MmESEMIEEE - Bt 82 R ER
WA SR 88 T 3R E T - R EEIRIDE
BERAMEHFTISHBRENS NN T
WIBER  NAIFEFEZHEEMEN
BIES o IRIRSTIRAE - HEXRYIAFBERE
LARTF [E 8 A8 1 2 FT1S B+ 3R T B 55 K
I AR BE REREEFRIRELOA
R #328,900,0007T (18E 7 #9351,700,000
BIL) c RRECR _E-=F+tF25HENK

B o

10.INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

Note:

In September 2021, Power Wide Property Development
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Power Wide SZ”), the indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, received a request
from the local tax bureau to conduct the land appreciation
tax clearance on its real estate development project located in
Shenzhen, PRC. In July 2022, Power Wide SZ completed the
tax clearance procedure and duly paid the final assessed land

appreciation tax.

In accordance with the State Taxation Administration
Announcement 2016 No. 81 on issues related to the refund
of enterprise income tax arising from the settlement of land
appreciation tax by real estate development enterprises
(hereinafter as “No. 81 Announcement”), whereby after an
enterprise conducts the settlement of land appreciation tax
on a development project, any loss occurs after the final
settlement and payment of enterprise income tax in the current
year and there being no further sale of properties and no other
subsequent development projects, the enterprise income tax

overpaid for the project during its project life can be refunded.

Due to the COVID impact, Power Wide SZ had no sale of
property which resulted in a tax loss for the year ended
30 June 2022, thereby did not have sufficient assessable
income to offset the land appreciation tax. As Power Wide
SZ did not have sufficient assessable income to offset the
land appreciation tax paid, an overpaid of enterprise income
tax in previous years was noted. In accordance with No. 81
Announcement, Power Wide SZ applied for the enterprise
income tax paid in previous years to be refunded, the tax
refund application was successful and the local tax bureau
had agreed to refund approximately RMB328.9 million
(equivalents to approximately HK$351.7 million) to Power

Wide SZ. The amount was fully received in July 2023.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

1.8 11.DIVIDENDS
@ FFERE (a) Dividends attributable to the year
ZE-HFE T _NF
2025 2024
FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIREEFREER Interim dividend of HK2.25
2258 (ZE @4 - cents (2024: HK2.25 cents) per
2.25%84l) ordinary share 14,685 14,685
BRE KRR EZRE R Proposed final dividend of HK2.0
208 (== -4 - cents (2024: HK4.0 cents) per
4.07%Al) (Aft) ordinary share (Note) 13,054 26,107
27,739 40,792
B at Note:
RiRE BB ER R E W R TR The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has

SRERR/AE-

not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date.

(i) ERFRERINHEFHBE (b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial

ERE

FEMBEERBKRS
A% L @ A%4.058 1
—E =4 3.081)

Ll
k) om

year, approved and paid during the year
—g-5F —T-mF

2025 2024
THER THETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Final dividend in respect of
the previous financial year, of
HK4.0 cents (2023: HK3.0 cents)
per ordinary share 26,107 19,580

—g-nF -—T-m&

2025 2024
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Dividends:
Cash 26,107 19,580
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

12.8 1% (Eﬂﬁ)/@%” 12.(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
GIREARED#E (BEB) BZF AT The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings

P BRI E A

(E8) B (Loss)/Earnings
“—E-EF T _WMF
2025 2024
TR T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
KEE 2HH AR (Loss)/Profit attributable to the
(B 18) B HAHE owners of the Company for the
BREXKE#E purpose of calculating basic and
(E18) &F diluted (loss)/earnings per share (989,199) 171,678
i &vig - Q=] Number of shares
TEDHEFE T _WF
2025 2024
EEBTEEAR 2 INE TS Weighted average number of
Wt ESlRER (EE), BF) ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic (loss)/earnings per share 652,676,781 652,676,781
—E_RFNM_T_MFERAEBEEE Dilutive (loss)/earnings per share for 2025 and 2024 are
I —E-—RFERNA=+HBEM-_Z—/ the same as basic (loss)/earnings per share as there was
FRA=ZTHE®EE (BB BN no potential ordinary share outstanding as at 30 June

EARGK (BB /B2FER -

per share is based on the following data:

2025 and 2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

B.EERSREEAENE 13.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
BIEEMHSE 13.1 Directors’ emoluments
RATEEC WS EW B 4258 The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or
wm receivable by the directors of the Company are as
follows:
H A 1

WeEst  EEXRHK
EEHS & BReEE RN aE

Employer’s

contribution

Other  to defined

benefits - contribution
Fees Salaries  allowance plans Total
TET TR TET TERT TR
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—EC-RE 2025
NTES Executive directors:
it g (Hiti) Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (Note i) - 9,720 - - 9,720
WES Ho Sau Fun Connie 73 1,166 3 18 1,260
ich W Chao Gigi 73 2,389 120 18 2,600
g (i) Chao Howard (Note ii) 73 738 20 18 849
FMITES - Non-executive directors:
MR Lam Ka Wai Graham* 176 - - - 176
BARZ* Sun Dai Hoe Harold* 73 = - - 73
FIEE (Witiv) Lee Tsung Hei David Chris*
(Note iv) 73 - - - 73
= Lee Ding Yue Joseph 73 - - - 73
614 14,013 143 54 14,824
O BYUIEHITES *  Independent non-executive directors
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

13.BEERENREEAEIMNS (&) 13.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
131 EEBE (E) 13.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
H 2

- WA EXEK
EEMe &  HeBE AR a8

Employer’s

contribution

Other  to defined

benefits - contribution
Fees Salaries  allowance plans Total

TET TRT TR TET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

“TCoNF 2024
WITES: Executive directors:
it & (Hati) Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (Note i) - 9,493 - - 9,493
MES Ho Sau Fun Connie 71 1,137 3 18 1,229
izl Chao Gigi 71 2,053 70 18 2,212
HE (Witii) Chao Howard (Note ii) 71 412 20 17 520
FMITES - Non-executive directors:
MK B Lam Ka Wai Graham* 171 - - - 171
YN Sun Dai Hoe Harold* 71 - - - 71
TS (Hiitiii) Ting Woo Shou Kenneth*
(Note iii) 47 - - - 47
FEE (Witiv) Lee Tsung Hei David Chris*
(Note iv) 3 - - - 3
FRE Lee Ding Yue Joseph 71 - - - 71
576 13,095 93 53 13,817
* O BYIERITES *  Independent non-executive directors
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

13B.BEERENREEAEIMNS (&) 13.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND

131 EEBE (8E)

(i)

(iii)

BHELEETRA/ARNREITRAE
HOoHEHELAWEOMSBREEE
RITHAARFTIRE RSO E -

THERAECBITBIIENITE
EFOR_EFUNF A=+ NH
KRR e

EE R ZZET-_MFENA+LH
AR o

HeE—"FT-AFE_ZF-UFA
—tELHFETESERENRE
MEWEBN £ -

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
13.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)  Mr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is also the Chief Executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him as

Chief Executive.

(i) Mr. Chao Howard was re-designated as executive
director of the Company with effect from 29
February 2024.

(iii) Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth resigned as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from
29 February 2024.

(iv) Mr. Lee Tsung Hei David Chris was appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 17 June 2024.

No director has waived or agreed to waive any

emolument in respect of the years ended 30 June
2025 and 2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

13.EERaREBAEMS (&) 13.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

B2BEFMzAMLAL 13.2 Five highest paid individuals
HE-_ZE-_RAFA=1+HILF For the year ended 30 June 2025, four (2024: four)
B AfiseHEMALzs  Ho directors of the Group among the five highest paid
A (ZZEZW4F - Ufz) AAREE individuals whose emoluments are included above.
EE -HRTHE=FMATH L The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
(ZEZ_F: —f6) BT EEF remaining one (2024: one) highest paid individual
BT - is as follows:

ZE_RHFE _—_ZT_NF

2025 2024

FE T FAT

HK$’000 HK$000

e Salaries 660 577
R KRG & Contribution to defined

contribution plans 18 18

678 595

e 2 BRI -

<48 Bl
500,001 7c £ 1,000,000/8 7T

RREFEEAR  BERAEEI&ES
FA LTS - ERINAZAN
ARE B F E KRR (E

The emoluments fell within the following band:

N
Number of individuals
—E_RE —E
2025 2024
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 1 1

No emolument was paid to the directors and the
highest paid individual as inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office during both years.
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14. REME
EEBEsEHD2BRELESTHRD

RGN

BAREHE
REA—BZEHEE
P Z 58
& 0
— BER X H
H &
HBREEYXE KB NRE
(Ktat(a)fe15)
BREERTHEEYE

RANA=+HEKRE

wat -

a) HE-_Z-_WWEXNAZ+H #EBEER a)
M ISR EZEEE147,572,0008
T HEEEREIEFERIMEMESR

FAeE -

GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the

consolidated statement of financial position can be

summarised as follows:

At fair value

Carrying amount at 1 July

Exchange differences

Additions:
— subsequent expenditure

Disposal

Transfer to property, plant and
equipment (Notes (a) and 15)

Transfer to properties under
development for sale

Transfer to completed properties for
sale

Change in fair value

Carrying amount at 30 June

Notes:

—E_RE —EF
2025 2024
TET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
5,365,067 6,870,006
60,303 (41,199)
4,400 7,326

- (80,058)

— (147,572)
(832,369) —
= (1,089,366)
(914,881) (154,070)
3,682,520 5,365,067

held for own use by the directors.
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During the year ended 30 June 2024, the transfer
to property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$147,572,000 was related to the land and buildings
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

14. 88 Y= (&)
Wizt : (#)

by BETALKEKREYHENDREBERE
B{E 4% 52,368,995,000 T (= F
ZPH4F 1 2,546,738,0005 7T ) KK T
RITEE R HER (M 5E38)

REMEZIABEEE

(i) AAEBEEREE
TRINIAEEREYMER TR
BRREREFEERAELZ
BfE UREBEFESVHHRSELER
BRIAABEAEI((EFEY
HEERNEIBRDFAAELZ=E
NABERMNED - AAEBESZE
FERAAERTLD 2B ABELEE
BRMNESEREMELATOMA

D) Ift

%ﬂi?ﬁs‘%

— B—REE: UE-REAE
TEZAREE BARRE
EXRENAERREZRTS
PHRBERETE °

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

b) Certain investment properties of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value at the reporting date of
HK$2,368,995,000 (2024: HK$2,546,738,000) were
pledged to secure bank borrowings (Note 38).

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
reporting date on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” (“HKFRS
13”). The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. REY = ()
RENEZAABEBE (H)

(@)

RAEEERE 7 (&)

FoMEE B _RBEAE
ATEZAREE BEGAE
A BRMHEARKTEE R
BAE BESEBHABELIE
KRATABE 28T - T8
B 7 8 A A 8 T35 BUR A]
E2E 2B/ A -

FoAAE ERTAERH
BEBEZGABUFEZAR
B8 -

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.

—E_RHEF
2025
E—% E=1 wmE
Level 1 Level 3 Total
THET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
KEEANREMEEE Recurring fair value
measurement

KEWYE - Investment properties:
[ i Commercial — Hong Kong 6,500 8,000 14,500
FE-—FF Residential — Hong Kong = 2,809,055 2,809,055
FE—FRAD Residential — Malaysia - 417,413 417,413
EHE—F Commercial — PRC - 441,552 441,552

6,500 3,676,020 3,682,520
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

14. R EWE (4

®)
L

REWMEZAAREBEEE (&)

(i) RAREEEREZ (F)

N

K

EMRAABEEE

H

i

REWE
BME-—FB
EE-FE
[SE bl A

EE— B
FE-HFERAE
BE—F
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14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Recurring fair value
measurement

Investment properties:
Commercial — Hong Kong
Residential — Hong Kong
Commercial — Macau
Residential — Macau
Residential — Malaysia

Commercial — PRC

Fair value measurement of investment properties

—EF
2024

F—R E= ]
Level 1 Level 3 Total
T&TT TA&TT TETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
6,500 16,000 22,500
- 3,037,038 3,037,038
- 1,058,647 1,058,647
- 389,794 389,794
- 403,857 403,857
- 453,231 453,231
6,500 5,358,567 5,365,067




GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

14. REY = ()
RENEZAABEBE (H)

(i) RREEEREZ (F)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

FHE_FT-_AFER-_F_UFX
A=1THILFERN  E—HKME=
MzEWEER  WEEBEES
SRR E=REL - AEEMK
RRERESHETER AR BER
RIRFE HIRAR R HH B AR SRR
R o

E_ZT_RAFR_FT_MFH
=T HIEREMEEHBTREE
EERGEMETEMN - LREH
IR E Y5 B B BB AT
BRAREITER - MR E KA
T ORPFIRFE YRS ER
P BRAGETEMR - ZZEWHE
BRERAEREREARKEMER
AEHEITE - WA E AL B &K
MTEUMERFTRATISZRS - &
WA B RKBEEARL - MeZzA
Rl R2EAF/NAELRES
HET M - WIREREEKAREER
B M AKREESEZIEASHR]
B BESMETME - WIREMEE
HARKESEE - BEMHETZIRE
AR EEBENFRNER - EIia5T
AEBREMENRABER U
¥ kxEARAEBRRA

During the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024,
there was no transfer between Level 1 and Level
2, nor transfer into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the reporting date in

which they occur.

Investment properties were revalued on 30 June
2025 and 2024 by independent and professional
qualified valuers. The valuation of properties in
Hong Kong was revalued by K.T. Liu Surveyors
Limited. The valuation of properties in Malaysia,
Macau and PRC were revalued by Roma Appraisals
Limited. The properties were revalued on market
value basis on their existing development stage
and usage, and by reference to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the similar
location and condition, on income approach basis
by capitalisation of future rental which is estimated
by reference to comparable rental as available
and on residual approach basis by determining
on redevelopment basis and by estimating the fair
value of such properties as if they were completed
in accordance with the relevant development plan
and then deducting from that amount the estimated
costs to complete the construction, financing costs
and a reasonable profit margin. The fair value gains
or losses were recognised in profit or loss for the
year. In estimating the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

14. REY = ()
RENEZ A ABEBE (H)

(i) RAREEEREZ (F)
AEBEEEETHRFERSH
HE T E R BRI ERTETTHER

AR R A o

(i) B=RALIEETBHEH
Het -

REME

Investment properties:

fhEH

Valuation techniques

A% -BBWEa)
Commercial - Hong Kong
(note (a))

WAERA

Income capitalisation approach

% - 2R W)
Residential - Hong Kong
(note (b))

5L BUA

Market comparison approach

HE - R (W Hb)
Commercial - Macau
(note (b))

BEZ

Residual approach

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group’s management has discussions with the

valuers on the valuation assumptions when the

valuation is performed at each interim and annual

reporting date.

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Notes:

TABRENAALE

Unobservable inputs

AR ®

Capitalisation rates

mEE BT/ FAR)
Market price (HK$/square feet)

NENRE UE SEREEN
() /&8

(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,
view and floor level of the properties

mEE RN/ THR)
Market price (MOP/square feet)

NENRE UE - SBEREEN
(1) /a8
(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

BRAGIHERMNE

Estimated developer’s profit margin
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—EBC-nE —E-EF
2025 2024
TUBEENGAEE

Range of unobservable inputs

BE37%

3.7% per annum

3,394 - 89,916

(31.6%) - 84.4%

N/A

N/A

N/A

5H3.75%

3.75% per annum

4,460 - 68,570

(20%) - 51.9%

14,207 - 16,420

(7.48%) - 6.93%

15%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

14.REWE (&) 14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
REVEZAARBEEE (H) Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)
(i) B=RAAEBEETENNER () (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)
et (&) - Notes (Continued):
—%-EF ZEImE
2025 2024
REME fhER i TABRENAAYE FTABRENGALE
Investment properties: Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
£ - RFI(Hitb) HE* mEE RN/ FAR) N/A 6,549 - 7,960
Residential - Macau Residual approach Market price (MOP/square feet)
(note (b))
nEOmE B REREEN N/A (3%) - 1%
() /HE

(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

BREEGIERAE N/A 15%

Estimated developer’s profit margin

- BRAZ (HF0) WHLEL mEE(HER/FAR) 910 - 1,058 799 - 1,071
Residential - Malaysia Market comparison approach  Market price (RM/square feet)
(note (b))
nENmE - NE - RBEREEN (10.3%) - 11.6% (19.2%) - 5.4%
() /HE

(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,

view and floor level of the properties

EESEA D) mE LB mEEARE/FHX) 43,999 - 54,888 53,636 - 59,654
Commercial - PRC Market comparison approach  Market price (RMB/square meter)
(note (b))
NENRE NE 2B EEN (8.9%)-3.8%  (19.19%) - 6.67%
() /58

(Discount)/Premium on quality, location,
view and floor level of the properties
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

14. R EW=E (4

®)
L

REWMEZAAREBEEE (&)
(i) BE=ZRALEETEHNEL (&)

Hrat (&) -

EZZE_RAFER T _MFRA
=TH URBEENEERED
EURKREEHOWAERIEE
o EhER - FTA A A AL
ZHMERASTD2EXREENTH
HEMMMEGEHOHESEST I
AHEREED2RBEEMEE
WHRUMETBERNKREE - B
I EME S EmME =
AR - 2R BENGEEE
b= ZAERE A o

(@)

EZZE_RAFER-_FT_MFRA
=+H uUREE HFRADIR
FREONEREEREMENR
NEBEERLBAILRMENL
HHEBREREMREBRER
MG BOAEE - BIRR AT E
HEMLENMENE S - LE -
SEMEEREREIITM - 5t
e B SBEREEMmMES
AREEEBNARE MARE
BERLD AN - £ T MER
A=+8 R BEPFOEERE
TREMENIABERARE
E O B2REZEMENRREBE
BRZEMHECEBIEEAZER
ERT REKZESBEPNRT
PR EE R R ET A~ B E B AR A
EEMFEE - QA EEE M
NABERBLDEEF T IR
MEKAMABEENEEER
BAE o

14.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

Note (Continued):

(a)

As at 30 June 2025 and 2024, the fair values of
commercial investment properties in Hong Kong are
determined using income capitalisation approach
by capitalisation of future rental. In the valuation,
the market rentals of all lettable units are made by
reference to the rentals achieved by the Group in the
lettable units. The capitalisation rate adopted is by
reference to the yield rates observed by the valuers
for similar properties in the locality and adjusted
for the valuers’” knowledge of factors specific to the
respective properties. The fair value measurement is

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.

As at 30 June 2025 and 2024, the fair value of
commercial and residential investment properties
located in Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC are
determined using market comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square feet or square
meter basis, adjusted for a premium or a discount
mainly specific to the quality, location, view and
floor level of the properties compared to the recent
sales. The fair value increase as to premium and fair
value decrease as to discount on quality, location,
view and floor level. As at 30 June 2024, the fair
value of commercial and residential investment
properties located in Macau were determined
using residual approach by reference the fair value
of such properties as if they were completed in
accordance with the relevant development plan and
then deducting from that amount the estimated costs
to complete the construction, financing costs and
a reasonable profit margin. The fair value increase
and fair value decrease has a negative correlation
on the change in the estimated costs to complete the

construction, financing costs and profit margin.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

15. 9% - MERRE 15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RELHER
BFFER  HtERRE &4 kB8R
ZIREfE BE EBYERE AEREH# g
Land and
buildings Furniture,
held for own Other fittings Motor
use carried  right-of-use and office  vehicles and
at fair value assets ~ equipment  accessories Total

TEL TR TAL TEL TAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-Z2-=Ff+h-A As at 1 July 2023
HOREERE Opening net book amount 38,866 3,083 2,035 256 44,240
ERER Exchange differences - - 2 (4) 2)
Em Additions - 1,404 342 240 1,986
BABRENE Transfers from investment properties

(Hit14) (note 14) 147,572 - = - 147,572
nE Depreciation (777) (2,394) (516) (103) (3,790)
HeE Disposal - - - (30) (30)
BBH Surplus on revaluation 593 - - - 593
BRREEFE Closing net book amount 186,254 2,093 1,863 359 190,569
RZZB-MEXRAZTHE  At30 June 2024
AR Cost 2 13,932 15,494 7,880 37,306
fhiE Valuation 186,254 L 4 = 186,254
REME Accumulated depreciation 4 (11,839) (13,631) (7,521) (32,991)
REEFE Net book amount 186,254 2,093 1,863 359 190,569
R=E-MELA-A As at 1 July 2024
HNEEETSE Opening net hook amount 186,254 2,093 1,863 359 190,569
ERER Exchange differences - - 3 - 3
1 Additions - - 1,151 544 1,695
HEBYR Lease modification - 4,078 _ _ 4,078
nE Depreciation (3,725) (2,566) (504) (203) (6,998)
HeE Disposal - = (13) = (13)
BiEER Deficit on revaluation (1,869) = = = (1,869)
HREEETSE Closing net book amount 180,660 3,605 2,500 700 187,465
WZBZEEXB=1TH  At30June 2025
AR Cost - 5,777 16,325 8,424 30,526
fh{E Valuation 180,660 - - - 180,660
ZHfE Accumulated depreciation - @172 (13,825) (7,724) (23,721)
BEEEYE Net hook amount 180,660 3,065 2,500 700 187,465
HERNFAER S EHAKIE28 Details of the leases are set out in Note 28.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

15. 902 - B RZWE (E) 15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
BT MIEF AR BEEESER - HE If the land and buildings were stated on the historical
BEaOR : cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

—E-HRE —T_omMF

2025 2024
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
DN Cost 167,772 167,772
REHITE Accumulated depreciation (8,607) (5,252)
BREFE Net book amount 159,165 162,520
REBEFRBZ L REBFREER 2 # All the Group’s land and buildings with an aggregate
AR TE {H /180,660,000 7T (ZF =M carrying value at the reporting date of approximately
F 186,254,000 ) D ARNER 2R HK$180,660,000 (2024: HK$186,254,000) were
ITEREERM (MT3E38) - pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 38).
TtHHREFZAARBEEE Fair value measurement of land and buildings
(i) RAAEEERFZ* (i) Fair value hierarchy

TR RAER L+ H# REFRIHRE The following table presents the fair value of
AR EEEEERAEZR the Group’s land and building measured at the
RBE - WIREEE M ISHRE &R reporting date on a recurring basis, categorised
FVBRALEBEFEMAEZ=E into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
NEFEEHRNE D - AAEBERZRE in HKFRS 13. The level into which a fair value
B ERD Z2HABEBEESD measurement is classified is determined with
BRNESE2UMmMELA TR reference to the observability and significance

of the inputs used in the valuation technique as

follows:
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15. 9% - HEE KRR (&)

THREFZAREBEEE (H)

(i)

ARAEEEREZ (&)

F—RMEE AE—RBAE
FEZAREE BARRE
EXRENAERREEZRTS
PHRBERETE

FoLEE LB _GEAE
ATEZAREE BEGAE
A BRMHEARKTEE R
BAE BESEZBHABELIE
KRATABE 28T - TA &
R ABAWETSEEY
E2E 2B/ AE -

FZAEE ERTAERH
BEEZGABUFEZARF
BfE -

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Fair value measurement of land and buildings
(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.

—E-FHFE T _UF
2025 2024
E=R E=
Level 3 Level 3
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
KEMAREBEEER Recurring fair value measurement
FBEEBRA T XRETF - Land and buildings held for own use:
T -FF Residential — Hong Kong 180,660 186,254
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

15. 9% - HEE KRR (&)

THREFZAARBEEEE (H)

(i)

AREEEREZ (&)

FHEZFT-_AFR-FTWUFN
A=THIFERN  E—HKME=
BB EERE W EERESE
SHRRME=REL - AEEMHK
REERERESHRTERFARE
BERRNERFE LR ARENEAE

By R o

EZE_RAFR-ZZT-_MFRA
—t+ETHMREFEHRBIRESE
BEBEEMBEHEAZMITER
NEETER - BREBEMSEAERE
i R E TR — B R AR EE
MERLETISER S °

AREBMEEEEFHRFERSEH
HYE 7T (E R BRI E R A 1T (R ER

BRI

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Fair value measurement of land and buildings
(Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024,
there was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2,
nor transfer into or out of Level 3. The Group's
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the reporting date in

which they occur.

The land and buildings were revalued on 30 June
2025 and 2024 by an independent and professional
qualified valuer, K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited on
market value basis and by reference to recent
market transactions for similar properties in the

similar location and condition.

The Group’s management has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual

reporting date.
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15. 9% - HEE KRR (&)

THREFZAREBEEE (H)

(i) BE=RALEETEHNEF

RAEFER LI RET
5 L BUE FABENGA
Market Comparison Unobservable input
approach
EFE-&E R 1241V
Residential - Hong Kong ~ Market comparison
approach

UREBEBNBERET L RE
FHAABEEFEAMSLE A
ER]  2RAILRYENTEHEE
REREMRER  BREBEMENE
2 UE - SENEERAEREK
TE?DC’?&E\E VE - SBEREE
EAABEMENARE  MA
{ETE/U% SR e

16. HERBEE

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
Fair value measurement of land and buildings
(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Land and buildings held for own use:

EE
Range
—E-Rf i Sy 13
2025 2024
BEET/FAR) 19,268 - 29,478 16,134 - 21,946

Market price (HK$/square feet)

NENRE B

8B BENGM)HE (20%) - (8%)  (7.4%) - 31.46%
(Discount)/Premium on quality,

location, view and floor level

of the properties

The fair value of residential land and buildings
located in Hong Kong are determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties on a price per
square feet basis, adjusted for a premium or a
discount mainly specific to the quality, location,
view and floor level of the properties compared
to the recent sales. The fair value increase as to
premium and fair value decrease as to discount on
quality, location, view and floor level.

16.OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET

—E-RHE T _OF

2025 2024

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

@ MMES Club debenture 950 950

B FTE 25 AR ZASIRURL (B B 18 51| Bk

Club debenture is stated at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

17. 5t MEE 17.0OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
HEmEsmMEERFEUNTIESE Other financial assets included the following
investments:

—E_RFE —EoEF

2025 2024
FE T FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
IRBEE Non-current assets
BAREBEFAEMERT Financial assets at FVTOCI:
Wamze@EE
AR EHB L™ Perpetual notes, listed in
(B15t@)) Hong Kong (Note (a)) = 19,928
AR EHBEIIET Perpetual notes, listed outside
(Kt aEmb)) Hong Kong (Note (b)) 19,428 20,902
&& E#&E L™ HiFEC) Debentures, listed in Hong Kong
(Note (c)) 4,004 2,909
& EEBEIET Debentures, listed outside
(K&t (d)) Hong Kong (Note (d)) - 23,577
o REEE Less: Impairment loss (194) (18,068)
23,238 49,248
RBEE Current assets
BAREBEFAEMEZERZ Financial assets at FVTOCI:
EF EEEBEII L™ Debentures, listed outside
(Kt &t (d)) Hong Kong (Note (d)) - 20,124
B R E R B Less: Impairment loss - (19,496)
- 628
23,238 49,876
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
The movement of gross balance of financial assets at
FVTOCI is as follows:

E—RER F-oHER SH=ZKER mE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FTET THET FTHET FHExT

HK$’000  HK$’000 HK$000  HK$’000

RZZE_=F+H—H At 1 July 2023 46,512 - 55,191 101,703

f% (O] Redemption (250) - (2,041) (2,291)

ARBEEE Change in fair value (4,412) - (7,560)  (11,972)
MRZZTZWMEFRA=+H At30]June 2024 and

M_Z_MHF+H—H 1 July 2024 41,850 - 45,590 87,440

NREEED Change in fair value (10,287) = 4,248 (6,039)

+ e Disposal (12,135) - (45,834)  (57,969)

RZZE-_RAF/NA=+H At30)June 2025 19,428 = 4,004 23,432

BAanBEFAEMEZEKZ Z 2R
AN

BEEMREBEZIS

E=ER
REA—H
B fE 52 /R (B /&5 1R 45 AN

R (B & 18 R
WARNA=+H

The movements of impairment loss for financial assets

at FVTOCI are as follows:
—EBE-RHE T _UF
2025 2024
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
Stage 3

At 1 July 37,564 32,589

Increase in impairment loss
recognised - 4,975
Impairment loss written off (37,370) -
At 30 June 194 37,564
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

17. H

« =X

b MEE (&)

AREBAEAWEEREEG RREREM
HERBNNEBEATHAERE 2
MEENARGREENRERERE
EHASMAE MBS -

Bret -

(a)

AEBMBENRES LTHRKERE - &K
&£ %A 500,000 EITE 4,500,000
EL(ZZF M : 500,000 ELE
4,500,000 %7T) - EEFEREA -
EFHEER 4.85% 2 6.50% @ FHF
TR =R (ZFE-pUE : BEMEH
4.85% E6.5% ' B¥FZ{F—R) -
AREFERBE_E_AFE A=+
AIEFERNGLERBRBEZEHE -

REBEREBE=ZZXAREB(ZZE N
FZBXAER) XeBENT
500,000% Jt * 1,000,0003% 7T &
1,400,000% 7T (=& =04 : 500,000
% 7T * 1,000,0002 7T }&%.1,400,0003
Jo) c EERBEI L™ EE TR
B BEZEEAMESFASEF525%
£8.00% (T E -4 :525%%
8.00%) * B¥FIRE—IX °

AEBRRE-—ELMERF(ZZT N
F:—E2LmER) Ao BEAR
588,611 7T (Z & U4 : 588,6113%
JL) o ERB L™ BIHIA A20284F1
A318  EEZEEXSETF6.50% (=
TEF 6.5%) BFEFRE—IR
— EMESFAES L AH620,570F T
EEFHH A2028F1 A318 - Z@EF
£6.50%  HFHER T _MF A
=T HIEFERWEERD -

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

The Group holds investments under a business model

whose objective is to hold to collect the associated

contractual cash flows and sale; and the contractual

terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Notes:

(a)

The Group had investment in perpetual notes with
principal amounts ranging from US$500,000 to
US$4,500,000 (2024: US$500,000 to US$4,500,000)
listed in Hong Kong without fixed maturity date at fixed
rates ranging from 4.85% to 6.50% per annum, payable
semi-annually (2024: fixed rates ranging from 4.85% to
6.50% per annum, payable semi-annually). The Group
disposed all of these perpetual notes during the year
ended 30 June 2025.

The Group has investments in three perpetual notes
(2024: three perpetual notes) with principal amount of
US$500,000, US$1,000,000 and US$1,400,000 (2024:
US$500,000, US$1,000,000 and US$1,400,000) listed
outside Hong Kong without fixed maturity date at a
coupon rate ranging 5.25% to 8.00% (2024: ranging from

5.25% to 8.00% per annum), payable semi-annually.

The Group has investment in one listed debenture
(2024: one listed debenture) with principal amounts of
US$588,611 (2024: US$588,611) listed in Hong Kong
with maturity dates of 31 January 2028 at a fixed coupon
rates of 6.50% (2024: 6.50%) per annum, payable semi-
annually. The listed debenture with principal amount
of US$620,570 with fixed maturity date on 31 January
2028 at coupon rate at 6.50% per annum was partially

redeemed during the year ended 30 June 2024.
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b MEE (&)

Biet - (#)

(d)

RZTE-WFANA=Z+H AEEF
BHEESH  KN& BN F500,000%
JC%2,553,000% 7T - B HA H 52022
F3H230 £2027F8A198  EEE
HEFEN T FF4.50%%E10.50% °
EERE—K e —LMEEASSHE
#$2,190,000% 7T * 2 Hi H &202748
A198 - Z @ A £4.50% * BHE R
ZECFRNA=ZTHIEFERNEE
Bl EFXRR EERE_ZT_MFRN
A=+ B3 1L FE 433,703,0007% T{&
(N EEEERERL HHEZZ
ZHENAZTHLEFERN BEFE
FTABXRFE - Bt - BEERREE
184,975,000 TE RIEEAER - R
—E-NFERA=ZTH R EERS
183#37,564,0008 L E R - L E =
—E-NFEANB=Z+THLEFER —
EWEH A S £%2,790,000% 5T E E
FEIA A2024F7H208 - EEFERE
FF9.00% * BEZE2027F8H198 -
EEMETHREGFA450%  EHEZ
E_AHAFRNA=ZTHIEFER K&
[ & P B Ik 5 (& %5 42 5846,855,000
BT RE 1B #37,370,0008 T B

BHEZZT-_AF~A=1+H U2Hx
BEFAEGCEEARKEZEREED
BT EARTASENRITRE
BIPE LR (F1EE38)

e

SRz % BRAREEFAZAR
Z‘f%ﬂﬁ?mﬂﬁﬁ@iﬂum 000
U (ZZE 4 : #h01,641,0007%8

oo B

~

o

BR EAUIERON - R BEIT AR EIRR S A
AFREEER T R E AR - Bt bk
BEBMEZNERRBRERSZM
TREH -

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

17.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) As at 30 June 2024, the Group had investments in seven
listed debentures with principal amounts ranging from
US$500,000 to US$2,553,000 with fixed maturity date
ranging from 23 March 2022 to 19 August 2027 at a
coupon rates ranging from 4.50% to 10.50% per annum,
payable semi-annually. One listed debenture with
principal amount of US$2,190,000 with fixed maturity
date on 19 August 2027 at a coupon rate of 4.50% per
annum was partially redeemed during the year ended
30 June 2024. In the opinion of the directors, the credit
quality of debentures of approximately HK$33,703,000
deteriorated significantly during the year ended 30 June
2024. During the year ended 30 June 2024, there was
defaults of interest payments by the debenture issuer. As
a result, an additional impairment loss of HK$4,975,000
was recognised in profit or loss accordingly. As
at 30 June 2024, accumulated ECL amounted to
HK$37,564,000 was recognised. During the year ended
30 June 2024, one listed debenture with principal amount
of US$2,790,000 with fixed maturity date on 20 July
2024 at a coupon rate of 9.00% per annum was extended
to 19 August 2027 and its coupon rate was decreased
to 4.50% per annum. During the year ended 30 June
2025, the Group disposed all of these listed debentures
of HK$46,855,000 and written off the impairment loss of
HK$37,370,000.

(e) As at 30 June 2025, financial assets at FVTOCI have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
(Note 38).

(f)  Subsequent to reporting date, the fair value of financial
assets at FVTOCI increased by HK$49,000 (2024:
increased by HK$1,641,000).

Except as those mentioned in notes (c) and (d), the
credit risk on listed perpetual notes is considered to be
insignificant because the issuers are assigned with high

credit ratings by international credit rating agencies.
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18. i B 2 7]
RZFZAFR-ZF-_MFAA=T
A XZMEBREIZEHMNT

EMALLE
BERE
Place of incorporation

WEAF or registration/
Name operation
Ace Cosmos Finance Limited REBRAES
British Virgin Islands
(//BVl//)
AEBRERLE] R
Bongi Development Limited Hong Kong
SENFERARAA BR
Cheuk Nang Property Hong Kong
Management Company Limited
FXHERERRBERRAA &k
Dun Man Secretarial and Hong Kong
Management Services Limited
BAREERLA R
Golden Scheme Investment Hong Kong
Limited
RERERRAF BR
Green View Investment Limited Hong Kong
ZEXBRAA BR
Kingdom Link Limited Hong Kong
BEEXARAF R
Lo & Son Land Investment Hong Kong
Company Limited
BREXARAF A
Lucky Faith Properties Limited Hong Kong
Martego Sdn Bhd SRAE
Malaysia

18.SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2025

and 2024 are as follows:

BRTRAER/
ER R A
Particulars of issued
ordinary share
capital/registered
capital

10,0008 &R 1E T
10,000 US$1 shares

AR H2ETT
2 shares, HK$2

22T
2 shares, HK$2

2R A205ET
2 shares, HK$20

URFET
2 shares, HK$2

2k E2E T
2 shares, HK$2

REDET
1 share, HK$1

3,000
300,000 7T
3,000 shares,
HK$300,000

2R E2B T
2 shares, HK$2

5,000,000
SRIHEE
5,000,000 shares of
RM1 each

KEZRELS
Proportion of ownership interest
B k3
Directly Indirectly
72.42% -
(2024: 72.42%) (2024: -)
100% -
(2024: 100%) (2024: -)
100% -
(2024: 100%) (2024: -)
100% -
(2024: 100%) (2024: -)
100% -
(2024: 100%) (2024: -)
100% -
(2024: 100%) (2024: -)
100% -
(2024: 100%) (2024: -)
- 100%
(2024: -) (2024: 100%)
100% -
(2024: 100%) (2024: -)
- 100%

(2024: -) (2024: 100%)
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Principal activities

REREK

Investment holding

WEEE
Property trading

ESRE
Property management
services

WERERRYE
Provision of secretarial and
management services

WERE

Property investment

ERETHERARRR

Mortgage lending,
property investment and
development

WERE

Property investment
HERARRE

Property investment and
development

WERE
Property investment

WERERER

Property investment and
development
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HELT

Name

HERRERAA]

New Grow Development Limited

WEARAA

Pacific Charm Investment Limited

Power Tripod Limited

EEZRARAA

Power Wide Development Limited

rERERAH
Supreme Glory Limited

AR (EMBRAF
Top Regent (Asia) Limited
(“Top Regent”)

BARRARLE]

Yorksbon Development Limited

KERERAF
Ever Regal Limited

SRREERAA

Cheuk Nang Construction
Company Limited

ZRMEEE (M)
BRARN (M)

Cheuk Nang Property
Management (Hang Zhou)
Company Limited™* (Note (i)

ARRIEE
ReEnE

Place of incorporation
or registration/
operation

R
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

R
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

R
Hong Kong

&k
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

&

Hong Kong

E

PRC

GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

BETRAER/
TR A
Particulars of issued
ordinary share

capital/registered BHEZRELA
capital  Proportion of ownership interest
Hi &
Directly Indirectly
ARHET 100% -
2 shares, HK$2 (2024: 100%) (2024 -)
1REET 100% -
1 share, HK$1 (2024: 100%) (2024 -)
10,0008% - 100%
10,000 ¢ (2024: -) (2024: 100%)
10,000 shares
HK$10,000
AR T 100% -
2 shares, HK$2 (2024: 100%) (2024: -)
1REET 100% -
1 share, HK$1 (2024: 100%) (2024 -)
100/ 100 7T - 71.70%
100 shares, HK$100 (2024: ) (2024: 71.70%)
WRAET - 100%
2 shares, HK$2 (2024: -) (2024: 100%)
1REET 100% ol
1 share, HK$1 (2024: 100%) (2024: -)
10,0008% 100% -
#£10,00087T  (2024: 100%) (2024: -)
10,000 shares,
HK$10,000
500,000 AR - 100%
(2024: -) (2024: 100%)
RMB500,000
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Principal activities

WERE

Property investment

REER

Investment holding
WEZEREE

Property development and
trading

HERARRAHE
Property investment and
investment holding

WERE

Property investment

WERERER
Property investment and
development

WERERER
Property investment and
investment in securities

and bonds
MERE

Property investment
WERR

Property development

RENZEE RS

Provision of property
management services
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18.Mf B A 7l (&) 18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
BRIREER/
EMELEE ERRE
REWE Particulars of issued
Place of incorporation ordinary share
WEAR or registration/  capital/registered BHEZRELA TEXH
Name operation capital  Proportion of ownership interest  Principal activities
B [E3
Directly Indirectly
EECRIDMxEE P 500,000 AR % - 100% fREDEEZRS
BB (Aii) (2024: ) (2024: 100%)
Power Wide (Shen Zhen) Property PRC RMB500,000 Provision of property
Management Company management services

Limited**(Note (i)

AREHERE (M) G 94,000,000% 7T - 100% MEXR
BRAF (i) (2024:-)  (2024: 100%)

Bongi Property Development PRC US$94,000,000 Property development
(Hang Zhou) Company
Limited**(Note (i)

ERFHERS (RY) TE 294,000,000A K% - 100% HEXRREE

BRLE: (Wit (2024: (2024:-)  (2024: 100%)
494,000,000 A K %)

Power Wide Property PRC RMB294,000,000 Property investment,
Development (Shen Zhen) (2024: development and trading
Company Limited™*(Note (i)) RMB494,000,000)

RIZRE S5 LI B 5000000AK% - 100% HERR
BRAF (W) (2024:-)  (2024:100%)

Shen Zhen Zhishen Decorative PRC RMB5,000,000 Property development
Design Engineering Company
Limited**(Note (i))

W15 - Notes:

() ZEEARERBEEESTMAEIIEE (i) The entity is registered as a wholly foreign owned

B enterprise under PRC law.
(i) EERAcEATERER 25K (i) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
BENTERBAGTIDEHEN FERN which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
HONE B AT EMHE AT the results or formed a substantial portion of the net
FEeFEERBRATE - assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.
g ﬂﬂ;ﬁﬁag{ﬁ (EH)eHMERFAE #  Companies that Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited are
BATIAERZ- not statutory auditor.
* N EKYH AR Y EYELE MR *  The English translation of the name of the companies
E o ZENFTEHEBUARXER o established in the PRC is for reference only. The official

names of the companies are in Chinese.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 (([) HR/45  Annual Report 2025 41t



18.Mf B A 7] (&)

TRIIEHTAEEMNE R FlAce
Cosmos Finance Limited (7%= & &9 K
BAREPRBEEANIFERER) &Y
HiER - TRIMZINOTEER - &
TEMBREM R FIER S AT 8FE o

Ace Cosmos £ E

IS E DX
FEREEE
MEEE
mEBBRE
FRBEE

BEFE

IR R R (B

WA
RERER
RNEEEHE AR

DB T IR R 2 B8

LEEHBAMNEBRE TR
KREERSREBANRESR
MERBAELENRE R

B0 feo fen

BeERA/ORE) FE

GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

18.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following table lists out the information related to
Ace Cosmos Finance Limited and it’s subsidiary (“Ace
Cosmos Group”), the subsidiary companies of the
Group which has material non-controlling interests.

The summarised financial information presented below

represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

Ace Cosmos Group

Non-controlling interest percentage
Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of non-controlling
interests

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive expenses
for the year

Loss allocated to non-controlling
interest

Cash flows used in operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows generated from financing
activities

Net cash inflows/(outflows)
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—_E_RE —EE
2025 2024
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
27.58% 27.58%

- 1,448,442
1,244,812 412,394
(1,051,353) (1,050,754)
- (55,087)

193,459 754,995
53,356 208,228
(561,536) (2,444)
(561,536) (2,444)
(154,872) (674)
482) (14,584)

(105) (6,065)

605 20,614

18 (35)
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

19.PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

—E_RFE —EoHE

2025 2024

FTET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

ERPYE Properties under development 2,076,838 1,394,106
BRI Completed properties 1,513,738 1,586,016
3,590,576 2,980,122

ERIPYEE E 166,068,000/ 7T
ZTECNF - BEREBETRF
NAZTHILEFERRAZL - WETA
FEBEERNITHAZIA -

BEGEYEN T MFERENEER
B40F B704F -

BE-_Z-_AFXA=1+8  B@RM
THE) T AR EE RS K RES o E
ERR AEEAERAEBRMEE R
FRAZ L - F bt Ell BIRE A& B A
EZFT-AFANA=-THANFBHRR
WREBATE -

Provision for properties under development amounted
to HK$166,068,000 (2024: HK$Nil) was recognised
as an expense during the year ended 30 June 2025
and included in “administrative expenses” in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The lease term of the land use right of the properties

held for sale ranging from 40 years to 70 years.

The land lease renewal contract related to Macau land
is yet to obtained as at 30 June 2025. The directors are
of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully
and validly occupy and use the land, and therefore the
aforesaid matter did not have any significant impact on

the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2025.
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20 B A ABEFABREZEHE
E

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

20.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

—E-RHE —EoOE

2025 2024
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRAREBEFABERZ Financial assets at fair value
THMEE through profit or loss
NEB LT 2 BARES Equity securities listed in Hong Kong
(At ) (Note (i)) - 54,263
FETRERESD Unlisted investment fund
CHF (i) R (i) (Notes (i) and (i) 2,955 2,953
2,955 57,216
et - Notes:

(i)

(ii)

REBMRETERABSFRENAAE
BEERMAE34. 7B S -

BHE—Z-_RFXA=1+H &%¥FL
TREESREA - REBBEMAL
MEMEBEENES BRNANR
ERMETNEERASMABNN
A REEEVHERESERNFER - H
MAEARAEEFEAEZEEH AR
HoESN-_TE-RAFANA=TH
WHBARE  AAREFERSH
®12ME A AIEE -

(i) The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed
equity securities and unlisted investment fund have been

measured as described in Note 34.7.

(ii) The unlisted investment fund as at 30 June 2025 was
a fund managed by a financial institution incorporated
in Hong Kong. It was mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS
9 as contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest. The fund is classified as current at
30 June 2025 as the investment is redeemable within 12

months after the reporting date.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

21. BN E 5 R H th FE W R =X

FEW B Z R K
wE==%

H ftb & W2 AR X
HHEH
AHEERES
Hiviz &
EL 18 A B 3K

AREENEZRBRRERSIERNHEE
REBE  ANEBHFEEBR  UE
EREEE S EWERFEENEMRE
Bl - HEREHR  REETEA
BERHRRAHPHEHRUER (BRE
B 5 REAMEUGRIAS) &R & 2 47 0

T

0-30K
31-60K
61-90K
HEBIOK

BUWESERELTEHRRC IS -
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Trade receivables
From third parties

Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Utilities deposits
Other deposits
Others

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—E_RFE —EoHE
2025 2024
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
3,666 4,197
6,446 6,527
2,601 2,669
1,117 1,213
7,606 6,489
17,770 16,898
21,436 21,095

invoice date, is as follows:

0-30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days

Over 90 days

invoices.

Trade receivables

The trade receivables of the Group represent rental
and management fee in arrears. The Group maintains a
credit policy to minimise any credit risk associated with
trade receivables. As at the reporting date, the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables (which is included in
trade and other receivables), based on the debit note or

—E_RE —E-F
2025 2024
FET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
71 826

= 56

= 27

3,595 3,288
3,666 4,197

are due upon presentation of
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FE W B 5 AR 7k I HL ) FE UL AR =X
(#&)
AEEYBEAEPNEERR - L
BRAMBESREUBHBEENEE
L o

H B MR R B HE MAR LR o) 17
T RETAREREMEMERZYE
MEETIE - BN E2HERRBRRR
ARBR - FitHEERBRNZEW
REAETEKRK -

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk, and sufficient rental deposits are held to cover

potential exposure to credit risk.

Other receivables included deposits paid to
constructors to perform repair and maintenance works
for the Group’s investment properties and properties
under development. The credit risk of deposits paid is

considered to be low, therefore the impact on ECL is

considered immaterial.

22 RITEERES 22.BANK BALANCES AND CASH

—E-FHFE T _UF
2025 2024
TERT FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITHE K Bank deposits 392,938 719,394
RITHE® Cash at banks 445,604 162,398
838,542 881,792
B DR EBFR Less: Pledged time deposits (4,036) -

FEiRA M BRARINER S K Cash and cash equivalents as

ReEED stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position 834,506 881,792

AEBMNBRTERSEHBR2ELD
150,736,000 Tt (=& Z Y £ :
259,942,000/ 7T) #Y $R1T 45 87 17 A
MARREMRT BBE(REARHK
A0 B S BE B IR R 101 ) AN K45 S BE B IR MR
By  RITEFRBEISEHEE-

Included in bank and cash balances of the
Group of approximately HK$150,736,000 (2024:
HK$259,942,000) of bank balances denominated in
Renminbi are placed with banks in the PRC. Under
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the bank balances are

not freely transferred.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

22.|ITHEEFREE (E)
MRk EH - £ B 494,036,000 7T (=
ToNF E)NTFREERIERET
REEMRITRE OER (H5E38) ©

BEWER - EMERMNRITREEHNER
FERERREM T REN - AR5
FRERERATAKRBL THERF

22.BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)
As at reporting date, the deposits of approximately
HK$4,036,000 (2024: Nil) were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 38).

The credit risk on pledged deposits, bank deposits and
cash at bank are considered to be insignificant because

the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings,

BHEVERTT © assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
23. H B S BR =X 23.OTHER PAYABLES

ZTE-HFE —_Z_NF
2025 2024
FE T TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
MEZRE Tenant deposits 7,165 6,227
HEMmENERNETER Other payable and accruals 137,507 139,865
144,672 146,092

HttENERANEEEERRA S EH
ARBENEEILE -

HMENERAREAERTIERLE
PR Y% - 42%893,557,0008 7 (=&
—PU4F : 93,557,000/ 70) EBIEAEE
fth AT AR IR o

The carrying values of other payables are considered to

be a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

Other payable and accruals mainly included
value-added tax and other tax payable for sales of
properties in PRC amounted to HK$93,557,000 (2024:
HK$93,557,000).
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24. 5B E

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

24.CONTRACT LIABILITIES

—E_RFE —EoE

2025 2024
FTET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
S ) FE AR BT U 5| B Ay Contract liabilities arising from
BRAaE receipt in advance from sale of
properties 38,803 12,785
BREBERRBERTASEBEH R The contract liabilities represented the aggregate

BITHRAOBRFOXZERERE - A&
EFEH - D EERARBITHNENRED
RHGERERAEBERAEFLPEZEDN R
RS FER SN ©

EHNBBEEFTY 248 /120,785,000
Bor (ZZ P04 : 120,018,000/ 7T)
EREARERABBA °

HRRIER BV HHREENEI55HL
ME > FMBERASHITBB—FNaK
BARBEODEGELERMEANNR
2B °

amount of the transaction price allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of the
reporting date. The Group expects the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations
will be recognised as revenue when the Group transfers

goods or services to the customer.

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning
of the year amounting to HK$12,785,000 (2024:
HK$120,018,000) have been recognised as revenue
during the year.

Since all the contracts with an original duration of
one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts

is not disclosed.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

2. 5 EE(8]) 24.CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
EHBENEE Movements in contract liabilities:
—E-RHFE _—_FT_UF
2025 2024
FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
£+ A—H At 1 July 12,785 138,682
FARREHEERSEEH Decrease in contract liabilities as a
EHEERD result of refund of sales deposits
during the year = (15,541)
FRWFEEZEXDERFH Increase in contract liabilities as a
HER T AL result of sales deposits received
BN from customers during the year in

relation to completed properties

for sale 169,362 47,877
FAERBRAERERE D Decrease in contract liabilities as
BERMD a result of recognising revenue
during the year (143,755) (155,029)
BREF SR = EMEN Decrease in contract liabilities as
HNEERENEBERLD a result of reallocating to other
payables - (3,123)
PE 3 = &8 Exchange difference 411 (81)
38,803 12,785

25 FENBEEAT FEERKRER 25.AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED

15 COMPANIES/NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

ZpEAEEM CENEBETER The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

B HEREERAAREBEES - repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the

amounts due approximate their fair values.

NANBERNABEATNERSES Two directors of the Company are also the beneficial
A o owners of the related companies.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

The analysis of the carrying amounts of borrowings is as

follows:

Carrying amount repayable (Note)
Within one year
Over one year but within

two years

Less:

Amount due within one year

Amount of bank borrowings that
are not repayable within one
year from the reporting date but
contain a repayable on demand
clause (shown under current

liabilities)

Carrying amount shown under

non-current liabilities
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—E_RFE —EoEF

2025 2024
TERT T
HK$’000 HK$’000

543,520 1,131,508

480,000 4

1,023,520 1,131,508

(261,920) (630,000)
(281,600) (501,508)
480,000 -
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

26. EEfEE (&)

RmEBRY  AEENRITABERE

26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)
At the reporting date, the Group’s interest-bearing bank

AT AEHR borrowings were secured as follows:
—E-RFE T NOF
2025 2024
Kt T#ET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
RITES - | Bank overdrafts — Unsecured - 2,508
BEIETER: Interest-bearing bank borrowings: (i)
— BHEF — Secured (ii) 1,023,520 1,129,000
1,023,520 1,131,508
Hrat - Notes:

() EMBEBRTER TEETCHE
480,000,000/ 7T (=& — Y 4F -
630,000,000/8 7T) & A A] A1 B B 5KE
PR - RN AR - E T
—HERNAZTHLEEEEENNTE
HIE 7480,000,000/8 T~ B2 & /] B3k
BB (BB K o

() RITERABER (MF38) @ WiLE
o> ﬁEﬁ B 3% B 110.7%-1.5% (==
ZPUEF : SRTT R ESF B N10.7%-1. 1%)
HEBHEEF EFO0.5%-1% (ZF
ZPUF  EEMEF0.5-1%) 5T 8 o
RBER RITETNEBNE A
3.705% (ZZ ZPU4F : 3.409%) ° $RTT
B I FREEET,533,480,0008 T (= &
~ P94 132,000,000 7T) 2R ER
B -

(i) RAZE-_RAFA=Z+H Xx&KE
AEREERMNZBITEREEA
333,006,000/ JT (_%T_Ei :
465,103,000 7C) °

(i)

(iii)

The above interest-bearing bank borrowings, except for a
term loan of HK$480,000,000 (2024: HK$630,000,000),
contain a repayable on demand clause and are carried at
amortised cost. The term loan of HK$480,000,000 was
renewed during the year ended 30 June 2025 and did not

contain a repayable on demand clause upon renewal.

Bank borrowings are secured (Note 38) and interest-
bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”)
to HIBOR plus 0.7-1.5% (2024: HIBOR plus 0.7-1.1%)
or Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate (“Prime rate”) minus
0.5-1% (2024: Prime rate minus 0.5-1%). The effective
interest rate of the bank borrowings at the reporting
date is 3.705% (2024: 3.409%) per annum. Bank
borrowings amounted to HK$1,533,480,000 (2024:
HK$132,000,000) was repaid during the year.

As at 30 June 2025, the Group has unused banking
facilities amounted to HK$333,006,000 (2024:
HK$465,103,000), available to the Group.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

26. 5 Ef5 & (&) 26.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)
MBRTERT AV HEE —RE All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment
Rz i EAREEREREDN of covenants that are commonly found in lending
AmEB s ERARER - arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group

was to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities

would become repayable on demand.

FRAXEERHE2NRARBERE B Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
HAMFE343F cR-_E-_RHER-F risk are set out in Note 34.3. As at 30 June 2025 and
“HWERA=TH FHRRREENR 2024, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
RIGFORBHER ° facilities had been breached.

27 IR FE B 18 27.DEFERRED TAXATION
FRERLEHBEEEZESHNOT The movements during the years in the deferred

taxation are as follows:

—_E_RE —E-OHF

2025 2024

FE T THET

HK$’000 HK$000

»n+A—H At 1 July (689,925) (908,278)

PE R ZE%R Exchange differences (3,621) 2,199

ErEEmPEt A (AEE10) Credited to profit or loss (Note 10) 69,056 35,523

1 Transfer - 180,729
B B b 2 [ U a5 R RE R Recognised in other comprehensive

income 308 (98)

RANA=48 At 30 June (624,182) (689,925)
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

27 JEFEBLIR (4)

FREEHRBREEMBBENESNT

EEHARE

RZEBE-_=F+AH—H

M 5 ZFR
BEEtAEEBREF

LY 2
ExHaEEMmEmERaEs

RZE-_WNFEARNA=+tHK

—E-_WMFEL+A—H

bE 5 Z=FR
BEEFAERET
BEEt AR E M 2 W P

R-ZZE-HFXA=1+H

27 .DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 July 2023
Exchange differences
Credited to profit or loss
Transfer

Charged to other comprehensive income

At 30 June 2024 and 1 July 2024
Exchange differences

Credited to profit or loss

Credited to other comprehensive income

At 30 June 2025
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MEEML
Revaluation of
properties
TETT
HK$'000

926,091
(2,199)
(38,335)
(180,729)
98

704,926

3,621
(69,056)
(308)

639,183
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

27 REBIE (&) 27.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
ELEBEEE Deferred tax assets
IEBRIBFE REEE B
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WN—E-=F+tH—H At 1 July 2023 27,536 (45,349) (17,813)
ExXHEEmS Charged to profit or loss 141 2,671 2,812

R-ZZTE-MERA=+HK At 30 June 2024 and

—E_NMFEA-HRK 1 July 2024 and
—E-REFESNA=1H 30 June 2025 27,677 (42,678) (15,001)
THEESMBRABEPEROT - Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of

financial position:

—E_RE —E-_HE

2025 2024
TERT TETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B 755 AR i 3R T R A Net deferred tax assets recognised in
EIETRIEE ERE the statement of financial position (15,001) (15,001)
T 51 75 AR5 3 R i R Y Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
RIETRIR B EFE in the statement of financial
position 639,183 704,926
624,182 689,925
APEEREEHRBEEE Unrecognised tax losses
B A SR 2R s M B S R FEORI M - RERE The Group has unrecognised tax losses of approximately
B AR HER B I8 5 1R £0408,471,00078 HK$408,471,000 (2024: HK$334,090,000) due to
7T (ZZ VM4 : 334,090,000/ 7T) ° unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
BIERTHANEBETIEEm - do not expire under current tax legislation.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

28.fHE&EE

TREATRTAEBEHERBENORNGKAE

RZEE

REBE R KA
—F A2 H
EE_ZFhFNH

HERBENARKMBER

HEBENRE

REBEENKBERIRE
—F A2 H]

EE_EZFRFEH

B —FREHOESEA
mEBIE

— R IR D SHA
IR e B

AEERSRHEERGBEHRK TS
EEFE AR RS R LR ERE - FT A
HEHRRBAE - BREMEEL - H

HAE—FE2=%F-

28.LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual

maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities:

Total minimum lease payments:
Due within one year

Due in the second to fifth years

Future finance charges on leases

liabilities

Present value of leases liabilities

Present value of minimum lease
payments:
Due within one year

Due in the second to fifth years

Less: Portion due within one year
included under current

liabilities

Portion due after one year included

under non-current liabilities

—E_RFE —EoEF
2025 2024
FET FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
2,373 1,347
1,564 782
3,937 2,129
(175) (95)
3,762 2,034
2,229 1,290
1,533 744
3,762 2,034
(2,229) (1,290)
1,533 744

The Group considers that no extension option or
termination option would be exercised at the lease

commencement date. All leases are for offices and

warehouse. The lease periods are from one to three

years.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

28.fHEEE (E&) 28.LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
HeE—_Z-_RAFNA=1+BHIFE During the year ended 30 June 2025, the total
EMR e REBREELA2,690,0008 7T cash outflows for the leases was approximately
(ZZE P4 :2,517,000870) ° HK$2,690,000 (2024: HK$2,517,000).
HEEZHNFMAEE Details of the lease activities
%:%:ﬁi&:%:@ifﬂ =+ As at 30 June 2025 and 2024, the Group has entered
CAREEEERIPLAENEEHES into leases for offices and warehouse.
ﬁ o
BBEREBERE
EREEERY HYNERREE HERE ANHEENHE #15
Financial statements items
Types of of right-of-use assets Range of remaining
right-of-use assets included in Number of leases  lease term Particulars
MRE NE HERKE (ZFZ-@mF 1) 2008A FEAMNETERR
(ZZZmF :55MA)
Office Property, plant and 1(2024: 1) 20 months (2024: 5.5 Subject to monthly fixed
equipment months) payment
RE nE - BERRE 20(ZF-MF:2)  6-2018A FEAYNBEERR
(ZZ-m% :18-3218AR)
Warehouse Property, plant and 2(2024:2) 6 -20 months Subject to monthly fixed
equipment (2024: 18 - 32 months) payment
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29. RBRBEXNEE
RIBEBEP F57E CRBED) - &
BEXRELAFNERREES  EHTHE
RT (Bl R ERIEXRIK) TZH
RURHES -

RHRBEcHESEL2EREER AR
(LR &22,5008 T) KRB ER -
BREBERBEHERAAEENRE
Ewm (R  BHEEMNRTELR
73390,000/8 7T ° B Al © £ E I &
EENESLTHUNBTERERE S
SHEMF -

ZEZZFRA B EERTE
CEETIEBI) - BUHB A & 38§ 58 18
EHAREENZREREREKHERN
AR7S® BIIRE o UEFTIERGI) KR BE B
R o AN - BUN B R RS EEUS ¥
W& H E BT 8l - LABBIEE -

29.LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
Chapter 57, Hong Kong employees that have been
employed continuously for at least five years are
entitled to long service payment (“LSP”) under certain
circumstances (e.g. dismissal by employers or upon

retirement).

The amount of LSP payable is determined with
reference to the employee’s last monthly salary (capped
at HK$22,500) and the years of service, reduced by
the amount of any accrued benefits derived from the
Group'’s contributions to MPF scheme (see note 9), with
an overall cap of HK$390,000 per employee. Currently,
the Group does not have any separate funding

arrangement in place to meet its LSP obligations.

In June 2022, the Government gazetted the Amendment
Ordinance, which abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’” mandatory MPF
contributions to offset the LSP. The Amendment
Ordinance will take effect on the Transition Date.
Separately, the Government has indicated that it would
launch a subsidy scheme to assist employers after the

abolition.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 (([) HR/45  Annual Report 2025 41t



o & BB SRR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. REIBRBEAEME(E)

Hep - S0 GHIBUEE - EXTSAAH
150 PR L o ) 1 o A8 < (L SR A AR VAR 1]
REED (BERTEREEBERZA
) EIEZZT?:VEHH%)@ZQ(EEQ%@?EEI
EERGHFENRIRSE - AW - 10
REMEBER ZARIAEE  BEr 4
BER DI RERAIR D REHES
EHRBEAFNRARBE S ko
BERRRENEHRE S HREE
TERBERAMNAFMNEEBER
MR FERH -

RERBeNENSE LRDAEN
BTI398 87T - AlREMEN A
@39& BT - Al ERASEEMKKA
ERRRFHE SRR -

REBDKEBEHSD R HEERAAS
TR RN A Y B HmRM T
2.18 ¢

AREBERR  (EFTER) EBREANE
EHEFBRERENKRBRESNEE -

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

29.LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS

(Continued)

Among other things, once the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism takes effect, an employer can no longer use
any of the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory
MPF contributions (irrespective of the contributions made
before, on or after the Transition Date) to reduce the LSP
in respect of an employee’s service from the Transition
Date. However, where an employee’s employment
commenced before the Transition Date, the employer
can continue to use the above accrued benefits to
reduce the LSP in respect of the employee’s service up
to that date. In addition, the LSP in respect of the service
before the Transition Date will be calculated based on
the employee’s monthly salary immediately before the

Transition Date and the years of service up to that date.

The benefit payment under LSP remains capped at
HK$390,000 per employee. If an employee’s total
benefit payment exceeds HK$390,000, the amount in
excess of the cap is deducted from the portion accrued

from the Transition Date.

The Group has accounted for the offsetting mechanism
and its abolition as disclosed in notes 2.18 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Group has determined that the Amendment
Ordinance primarily impacts the Group’s LSP

obligations with respect to Hong Kong employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

29. REIBBENEE (E) 29.LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS
(Continued)
RAEBENESHRIERESEINETH The present value of unfunded LSP obligations and its
HRERHEEFHWOT : movements are as follows:

—E-RHFE _—_FT_UF

2025 2024
T#ET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
»n+A—H At 1 July _ _

RERPERNFX Expenses recognised in profit or loss:
- & HABR TG K AR — Current service cost 683 -
RNA=+H At 30 June 683 _
—E-RFE —TNOF
2025 2024
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$000

DT : Analysed into:
- mEED — Current portion 570 -
- JERE B — Non-current portion 113 -
B Total 683 -
EHREKARFNEKRABEEE L The current service cost and interest cost are included
BHNERP  WELAABREXTHO T in employee benefit expenses. They are recognised in
IH B A REA the following line items in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss:

—E-HRF —T-mMF
2025 2024
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$000
ITHER Administrative expenses 683 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

29. R B XN EE (&) 29.LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS
(Continued)
st MR =R Estimates and assumptions
BERBERSESEINEENEEZRE The significant actuarial assumptions for the
BE&EWOT : determination of LSP obligations are as follows:

—EBE-HEE —ZT-MmEF

2025 2024
I =X Discount rate 3.54% N/A
FEEBRX Salary growth rate 2.5% N/A
VLIRS Turnover rate 13.1% N/A
AEERES RERED Expected investment return on
TEHATR & B K offsetable MPF accrued benefits 3.0% N/A
HERRBEXNEENERBR The significant assumptions for the determination of LSP
BEEEEE YA EREERMWeValue obligation were developed by management with the
Advisory Limited®) 17380 T &lI5E  #IR assistance of independent qualified valuer, WeValue
AFREEARSE LB EEET Advisory Limited. Discount factors are determined close
ERREEAREAERARBE S XN to each period end by reference to market yields of
BEHREINEE R RIEN TSRS high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in
TRE - EMBREERERTBEREE the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that
MEEENRELER - RERES ST have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
BEENREFRAREREESE - related LSP obligations. Other assumptions are based

on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s
historical experience. The present value of the LSP
obligations was measured using the projected unit

credit method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

29. RHIBR B XN EE (F) 29.LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS
(Continued)

KBRS NEENRBEHRAE The present value of the LSP obligations was measured
ERBLIEE - using the projected unit credit method.
ARG N EEAOMETHIAR The weighted average duration of the LSP obligations is
B22F (ZTZUEF : 2.24F) o 2.2 years (2024: 2.2 years).
BE_T_-_AFA=+H " X*K35 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted LSP
FRFTBERERGEESE SN EESTEL obligations in the next 35 years as at 30 June 2025 is
BT disclosed as follows:

BB-% BBmMEF

—fR  BIRmE  EOREF BBLE e
Over 1year  Over 2 years
but within but within

Within 1 year 2 years 5years  Over5 years Total
TR TR TERT TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—BCIF 2025

RERBEXNEHR LSP obligations 626 25 36 316 1,003
RERESXNEFTFESEEHGRE The LSP obligations expose the Group to actuarial risks
B Pl FRE - FERK A LE such as interest rate risk, salary risk and the investment

ERETTE K EESIRE AR - risk of the Group’s MPF scheme’s constituent funds.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

29. R B XN EE (&) 29.LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS
(Continued)
EABERRNEE Changes in the significant actuarial assumptions
EHRESYXNEINGFES LS The calculation of the LSP obligations is sensitive to
AIBEBREMTE - TRABE TELET the significant actuarial assumptions mentioned above.
EBRBRNEEHEREARPRE S The following table summarises the effects of changes
XNEEHTE - in these actuarial assumptions on the LSP obligations at

each reporting date.

EREEBRKE
XNBEENRE
Impact on LSP obligations

CE4:k- 314 1R 5 48 AN R D

Increase Decrease
Changes in in the in the
assumption  assumption assumption
THTT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZF-HEF=A=+—H  Asat 31 March 2025
IR =K Discount rate 0.5% (7) 7
HERER Salary growth rate 0.5% 1 (1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

30. R AR i 18
(A) BAE

ERTRECEBR

BRFEZEBER
RAFENRER

#isz -

RER - TE|ARRZHMBARBEE -
HES BRI LD R Z ARG -

30.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(A) Share capital

Wit
Note
Ordinary shares, issued
and fully paid:
Voting ordinary shares:
At the beginning and at
the end of the year

ZEZRHF
2025
K& #E TR
Number of
shares HK$’'000

652,676,781 2,468,985

—T-mE
2024
ki8R TET
Number of
shares HK$'000

652,676,781 2,468,985

652,676,781 2,468,985

652,676,781 2,468,985

Note:

the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

30. R AN K 1 5 (48) 30.SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(Continued)
(B) f#1#& (B) Reserve
KA F The Company
= &t A
Retained
profits
TET
HK$'000
R-_ZE-_=F+A—H Balance at 1 July 2023 251,686
AFEEBEBEAFEEZEZ H4AE Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year (40,745)
BHEREN T =FKHERKRE 2023 final dividend approved and paid (19,580)
EHERENN ZZ ZmMFEFHEAR B 2024 interim dividend approved and paid (14,685)
MRZZBZ_MOFRA=+THER Balance at 30 June 2024 and 1 July 2024
—ET-_NFEEA—H 176,676
EBEEEAFEE2AX LB Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year (49,116)
BHEREN - MF RIS 2024 final dividend approved and paid (26,107)
BE#ERENZFT_RAFFREARKE 2025 interim dividend approved and paid (14,685)
RZE-_RAFNA=1H Balance at 30 June 2025 86,768
RZZE-_RAFA=1H REE At 30 June 2025, the aggregate amounts of reserves
BARGRIIFEE 2 REFTE - 7] available for distribution to equity shareholders
SDIRTFARAFREZHEEAEL of the Company, as calculated under the
486,768,000 7T (Z & — 0 F : provisions of Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance,
176,676,000/ 70) ° was approximately HK$86,768,000 (2024:

HK$176,676,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

E-ZEZE-_RFHAA-t=RAEEe

HEE R IR AE T 3% -

31. 2 B B 5k R 8|k 3k 31.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
—E-RF —E - pF
2025 2024
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
kRBEE Non-current assets
B Aa s Interests in subsidiaries 288,453 250,138
N NGB Amounts due from subsidiaries 156,835 161,662
445,288 411,800
REBEE Current assets
Ho b FE U AR 5R Other receivables - 599
RNl NETE O] Amounts due from subsidiaries 3,410,768 3,150,765
RITHEFNMIRE Bank balances and cash 189 290,187
3,410,957 3,441,551
REBEE Current liabilities
H At JE 7 BR X Other payables 2,215 2,085
JE B BB & R kA Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,048,143 993,988
BEEBXN Advances from a director 250,134 211,617
1,300,492 1,207,690
REBEEFE Net current assets 2,110,465 2,233,861
Total assets less current liabilities
WEERRBEBEREEFRE and net assets 2,555,753 2,645,661
R EQUITY
A& 7R Share capital 2,468,985 2,468,985
@1 (M1 a230(B)) Retained profits (Note 30(B)) 86,768 176,676
FEHBE Total equity 2,555,753 2,645,661

directors on 23 September 2025.

Fihig=] HZ
Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil Chao Gigi
EF EF
Director Director
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

NEBEBEALZERXRS 32.MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
BRI ARGETEHRREMILMOIEE 2 In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
5 ARG - LA AN B ER A R elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,
ATRFRNETZIERR S during the year, the Group had the following material

transactions with connected and related parties:

—E_RFE —EoE

2025 2024
M it TET FATT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
XN FEEERBAER Remuneration paid to key
e BREERER management personnel,
MHEE13 1 TR A including amounts paid to the
BEFEME Company’s directors as disclosed
in Note 13:
e kEA R Salaries and other short-term
EERA employee benefits 15,772 15,102
BEE 12 1B A Post-employment benefits 88 89
15,860 15,191
FEN FHYZEL Interest paid to
Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (a) 14,756 13,043
X} F it FEE A A BR 2 7) Commission paid to Szehope
e Securities Company Limited (b) 169 =
TR TFTHEMEER Building management fee paid to
ERARAKEEEEMR Maximus Property Management
Limited (c) 8,074 3,477

Annual Report 2025 4:# ¢ CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (%£8) H5RAH



r & B SR R R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

32EHEBEALTZEARS () 32.MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Bret -

(a)

1 1 A AN R [ IR A A I A
EEERBHZEF  RRITRAZER
EIM%stERE - RZFE-_RAF XA
=+8 HtEtE¥EIATAEEZR
K A250,134,0008 70 (ZF Y4 -
211,617,000 1) - it Z1E 1+ B #
BAKR—FAIBEREREREEEEN
FoBELBEARDARE-

HitZHLt R RESERRARZE
HEBA

HBAEEERTENEEEBRAA
CESHEAEAN BB ZBEBRAE
BERXEGBEANMNRZ S LiiEE
BEALRZALBERNE EMRRNE
TAABRBEMEX S ZEE °

BR DA E BTl 9h - 4 4R B AR B
MARRMELEITIREBTNEER
2 RERFFHEBALY  MARAE
ERERBALTRZERS LXK
AT ERNEEEAE A A -

Notes:

(a)

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has provided unsecured
advances to the Group at 1% over prime interest
rate in Hong Kong per annum. At 30 June 2025,
the advances from Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
amounted to approximately HK$250,134,000 (2024:
HK$211,617,000). The balance is unsecured and
repayable on demand and therefore classified as a current

liability.

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner of

Szehope Securities Company Limited.

Mr. Chao Howard is the beneficial owner of Maximus
Property Management Limited. The related party
transaction was conducted in the Group’s normal course
of business. None of the above related party transactions
falls under the definition of continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

Other than the above, no other transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company or a
connected entity of the director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

3. ERETHELANEBENYEEE 33.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

METELENASBEEEEZHLE The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from

(N financing activities can be classified as follows:

BN EAFER
RERE REEE ESBX BELTRE RR$E

Amounts
Amounts due due to
Interest-bearing  Advance from to related  non-controlling
Lease liabilities borrowings a director companies  shareholders
TET TET TER TAR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-UELA-H 1 July 2024 2,034 1,129,000 211,617 4,645 239,990
RERE: Cash-flows:
-Bx - Repayment - (1,533,460) (22,783) - -
- 5 - Proceeds - 1,428,000 61,300 = L
- MEXH - Interest paid (182) (37,979) (14,756) = i
- BNHEERSH - Capital element of lease
BEALZ rentals paid 2,350) 2 B - 1
— BB RAZEEM - Increase in advance from a
related company - x 1 266 1
¥Re: Non-cash:
- ENFE - Interest expense 182 37,979 14,756 = -
- BEEBIT - Lease modification 4,078 L 1 - i
ZEZEFEXRA=TH 30 June 2025 3,762 1,023,520 250,134 4911 239,990
“E-ZELA-B O July 2023 2,956 863,000 172,716 1,627 239,990
Hene: Cash-flows:
- B - Repayment - (132,000) - - -
- i - Proceeds - 398,000 38,901 - =
- flETH - Interest paid (48) (37,807) (13,043) = .
- BNHEHREH - Capital element of lease
BALE rentals paid (2,326) - i L -
— BERFZEEN - Increase in advance from a
related company - - - 3,018 -
#He: Non-cash:
- ERFIE - Interest expense 48 38,577 13,043 = 2
- [E:FIE - Interest accruals = (770) - = -
— HEIAA ~ Entering into a new lease 1,404 - ! L .
ZEZMESA=TH 30 June 2024 2,034 1,129,000 211,617 4,645 239,990
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

4.TREBREERAABHEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

R FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
AEBTE—REBELKEERKRESE The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
AT AESERER - S/ use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of
B & B 3T 5 A B (B 55 o E bR~ F operations and in its investment activities. The financial
R REMEERR)  EERR X risks include market risk (including foreign currency
mENE ® =B o risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

BREUKTAZABRRNMEE RN The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
AEFTERREFINNT - EEEERER out below. The management manages and monitors
EmNREBUABEBREERRERES these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
B R HETT © implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

MM.TrREAREERA
B (48)
MIEHEEREBER

NTEzeMEEMERBIEN
FREEZIET BRI RERT -

REEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the
following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities:
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TE-HEFE —T_WF
2025 2024
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$000
EWMEE Financial assets
%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁfzﬁs : Amortised cost:
%}EHSZEE R N B EUBEFR  Trade and other receivables 14,991 13,128
R1ITERRBEE Bank balances and cash 838,542 881,792
BAnRBEAHEMEE Financial assets at FVTOCI:
Wz &@EE
KAZEE EHB LM Perpetual notes, listed in Hong Kong = 19,928
AR GEEBRINET Perpetual notes, listed outside
Hong Kong 19,428 20,902
& EBEL™ Debentures, listed in Hong Kong 3,810 2,715
BF EBEBZEINLET Debentures, listed outside
Hong Kong - 6,331
ZARBEFABRZ Financial assets at FVTPL:
TREE
FTRAES  HBEEER Listed equity securities held for
trading = 54,263
JELETIRERS Unlisted investment fund 2,955 2,953
879,726 1,002,012
cRas Financial liabilities
REE SRR Amortised cost:
iiﬁtWETTZiF§*+m§%A Other payables 45,207 48,861
JE A SR B IR 3K Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 239,990 239,990
JE T RESE A RIFKIR Amount due to a related company 4,911 4,645
BREE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,023,520 IR EiPs0sE
B8N Advance from a director 250,134 211,617
HEaE Lease liabilities 3,762 2,034
1,567,524| 1,638,655
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

4.TREBREERAABHEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
Md2EERR 34.2 Credit risk

EERREXZEHFENEANE
TEHAREMFERORR - &
SEENMBREEEFERINR
FHFITRE - WHEBEEBER T
SRMHNERSR - WREBRZOMS
R B TSR R R

AEBNEERRIEZEXRBES
NE L FEURIR - AN E B R TE
o ERERMIBITAR LIRS
EERBRERE/M T CE AR/
ZEFREL  PENMBRAEEA
TBRIT YEREEEFNR K
SERRZEFERERTIEK - &1
RITHBERNR  ERERFE
MRXZHFEHISETEER -

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in financial loss to the Group. The Group has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk

of financial loss from defaults.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables and other financial
assets. The Group’s exposure to credit risk on
bank balances and cash are considered to be
insignificant because the counterparties are the
major banks in the Hong Kong, PRC and Malaysia
with established credit ratings, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk. Given the high
credit ratings of the banks, management does
not expect any counterparties to fail to meet its

obligations.
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

4.2 FEKMETERAABEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
M2EERE (&) 34.2 Credit risk (Continued)

B SN

NEEFEA BT A AT S B 73R
HAERAFIORTH TR TEEAE
Ko BiTEHEBERBL  E5E
WHIEBRBE_XZEERRFE K
BEBHSME - EFrETEEEAE
REXRE  SEZEEESEZEMA]
EHEER ARSI BEDLE
WEBWREENK  WEEHEE
Miaz AR BEHEEZANAERE -
BRIt BT A 60 HA A0 JlE UK BR SR B0 48 & /T
HEBERBAXARE - A5H
BEHZ-_ZT-_AFK_ZT_OF
NAZTHLEFEMNE S EKEIE
MIEHERABLABERL  EAR

BBEXLTTENRMELEHEER
BAAEETARMEEH KA E
FRE
REHEAAFTENEMEREER
BEREEMEWHKIE - IHARE
B AHtEEWE 2 EHFRE R
RITRELRBAE -  REERERER
Bk SEEEBHREBEELGER
50 8% A0 38 1 4S5 DA I & AT AN EBAE
B BR[O 1T E B &R RS AN (E
ArtHE - BERHEEMEERERF - K
EARREBZETTE R B EET -
UM S - TR R EAb FE W EIR R
EERBREESIEE -

Trade receivables

The Group has applied the simplified approach
to assess the ECL as prescribed by HKFRS 9. To
measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the past due days. In calculating the ECL
rates, the Group considers historical elements and
forward-looking elements. Assessed lifetime ECL
rate of trade receivables is minimal for all ageing
bands as there was minimal history of default and
continuous payments were received, and rental
deposits are required from tenants prior to the
commencement of leases. The Group determined
that the ECL allowance in respect of trade
receivables for the years ended 30 June 2025 and
2024 is minimal as there has not been a significant

change in credit quality of the customers.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost include deposits and other receivables, debt
investment at FVTOCI and bank balances and
cash. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group would make periodic
collective and individual assessment on the
recoverability based on historical settlement
records and past experience as well as current
external information and adjusted to reflect
probability-weighted forward-looking information,
including the default rate where the relevant
debtors operates. Other monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In these regards, the
credit risk of deposits and other receivables are
considered to be low.
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4.2 FEMETERAABEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
M2EERE (&) 34.2 Credit risk (Continued)

BEEK AT EAMEHBEER
BARBETSARMDE K27 E
$RE (HF)

WMERE G HRERM 1 7F7E - EF
R A E54,004,0008 T2 58
BRIWREBELEREBEHFEITALR
BHEREZMNFE - AR - REEE
wHEINERERERE - ~XEEYH
BA R BEF A M2 E WA F
MEFRENEER R O WRE
EWTAREN  BRAREBHELERS
W BEBIRE AR RFNERAT
H - XEERAEEARBERE -
EREITANGRTRRELG - B
EBIEF T8 B EMNRXSE FREE
THE® -

AR R]EE D G E AR IR
TEHAE MBI 121 A TR EE A
BRIDETRIE - AR B TRHER
URZETRMEENEERRIL &
BEENM BBE_T-_AFR_
T NFEANA=THLEFENELY
2\ gz B o

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investment at FVTOCI (Continued)

As set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, in the opinion of the directors, the
credit quality of debentures of approximately
HK$4,004,000 does not deteriorated and there was
no default of interest payments by the debenture
issuers. As a result, no additional impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss accordingly.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk on remaining
debt investment at FVTOCI are considered to
be insignificant because the debt investment at
FVTOCI are with good credit rating, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk. Given the
good credit ratings of the issuers, management does
not expect any counterparties to fail to meet its

obligations.

The directors of the Company have assessed that
the ECL for other receivables are minimal under
the 12-month ECL method as there is no significant
increase in credit risk on these financial assets
since initial recognition and the risk of default
is low during the years ended 30 June 2025 and
2024.
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4.2 FEKMETERAABEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
M3 RBEES RS 34.3 Liquidity risk

MEBMERBIIEAN R EBEETE
BBXNREREMEMEERS
ENerBERRNERNRRE
B - AKE LB ERNFIBEMBE
BEARIREIRE IR 7 | R

MR - AEENBREEBES
BELLEENRERETRD - F
HEREENMNERNRBESFR
MESERZHONETIEN - AR
RAER E IR IE R AR S R A K
REETET BRI RE
AEESBENREEEMESR
MWREERBK - AEBBEBEFE
AR —BEERERBMEER - LKA
REAREERBIERRE

AT BAREEE—_FT _0%F
—ENERNA=THHNESREA
BEHRRE R - ERARRER
WRESRE (BREEMRE RN R
BOOMBZN - FBWRZEEF - A
RIEREBHNRTHRAE) -
EERARNEZMABEERE
- S BEEARE R ER
MHHFHBFA - WMEEDHE
& By o REANEEAR
XA R & HARE o

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its payables and financing obligations, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants by reviewing each operating
entity’s cash flow forecast, to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions and related parties to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
liquidity policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been

effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as
at 30 June 2025 and 2024, based on undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the reporting date). When the creditor
has a choice of when the liability is settled, the
liability is included on the basis of the earliest date
on when the Group can be required to pay. Where
the settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in

which the Group is committed to pay.
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BE_FT_H&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

4.TREBREERAABHEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
M3 FBESREMR (H) 34.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

RZE-HEAA=ZTH
FTEERAR
R RESER
I ERRRZE
EREELANE

HEaE

RZZZWERA=TH
FiEERAR

i EH REF R
B EERREE

BEfE
EEE L
BEAR

HHDH - RERRERY
Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows
R-fhd  SR-F SRRE RER
REE  HREX  BORRE EIREF RALLE
More than  More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but Total
Carrying 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted
amount  on demand 2 years 5 years ~cash outflows

TET TET TER TER TER
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

At 30 June 2025

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Other payables and accruals 45,207 45,207 - - 45,207

Amount due to non-controlling shareholders 239,990 239,990 - - 239,990

Amount due to a related company 4911 4911 - - 4911

Interest-bearing horrowings 1,023,520 552,064 8,544 483,347 1,043,955

Advances from a director 250,134 250,134 - - 250,134

Lease liabilities 3,762 2,373 1,564 - 3,937
1567524 1,094,679 10108 483347 1,588,134

At 30 June 2024

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Other payables and accruals 48,861 48,861 - - 48,861

Amount due to non-controlling shareholders 239,990 239,990 - - 239,990

Amount due to a related company 4,645 4,645 - - 4,645

Interest-bearing borrowings 1,131,508 1,153,265 - - 1,153,265

Advances from a director 211,617 211,617 - - 211,617

Lease liabilities 2,034 1347 782 - 2,129

1,638,655 1,659,725 782

1,660,507
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BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

4.2 FEKMETERAABEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
MIRBESRER (&) 34.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

tHABEEERRERZKAKE
RGN ERERMBRER - &
B BREI R —FAA
&k o IRIBEERBHETOED
BEEERHEHERNBR O
MEWNT - ZeRBEREMAESRA
EHAENNEZN - EEEAEE
WIS - NRABEERBIRIT

The interest-bearing borrowings comprised term
loans and revolving loan with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the “Within 1 year
or on demand” time band in the above maturity
analysis. The maturity analysis of the term loans
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in
the loan agreements is summarised as follows. The

amounts include interest payments computed using

NIRRT REAT i B pE 2 2 5K S AI{E
& ARBEZMRE  EMERE
RIBE S P EL Y B F ROE 3K B

H(EE - will exercise their discretion to demand immediate

contractual rates. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors of the Company
do not consider that it is probable that the banks

repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that the term loans will be repaid in accordance
with the schedules repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.

HEAN-EHERRERERRERTERHRERERAE
Maturity Analysis - Term loans and revolving loan subject to a repayable on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments

SH-%F SRWME KEBBEE
EEE R-FR EIRBE EIRLE e
More than ~ More than

1yearbut 2 years but Total
Carrying Within less than less than  undiscounted
amount 1 year 2 years 5 years cash outflows

TEx TRL TRL ThT TAT
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

RZEZHEXAZTH At 30 June 2025

FTECREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BEfRE Interest-bearing borrowings 543,520 267,155 16,937 271,516 555,608

ROF-MERA=TH  At30)June 2024
HITEERMAE Non-derivative financial liabilities
REfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 501,508 524,158 L - 524,158

MRZEA| RSB HEBE BIETH The amounts included above for variable interest
BERFIEAR - B EAdIESTE SR
,\T,%-\/%ib%'JTIﬂﬁﬁ@ém{ﬁ%Eﬂ

B R B AEBIL -

rate non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ
to those effective interest rates determined at the

reporting date.
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4.2 FEMETERAABEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
34.4 R = = 34.4 Interest rate risk

FERBEVHTAZ AREBEER
HWEenEeEeMEMSMNERNE MmFE
gz AR o

ANEEZF KRR E;&KQE‘E
{ﬁf% HABRRITERLRESTE

xﬁéﬂ?ﬂkq—%ﬁ”% - E A
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁh % o RIT
B EEBEGRR “‘%i;‘%ﬁ'—ﬁiﬂ”
MEBRITEAZERSET - FxX
BRBE B o

AEEZABEEE  KARBERLE
H5TATEMA - BHEFIEER
TEE -

7N 5% 8 30 S {5 R 58 B ) =R S O ) R
J_wuu o

REFGEFRDIRERBEIEI
REMBEE  WRAE KK -

RZE-_FRFNA=+H - BEHF
R ¥ #5080 T  BEEMEA
=T @R EIAREE 2R
BrEiE &1%%55’1%IJ 495,318,000
BT (ZE= DRk AR
SEFE fﬁfﬁmfruxﬂ%aﬂmﬂ%’v
1,926,000%87T) ° 55080 F 2 5
S TRAAEEEHEE T —RAMRE
=R RSl - 5

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from interest-bearing borrowings which includes
bank loans and advances from a director. These
arrangements issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. In accordance
with the terms of the interest-bearing borrowings,
the interest rate will be adjusted should the Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate and HIBOR be changed.

The Group’s lease liabilities, perpetual notes and
debentures are earning fixed interest rate, therefore

it is immaterial to interest rate risk.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior year and are
considered to be effective.

At 30 June 2025, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease/increase the Group’s loss after
income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$5,318,000 (2024: decrease/increase the
Group’s profit after income tax and retained profits
by approximately HK$1,926,000). The 50 basis
point increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual
reporting date.
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. cREKREERAABEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

BER (#8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.5 ShEE & B 34.5 Foreign currency risk
SMERRIE R BEEZ AABETR Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
RIBemEERE KB ME 2R value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
2 - AEFEFEREL  ERATLR will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
FA B E - KEMDR S5 RIS exchange rates. The Group operates mainly in
M BRADSERAREBES - Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC with most of the
NS EENSREERAE - 5 transactions denominated in local currency of Hong
LB EER 2 IRMEXRKRE - Kong, Malaysia and the PRC. Foreign currency
HFBEWT denominated financial assets and liabilities,

translated into HK$ at closing rates, are as follows:

AR% EpH
RMB us$
S=oE 32
HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZB-ZHFXA=1+H At 30 June 2025
B 5 N B fE W AR 7R Trade and other receivables 1,232 -
RITFEARIRE Bank balances and cash - 1,241
BAnEFAEMEE WS 2  Financial assets at FVTOCI
TREE - 23,238
AR R FE Overall net exposure 1,232 24,479
MR-_ZFE_WMFXRA=1+H At 30 June 2024
B 5 N E M EWIRR Trade and other receivables 1,328 =
RITFEARIRE Bank balances and cash - 1,294
BAREGFAEMEEmUWEZ  Financial assets at FVTOCI
TREE - 49,876
WA R R FE Overall net exposure 1,328 51,170
RARABTTEHEETTEN AEET The Group did not have significant foreign currency
3 T BB JT 2 [ I MR B K AN E &L risk between US$ and HK$ as HK$ is pegged with
b INERBRBERETEE - US$. The foreign currency risk are considered as
immaterial.
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4.TREBREERAABHEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.6 H L E A% AR 34.6 Other price risk

HiBREAREMBIAZARE
@@zﬂi%ﬁéﬁ%ﬂi%ﬁ%fﬂﬂ
(M =E8) R INEZ BRI
@@mﬂ“°$ilfkﬁﬂtm
BAZFFOTHERES  ZFL
MIRANRESBRIRAABER
ABRZEeMEE - EREEGEE
BENES  EFERIFELHEED
1TE) ©

AEEAHFECREAHBE R
ﬁﬂf“i’fﬂﬂ RHEER - YRBE Eﬁz

o

Q

FHEREBRRENI0%(ZZF =/

F10%) BRESHHAEENF
ZEBEZEWMT

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The Group is mainly exposed to
change in market prices of listed equity securities in
respect of its investments in listed equity classified
as financial assets at FVTPL. The management will
monitor the price movements and take appropriate

actions when it is required.

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are

considered to be effective.

A hypothetical 10% (2024: 10%) change in prices
of trading investments would result in an effect to

the Group’s result for the year as follows:

—E-RHE —EoOE

2025 2024
FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BAREBEEGFAEBRZ Decrease in loss (2024: Increase
TREEEBS LAY in profit) for the year as a result
AREEERL(ZZEZMF :  of increase in price of financial
Z )3 40) assets at FVTPL 296 5,722
BAnBEFAERZ Increase in loss (2024: Decrease
SREEBRK TS in profit) for the year as a result
AREFEZIN(ZF —MUF ©  decrease in price of financial
AR ) assets at FVTPL (296) (5,722)
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. EMEERAABEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
BER (#8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
347 AR EMBRRKRPBRZAFE 34.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

iR
FRAFAKBSRT AREE B
BRI ERE 2 DA EE 3
REESHHBELNEBHRAR
EEHEFATL=ERABER
RIEIS - DA BESEHRMAEE
RIS 2 G ABBRTTBERAE
BT R AT

- EAME:AE-RBAE
AEZAREE BARRE
EXBERAERREEZRTS
FHRBABERETE -

- BAME:AE-_RBWAE
REZAREE MHEHBAE
ZAIBREHARARTEE R
WAE BEEEERAEILIF
ERTAEBRZH8E - TR B
2l UNEVRIZ: i -6
E2EZBAME -

— F=AME:ERTAERH
BIFERWABAFAEZAR
BfE -

TRMEEXREBEBRBENIBEZIAA
BEREAZEBRX BERHAAE
AAEAAERERZZRERERE
NI

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
reporting date on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as

follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is

significant to the fair value measurement.
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4. cmEKREERAAEBEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

HR () FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
347 AR EMBRRKRPBERZAFE 34.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the
52 (%) consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

R ERABERPIZAR BT EZ The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
eRMEENBERARBERES value in the consolidated statement of financial
wm position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as
follows:
B FZE Mt
R-ZE-HEEXNA=1+H At 30 June 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Total
et TERT TET FTET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
BALBEFABRZZEFEE © Financial assets at FVTPL:
FLETMEEES Unlisted investment fund (b) = 2,955 2,955

BARBEFAEMEZAEAMZEZ  Financial assets at FVTOCI
CREECKEBHEREX):  (before ECL):

KARE  EBEBFEIN LT Perpetual notes, listed
outside Hong Kong (c) - 19,428 19,428
B% EEBLM Debentures, listed in Hong
Kong () = 4,004 4,004
- 26387 26,387
F—E EfE BE
R-ZE-_WE~A=1+H At 30 June 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Hat TAT FAET TAET
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BAnBEAAEZ EHME Financial assets at FVTPL:
REEEELMRAZES Listed equity securities held
for trading (a) 54,263 - 54,263
FLTMEEES Unlisted investment fund (b) - 2,953 2,953
BAREBEFAEMEZEmWEZEZS Financial assets at FVTOCI
MEE(REBHAEAERX): (before ECL):
AXARE - EBEBLED Perpetual notes, listed in
Hong Kong (c) - 19,928 19,928
ARG EHBRINLET Perpetual notes, listed
outside Hong Kong (c) - 20,902 20,902
B EEBLM Debentures, listed in Hong
Kong (c) - 2,909 2,909
&5 ERERINET Debentures, listed outside
Hong Kong (c) - 43,701 43,701

54,263 90,393 144,656
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. EMEERAABEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
BER (#8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
347 AR EMBRRKRPBRZAFE 34.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

& (&)

RBEHELEE - F_ER
FE=ELHEEE -

HBEMERHELR  BEAAE
BEEMRBNEM T ERRME A K

.......

i

(@ LEHEFFEFEEER
EtEZABTRE AREER
MEBFE2EREE AN EHRE

b) kLTREES
FELEMBEESHAREEERH
BEFERE EESEREA
BE-_Z-_AFXA=t+HHM®
EMESQAREE-

(c0 LHE%#
EWEHFUETHE - AR EE
D2EHERBREAHNREN
EBE - LTEBEHFNBEHEH
BERFBHNGRE M BIRERM T
34.2 ¢

USRAABETENEHEENSH

BEENAIAREE
AREENEGAAFTENSHTA
FHEEREBEE T -AFKA
—tENAABEEREEZR -

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

There has been no transfer among Level 1, 2 and 3

in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged

compared to the previous reporting periods.

Notes:

(@) Listed equity securities held for trading
The listed equity securities were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. Fair values had been determined
by reference to their quoted bid prices at the

reporting date.

(b) Unlisted investment fund
The fair value of unlisted investment fund is
determined based on their net asset value,
representing the fair value of the fund reported by

respective fund managers as at 30 June 2025.

(c) Listed debt securities
The listed debt securities are denominated in United
States dollars. Fair values have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting
date. Details of ECL on the listed debt securities are
set out in Note 34.2 to the consolidated financial

statements.

34.8 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried

at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair value as at 30
June 2025.
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3. EXREHE
A E S 1P H A S UARE (R 7N 5 M 48 A
RECSE TR ARREREREERE
N HY T 5 2 e 1 BB E B A A
IR E AR A o

=[]
[s]

REFHABRERGERE - AEBE Ak
BRTHRRZEE - B#THRIHESR
BE AR EE ©

AREBEEEBERMBLER - LR
BEFERAEEN - Eitt - NEER
BREFALAEEAR (BREREH
BIRAKRTFORB I ERBEREBE
FE JESERR AR FKIR - EER AR NEN
FERRFIR)MERTERRRSE -
RERNSERBVBRRKRF 2R
.

C

13

Sz e
T AREE o

35.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost

of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by
total capital. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total borrowings (including current and non-
current interest-bearing borrowings, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders, amount due to a related
company and advance from a director as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less bank
balances and cash. Total capital is equity as shown in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 (([) HR/45  Annual Report 2025 41t



o & BB SRR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_F_HA&£,A=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

5. 8K EHE (,%E) 35.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)
TR AEEZKE BT NFRE During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was
mRES EZ’EH%FEE [nap: %71 unchanged since 2009, was to maintain a gearing ratio
B50%  —E-RAFR-_ZFPUFRNA of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at 30 June
=tTRZEERBBELERMT : 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

—E_RFE —EE

2025 2024

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,023,520 1,131,508

BRI Advance from a director 250,134 211,617
JE < FE#58 AR IR ER SRR Amounts due to non-controlling

shareholders 239,990 239,990

F& 1 BA i A Amount due to a related company 4,911 4,645

& K A8 Total borrowings 1,518,555 1,587,760

VEE fETTT_ RN R & Less: bank balances and cash (838,542) (881,792)

BEFE Net debt 680,013 705,968

BEXR (K T) Total capital (Note) 5,771,409 6,684,368

AERMBELE Gearing ratio 11.8% 10.6%

Kiit - BERBIEMBEARARBEHA Note: Total capital includes all capital and reserves

AL RERE - attributable to owners of the Company.
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36. 7% iE 36. COMMITMENTS
(@) EARFEIE (a) Capital commitments
R¥E BN ERPYEZ EAE Capital commitments in respect of properties
R RT3 R IE AT I R T under development outstanding at the reporting
B date not provided for in the consolidated financial

statements are as follows:

—_E_RE —E_H

2025 2024
FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEELERREH Contracted but not provided for 92,637 170,170
(b) BEHE-HHBEEA (b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor
RiEH REBREBEEYWELET At the reporting date, the Group had future
BERUE Z AT - RIRWE 2 1K aggregate minimum lease rental receipts under
e B GRBRELT non-cancellable operating leases in respect of the

Group’s properties as follows:

—E_RF —EoOE

2025 2024

FHET TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

—F K Within one year 28,197 8,402
—FREMFA After 1 year but within 2 years 11,258 1,152
39,455 9,554
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36. 7% & (&) 36. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(@) BEAREIE(HE) (a) Capital commitments (Continued)
AEEREBSEHEZHHEERR The Group leases its investment properties (Note
EWE(WiE14) T HERE 14) under operating lease arrangements which run
= WAEERIHANAREH for initial periods of two to three years, with an
HEBEPEHWENRHBERHE option to renew the lease terms at the expiry date
B - HOBKR—REERER or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
X HRE\ER - HEH I BEREME and the respective tenants. The terms of the lease
& o generally also require the tenants to pay security

deposits. None of the leases include contingent

rentals.
37. M BREREN 37.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS OF
THE COMPANY
AANFEMEBETFTETHE AR MR The Company has executed corporate guarantees to
TRERRITELAGER ©#F banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
£1,266,586,000/8 70 (Z =& — P 4F : subsidiaries to the extent of HK$1,266,586,000 (2024:
1,595,165,0000870) - HFRA=—F - A HK$1,595,165,000) of which HK$1,023,520,000
FARNA=+HEMBE1,023,520,000 (2024: HK$1,130,062,000) was utilised as at 30 June
B (ZZ P4 :1,130,062,000% 2025. At the reporting date, no provision for the
L) cMMEBH  AREFRRME Company’s obligation under the guarantee contracts
NEMEEBE R T AAREEL - I Mgt have been made as the directors considered that it
RABFEREHNBETHEEELEE - was not probable that the repayment of the loans by
BEERMNALEBEELIEZEE - the subsidiaries would be in default. The fair value of

these guarantees was immaterial.
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3. EEE R
RERER  AEBELTHERIRZ &
$R1718 & &1,023,520,0008 L (= F
— PO 1 1,129,000,000/%8 7T) :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

AEENE TREMERLT
wEkEF AHEEEDNA
2,368,955,000% 7C (=& M4 :
2,546,738,000% 7T) (Kfit14) &k
180,660,000 7T (=& — /Y £ :
188,254,000 7T) (Afit15) B K
T IRIT -

HETWBRBIMEEERAGHIER
A

R 1T 45 17 BR E{E 494,036,000/ 7T
EEEE (T -mF &) (f7
22)+ &

EBAnBEFARMEZEREN S
B E 4 /523,238,00008 T (=&
—NF ) (fAET7) e

38.PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the reporting date, the Group’s bank borrowings of

HK$1,023,520,000 (2024: HK$1,129,000,000) were

secured by the following:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

legal charges on certain of the Group’s investment
properties and land and buildings with carrying
values of approximately HK$2,368,955,000
(2024: HK$2,546,738,000) (Note 14) and
HK$180,660,000 (2024: HK$186,254,000) (Note
15) respectively;

floating charge over all the assets and

undertakings of certain subsidiaries;

charge over bank account balances with carrying
values of approximately HK$4,036,000 (2024:
HK$Nil) (Note 22); and

financial assets at FVTOCI of approximately
HK$23,238,000 (2024: HK$Nil) (Note 17).
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Schedule of Major Properties

BE_FT_HA&E/-AZ=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

EERYE COMPLETED PROPERTIES
R-ZE_RAFNRNA=1H As at 30 June 2025
[SF9:] gy £
nx wa WREFH Bh AREER BfI ERE:
Total
approved
Government gross  Car parking
Property Lot no. lease term Type  floor area spaces % owned
(%) (FAR)
(years) (s.f)
BEMAKBIES 447716305 EHB199251] BE/EE 3,892 - 100
2RH ($17) at55%F
Scenic Crest 716inDD. 4 55 from 1992 Commercial/ 3,892 = 100
Mui Wo Residential
Lantau Island
New Territories
Hong Kong (Portion)
ERBAFAEES0HR 184,185,186, 187,188,  F11888FHET999F BE/fEE - 12 100
RALE (310) 189, 190%191%:
South View Garden A.lL. 184, 185, 186,187, 188, 999 from 1888 Commercial/ < 12 100
80 Shek Pai Wan Road, Aberdeen, 189, 190 &191 Residential
Hong Kong (Portion)
BRHES HE200% 73t 83383%BEX 19226 8t fi% : 1 100
#8% (31) RERHH 75EBT756E
Villa Cecil 200 Victoria Road, Hong ~ Sec. B of I.L. 8338 & Ext. 75 + 75 from 1922 Residential - 1 100
Kong (Portion)
A IEE2E30% AR E IR 10675 19925 & 55F iz 6,683 4 100
Sl (H7)
Cheuk Nang Lookout, R.B.L. 1067 55 from 1992 Residential 6,683 4 100

30 Severn Road, The Peak,
Hong Kong (Portion)
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Schedule of Major Properties

BE_ZT_HA&E/-AZ=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

BRI E (&)
R-E-_RFNA=+H

nx

Property
ERESHEI92%
i

F— ZRZE(HH)
Villa 1, Villa 2 and Villa 3,
Villa Cecil, Phase II,

192 Victoria Road,

Hong Kong (Portion)

BRE % NB2165
BHE-HE-ERE_E
Tower 1 and 2,

Villa Cecil, Phase Il,
216 Victoria Road,

Hong Kong

ERNELTE
EEEETA
ELA5 (H17)
One Kowloon Peak
8 Po Fung Terrace,

Ting Kau, Tsuen Wan (Portion)

YN
SRESEERD
BER502508E (313)
Parkview

Lorong Perak

50250 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia (Portion)

SRR
AYlEREEER (F7)
Cheuk Nang Garden
Longhwa, Longgang,
Shenzhen (Portion)

&

Lot no.

Wi B 2441

L. 2441

AR i B2 155

RER R

R.B.L. 215 & Ext from

EETENE55%

Tsuen Wan Town
Lot 352

E13595 18R

(BITEPTI7HE) » B578

Section 57, Lot 1359 (formerly

Lot PT77),
Section 57

Ri55A819-0128

Lot No A819-0128

COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)

As at 30 June 2025

WREH

Government

lease term
(F)

(years)

H1923F 5t
75EETSE

75 + 75 from 1923

H1922F 5t
75EETSE
75 + 75 from 1922

H1991F 5
565

56 from 1991

KAFHE

Freehold

F2004F #70E

70 from 2004
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£5

Type

Residential

} o

€

Residential

Residential

BE/EE

Commercial/
Residential

[53:19;:
AEEER
Total
approved
gross

floor area
(FAR)
(s.f)

33,272

33,272

73,292

73,292

74,739

74,739

27,236

27,236

386,217

386,217

Car parking

spaces

20

20

21

21

70

70

1,054

1,054

Fifb
AR

% owned



BEDYE
R-E-_RFNA=1H

E il

Property Lot no.

Cecil Central Residence E11385 3113665
il WEESTR
FERTEER

50508R

Cecil Central Section 57,
Residence Lorong Lot 11385 and 11386
Perak 50250,

Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

RFREREE MG
Estrada de Lot No 21202
Seac Pai Van

Schedule of Major Properties

BE_FT_HA&E/-AZ=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
As at 30 June 2025

R-BZEE

Bk ke EHIR AAZ1H

BRER  MARE  ABEER  LEERE g E9% %AAR BIfR
Total

approved Gr Stage of

Government gos  parking completion Development

lease term Typet Sitearea floor area spaces % owned date as at 30/6/2025
(%) (iR (¥5R)
(years| (s (s

KAFE BE/hE 86,638 il 867 00 EhEE TR ERRLE

1,708,648
Freehold - Commerciall 86,638 Phase 2 867 1000 Notyet New plans are
Residential 1,708,648 determined approved by the
government authoriies
BONERI0E  BE/ET 09287 7oAl w8 769 ARRE he L)
FRRAERED
EREhLE
10from 2011 Commerciall 69207 736426 378 7169 Notyet  Application for new land
Residential determined lease and new

development plan have been
submitted pending for approval
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Schedule of Major Properties

BE_ZT_HA&E/-AZ=+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

BRPYWEE)

RZZE_RAFXA=+H

Property

st

BE&i

New Villa Cecil

Shui Hang, Cheung Chau,
Hong Kong

T
A

Cheuk Nang * Riverside
Yu Hang Distrct Hangzhou
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ik uf2:]

Government

Lot no. lease term

(%)

(years)

RMXENHIG B007F B3r50E
F10485 8

Lot No. 1848 50 from 2007

D.D. Cheung Chau

REERNE % - 2009%
il 1ABARH0E
B - H2009F

1ABAREHF

Chong Xian Zhen North of Residential:
Chong Hang Jie West of Yan 70 years from
Shan Gang 25/12/2009
Commercial

40 years from

25122009

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(Continued)
As at 30 June 2025

$8RE:

Type*

~

fz

Residential

Residential/
Commercial

Bk

BELER  AREER

Site area
#5%)

)
111,751

111,751

419,613

419,613

Total
approved
gross
floor area

(F3R)
()
41,088

41,088

1312437

1312437

Car
parking
spaces

778

778

i
ERES

% owned

Bt IR
nRAS

Stage of
completion
date

2026

2026

2026

2026

kSt
~A=TH
BIER

Development
as at 30/6/2025

F-BAkSERE
EoBRRGERE
The Occupation Permit of
Phase | was issued

The Occupation Permit of
Phase I1will be applied

in 2026

REBUR
REENEERE
x5

Building acceptance and
property certificate for
ownership not yet completed
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